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“Snow Brave the World” is the mid-end product
series of the Group and is popular among younger
consumers. The brand promotion campaign “Snow
Great Expedition” series has been running since 2005

and conveys the spirit of “ambitious, challenging
innovative”.
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“Snow Opera Mask” is the super-premium product
series of the Group featuring unique elements of male
and female Chinese opera performers’ faces, in addition
to showcasing the perfect combination of premium
modern lifestyle and traditional Chinese culture.
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Experiences
across ‘Snow’

25T #12 Design Concept
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China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited provides customers
with various product experiences and enjoyments on different occasions,
through an innovative branding and segmenting strategy of the beer
brand “ZE ¢ Snow” covering different product series. It consists of the
mid-end series “Snow Brave the World” for younger generation, high-end
series “Snow Draft Beer” with “Ingenuity in Craft” as its core value and
the super-premium series “Snow Opera Mask” combining the beer with
oriental elements.
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Company Profile
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CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS)
COMPANY LIMITED

China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited under the stock code
291.HK, is a beer listed subsidiary company of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH”). The Group focuses on the
manufacturing, sales and distribution of beer products.

In 2015, the Company successfully completed its business
restructuring and transformed itself into a beer-focused
enterprise, and was renamed from “China Resources Enterprise,
Limited” to “China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited”.
In October 2016, the Company completed the acquisition of 49%
stake of China Resources Snow Breweries Limited (“CRSB”),
which became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The Group has been in the beer business in China since 1994. Its
total sales volume ranked number 1 in the China market since
2006. The flagship brand “EJE Snow” has become the largest
single beer brand by volume worldwide since 2008.

As a member of China Resources Group, we are dedicated to
leading the business progress and building a better life together
with our consumers, shareholders, staff and business partners
and make the Group a trusted and beloved beer enterprise.

FEMEAE (%) B 2T China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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Milestones
in 2016

KRB EHMEAnheuser-
Busch InBev SA/NVERK
W% 0 ABIEETTEA
SABMiller Asia Limited# &
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FERFIERER SRR A
EEMBAR -

The Company reached

an agreement with
Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/
NV to acquire 49% stake

of China Resources Snow
Breweries Limited (“CRSB”)
held by SABMiiller Asia
Limited, for a consideration of
US$1.6 billion, making CRSB

a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. ﬂ
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The Group held the “Snow

Great Expedition” campaign

for the twelfth consecutive year.
The 2016 theme was “Snow
Great Expedition, Challenge the
Unclimbed by College Students”,
which attracted over a million
colleges students nationally

to participate, with around 30
college participants conquered
an unclimbed 5,116-metre-high
peak of Baima Snow Mountain in
Yunnan Province. The campaign
conveys the spirit of “ambitious,
challenging and innovative” to
college students. @

A B 2 ST R Chnbrand
i [ 2016 FEH B MmN

FE#(C-BPI) ] * [E1E Snow]
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Chnbrand, a China’s brand
rating agency, released
“2016 China Brand Power
Index (C-BPI)”, “EFE Snow”
beer ranked No. 1 on

the “Beer Brand List”

for the third consecutive
year. €
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The national photo
competition on ancient
Chinese architecture
“Snow Draft Beer Ingenuity
in Craft” welcomed its 8th
year in arow. The 2016
theme was “Huyou” (P
#&) (Doors and Windows).
The competition has an

FEMEAE (%) B 2T China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited

accumulative number

of participants and
submissions over 4.7
million and 8.9 million
respectively. It has become
one of the nation’s largest
photo competitions and

an effective advocate

of traditional Chinese
culture.

R REEREEM (2016
FHRBES00RAEERE) B
7715 - [ETE Snow | 25EZ 5
F28f - MEEERAZEA
R#1,099.68{87T °

The World Brand Laboratory
revealed the ranking of
“China’s 500 Most Valued
Brands Top 2016” in which
“E1E Snow” ranked 28th.
Its brand value rose to
RMB109,968 million.
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The Company announced
the launch of a rights
issue, on the basis of one
rights share for every
three existing shares,
which resulted in an over
subscription in August
and having raised over
HK$9.5 billion. The net
proceeds will be used to
fund the acquisition of
49% stake in CRSB, as
well as for working capital
and general corporate
purposes.

FERSBIERERET AL TR
B IER A ERIENIRE - FE
BERI208 Tt -

The canned beer production
line of Hebei factory

of CRSB in Tianjin has
officially commissioned.
The annual production

capacity will be 0.2 million
kiloliters.
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The Company completed
the acquisition of 49%
stake in CRSB, making it a
wholly-owned subsidiary

of the Company. The
acquisition allowed the
Company to gain full
ownership of CRSB,
ensuring effective
implementation of its
growth strategies, and
benefiting the Company

and its shareholders as a
whole.

P Bl Ga 8 ST AR Chnbrand
B (2016 F R RBEME
FEf5ER(C-CSI)| RkEHEE -
EIE Snow | WA [EEFT
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“EIE Snow” was awarded
“Top Beer Brand” in the
“2016 China Consumer
Satisfaction Index (C-CSI)”
by Chnbrand, a China’s
brand rating agency. In the
same month, CRSB, through
its flagship campaign
“Snow Great Expedition,
Challenge the Unclimbed
by College Students”, won
“Best Advertiser” at “China -
Advertising Great-wall

Awards” organized by

the China Adverting

Association. This effectively

showcased the uniqueness

of the product concept of

“EIE Snow” and enhanced

its brand image. €
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(&35 ) CAPITAL
2015F EHEBE AR

Corporate Social Responsibility
Awards 2015 @

= %) DELOITTE

20145 REE/50H
50 Fastest-growing Retailers
2014

BIIE 18 (BERARBEBE
HERTEXBRE)

Ranked 18th (based on the
performance of retail business
before business restructuring of
the Company)

20142 R EER25058
Top 250 Global Retailers 2014

BINET ML (BERARBEBE
BT EEBRER)

Ranked 71st (based on the
performance of retail business
before business restructuring of
the Company)

MERCOMM, INC.

Mercury Awards

20144 4F3R — BEBRE : A8
RAERIREE - HERAERI R
Annual Report 2014 - Overall
Presentation: Silver Award for
Department Store, Bronze Award
for Consumer Goods

(#&#}) THE MIRROR

FHEGHCEEEEER
The 5th Outstanding Corporate
Social Responsibility Award @

(MBI 3%
YAZHOU ZHOUKAN

2IREF10005E 1745
Global Chinese Business
1000 Ranking

2015F RALRA REARE
The Largest Conglomerates
Company Award 2015 @

(fEm ) %35 FORBES

2 3R200038 2% Global 2000

%5 %16280z
Ranked 1628th

BERREEBRIHS
HONG KONG INVESTOR
RELATIONS ASSOCIATION

F_EBRBREBBAEAR
HKIRA 2nd Investor

Relations Awards
RIEREEBRAR — FARK
Best IR Company - Mid Cap
REREEBEENME — PEAZ
Best IR Presentation Collaterals
- Mid Cap

FEMEAE (%) B 2T China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited

(EMNEHEER) M=
CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE ASIA

2016 FERMEMRRAREB KR
Asian Excellence Recognition
Awards 2016

DNRKEERTE REEHR)
Asia's Best CEO (Investor Relations)
DNKEERMBE REEHR)
Asia's Best CFO (Investor Relations)
DNRECELERE

Asia's Best Corporate Social
Responsibility
RIEREEBREE

Best Investor Relations
Company

RIEREEBERAS
Best Investor Relations
Professional

(HEFE) HF
FORTUNE CHINA
FE50058 ¥
Fortune China 500

#5128 19441
Ranked 194th
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XREREXKRA
LEAGUE OF AMERICAN
COMMUNICATIONS
PROFESSIONALS LLC
(LACP)

2015 Vision 3Rt T A5
2015 Vision Awards Annual
Report Competition
HEmAR - £48
Consumer - Consumables
Category: Gold Award @

(BBREE) X
INSTITUTIONAL
INVESTOR

2016 F EHERA R EEBMEAE
The All-Asia Executive Team
Survey 2016
TNERXEHHE L —  HEBRE
RERNREEFATE - RES
EREE  REREEBEREAS -
RIEREE@RIE REDTE
B - SEHER

One of Asia’s Most Honored
Companies, Best CEO, Best

CFO, Best Investor Relations
Professional, Best Investor
Relations Program, Best Analyst
Days and Best Website for
Consumer Staple Sector @

MERCOMM, INC.
BIBRARCF R K 8%

International Annual Report
Competition (ARC) Awards

BE S BEE, ZUBHER
ENRI R SUE R4 - WERGTIRE
Beer/Wine/Spirits Category: Gold
Award for Printing & Production,
Silver Award for Interior Design

MERCOMM, INC.

P2 Galaxy#8 18
International Galaxy Awards
FREW : BRHBETERRE
Annual Report Cover:

Honors Award for
Unique Presentation @)

BERERESENGE
THE HONG KONG
INSTITUTE OF
FINANCIAL ANALYSTS
AND PROFESSIONAL
COMMENTATORS LIMITED
2016 FERBRESITAHE
EHm AR KE

IFAPC Outstanding Listed
Company Award 2016
FHRARFERSE

Outstanding Listed Company of
the Year

R2%# TA KUNG PAO
T 5 & R A 52

Golden Bauhinia Award
RIEREEWEREE FHARRA]
Best Investor Relations Listed
Company

(& —A) %55
ECONOMIC DIGEST

2016 F ER BN A EKIE
Hong Kong Outstanding
Enterprises Parade 2016
BRGH EHE

Hong Kong Outstanding
Enterprise Award @

(R &) 735 The ASSET

2016 FEHE D HERE

The Asset Corporate Awards 2016
EUEEER  HEEERKREE
BRA 2R

Platinum Award - Excellence

in Governance, CSR & Investor
Relations @

EREZZES
THE HONG KONG
INSTITUTE OF DIRECTORS

2016 FEHHESR

Directors of The Year Awards 2016
LETRR [BER S — E4EEE
o] EEEER

The Awardee in the Board
Category for “Listed Companies
(SEHK - Hang Seng Indexes
Constituents)”

F 3§ 2016 Annual Report
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Major Figures in 2016

TURNOVER PROPORTION

BY REGION
|- I 2 3 # A5 k

BT AR

Southern Staff No.

region

20890
peen  Sel0AT

IRE =R Average Selling Price

Dividend :a)iout Ratio @ 58 ) 200

ESpIE=

GP Margin

BTAARY
RMB/kl

8 EEE (#£8%) BR 2 3 China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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Major Figures in 2016
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Annual Production
Capacity
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Beer Sales Volume
BEIFRBEE

Additions to
on-Current Assets

EBIT PROPORTION
BY REGION
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Financial Highlights

HEZZ—XF+ZA=+—HBILFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2016

TURNOVER

FEEEZEE

Continuing operations

BREXRKHHRT

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS
PER SHARE
RELE XK

Continuing operations

28,694

0.22

27,959 0.25
27,313 0.22
AREEBEE T RMB million AR RVB
—E—REF ZET—AHF —E—F
2016 2015 2014
ARBEERT AREEELT AREEERL
RMB million RMB million RMB million
(E7]) " (&%)
(Restated)’ (Restated)’
] Turnover
— EHEKE T - continuing operations 28,694 27,959 27,313
— BRI 2 ¥ T2 - discontinued operations? - 79,021 106,528
HHEBE RS Elimination of inter-segment
transactions - (108) (84)
28,694 106,872 138,757
AARREEMNRF,(E518) Profit/(loss) attributable to
shareholders of the Company
— FHERE 2 ETE - continuing operations 629 667 578
— BRI S ¥R - discontinued operations? - (4,785) (706)
629 (4,118) (128)
BREARETRT Basic and diluted earnings/(losses)
(E518) » 4« (AR¥7T) per share®* (RMB)
— FHERE 2 ET - continuing operations RMBO0.22 RMBO0.25 RMBO0.22
— BRIEEE 2 ¥R - discontinued operations? - RMB(1.81) RMB(0.27)
RMBO0.22 RMB(1.56) RMB(0.05)
TS (ARET) G8%T)  Dividend per share (RMB) (HK$)
— —interim - - HK$0.11
(RMBO0.09)
— RH - final RMB0.08 - HK$0.16
(RMB0.13)
RMB0.08 - HK$0.27
(RMBO0.22)
— FFRl - special - HK$12.30 -
(RMB10.08)

EEEE (%) AR 28 China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited



AR RRRES S
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Financial Highlights

RZF—RF+=A=+—H Asat 31 December 2016

BREEFE : REE

NET ASSETS PER SHARE:
BOOK VALUE

17,601

5.43
10,056 4.13
38,455 15.89
AREEEEITT RMB million AR RVB
RZB—XRE RZZ—HF RZZE—NF
+=A=+—-8B +=-A=+—H +=-A=+—H
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014
ARBEEBRT AREBET AR¥BEERT
RMB million RMB million RMB million
(&) (&E51)) !
(Restated)’ (Restated)’
A PR R FE(L 2 Equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company 17,601 10,056 38,455
FEPE IR R A = Non-controlling interests 66 9,264 16,469
i Total equity 17,667 19,320 54,924
IRAERFE Consolidated net borrowings 3,677 2,690 6,360
B fEL & Gearing ratio® 20.8% 13.9% 11.6%
BN = Current ratio 0.53 0.59 0.76
BREEFME : Net assets per share:
— REE (AR¥T) - book value (RMB) RMB5.43 RMB4.13 RMB15.89

MIEE

1LBEZE-RE-A—HR KRR E2REMBEES
REBRR B RBERBARE -

2. ARER _FE-RAFNA-BHEHEFEREEL - Z
SEBERB BV BMELERESRIEER R IEEEZ
ES

JLMRBARR T —AR"FLASNBAGHHEE  GKREA
BB ERZT—AFNATN\BERRETH
BHUE MRN8 11,044,226 A7 A X AR R =4 78
B UL FEHETHERUFEETES -

4 ERARBRZE—ARF+AT - HAERKBERS
EEBEERAT ([EHESEWE]) 49%H#  —F—
NENGREARIERNZRARRERER R
BHIRERELL B (BERTE1 % R 12 100%)5T 5 - Et
RAREEZT—ANFR2HERRIIELO%AE IR E

s
m °

5. BELLRIEEAERFRELERNLY -

Notes:

1.

With effect from 1 January 2016, the Company changed the currency in which it
presents its financial results and position from Hong Kong dollars to Renminbi.

. The Group disposed of its non-beer businesses on 1 September 2015. These

businesses are presented as discontinued operations according to the Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standard 5.

. Earnings/(losses) per share have been adjusted for the bonus element of the

rights issue following the allotment and issuance of 811,044,226 fully-paid
rights shares on 18 August 2016 pursuant to the rights issue as announced
by the Company on 6 July 2016, and prior years comparatives have also been
restated for such effect.

. Since the Company completed the acquisition of 49% stake in China Resources

Snow Breweries Limited (“CRSB”) on 11 October 2016, basic and diluted earnings
per share for the year was calculated according to the Company’s shareholdings
before and after the acquisition (61% before acquisition and 100% after the
acquisition), thus the benefit of the acquisition of 49% stake have not been fully
reflected in 2016.

. Gearing ratio represents the ratio of consolidated net borrowings to total equity.

%R 2016 Annual Report
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Analysis of Turnover and Earnings before Interest and Taxation

HEZZ—XF+ZA=+—HBILFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2016

BB ZERE

TURNOVER BY SEGMENT

2016

2015

28,694

— 28,694

- 27,959

78,9183

106,872

AREEET RMB million

e
Total

FRICE 2 %%

Continuing operations

AREEET RMB million

RESIS S PESVIEECES T Pae

Discontinued operations and elimination of inter-segment transactions

—E-XREF —T—hF #in, CRd)
2016 2015 Increased/
ARBEERT AREBET (Decreased)
RMB million RMB million %
(&)
BEOEMZEER Turnover by segment (Restated)’
BERE 2% Continuing operations
@ Eastern region 15,445 15,606 (1.0%)
& Central region 6,636 6,382 4.0%
=] Southern region 7,374 6,957 6.0%
HED RS Elimination of inter-segment
transactions (761) (986) (22.8%)
i Beer 28,694 27,959 2.6%
RIS 2 ¥R Discontinued operations? - 79,021 (100.0%)
HEEBE S Elimination of inter-segment
transactions - (108) (100.0%)
Fik) Total 28,694 106,872 (73.2%)

EEEE (58%) AR 28 China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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Analysis of Turnover and Earnings before Interest and Taxation .- o
& 582 RHFISRRERNBF —
EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXATION BY SEGMENT ?%
2 E;ﬁ#
2016 2015 s
S N,
=
©
1,757 (2,356)
1,757 1,790
(4,146)
AREBEIT RMB million ARBEBEIT RMB million
ke P S 2 %75 BRI E 2 %55
Total Continuing operations Discontinued operations
—E-XKEF —T-hF i, Chd)
2016 2015 Increased/
ARBEEBRT AREBETT (Decreased)
RMB million RMB million %
B oz REFFER Earnings before interest and (851)"
BEFHEF taxation by segment (Restated)’
BERE 2% Continuing operations
@ Eastern region 1,007 1,100 (8.5%)
Iz Central region 73 34 114.7%
=] Southern region 772 677 14.0%
g2 g Beer 1,852 1,811 2.3%
NEEEE A Corporate overheads (95) (21) 352.4%
1,757 1,790 (1.8%)
RIS 2 EK Discontinued operations? - (4,146) (100.0%)
W Total 1,757 (2,356) (174.6%)
ik Notes:
1.BEZZE—RF-A—BR AR 2/MEMBEE 1. With effect from 1 January 2016, the Company changed the currency in which it
REBRRZ S ABERAARE - presents its financial results and position from Hong Kong dollars to Renminbi.
2.AEER—E-—RHFNAA—BHEEFEEBER - Z 2. The Group disposed of its non-beer businesses on 1 September 2015. These
SEBOREBYBRE ERESRINED L ILEE 2 businesses are presented as discontinued operations according to the Hong
£ Kong Financial Reporting Standard 5.
3§ 2016 Annual Report 13
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Chairman’s

BREl CHEN LANG
F & Chairman
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“The Group achieved
growth in both beer
sales volume and
average selling price in
2016.”

FEMEAE (3%) B2 7 China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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—T-RNF - ARER(CBREEE - BN
Ao B X% HORNBERBm&ERA(E

EmEamimt e

HE-Z—RF+-A=+—BHIFE XK
SERBELECEBNGREEETIEFER
2.6%%E #) A R #28,694,000,0007T © AR
ARZE—R"Ft+A+—HAERKEEES
TEEBEERAR ([EHSEEE]) 490%K
BOmMENEE—RAEBEITENRE K
RNERREGGREBIIEFRDE7%ELA
K #629,000,0007T ° U BE49% A% #E BT 75 2Rk
MNE=BREEE_T—tF2EKRME - K
SEER T - RNFHRERFIBR-_Z—AF
EF6.8%= AR¥1,419,000,0007T °

KRR E

EECREN T —tFE XA+ ABHA
% m_ZT—tFENA—BRIAREKRE
ZMHOBRRRBHEE T —FE+ A=+
—HALEFERARE Bk ARK0.08T
(CZ—AF  8E) UEHBREHAEEYN
S o

REEEIT
AARIEBBANRD A ZEARREGEES
BEH R -_T—HEmMBAFER (&
) BRA AR ([EHER])) HETE R
mMRREE IR BER - RN BAK A —
REIRBEESN ETAR: RZZ—
NEFE=Z A ARAE M EANheuser-Busch
InBev SA/NVEE X 13 #% © SA161EETTE A
SABMiller Asia Limitedi## A E B S IEEHE
4% - ZRHN_ZTE—XRF+ A%
K EREAEENSEESERENT
BERE BRAEERPEMNEERES
MEM > BINBARRINERER  WAXR
ARERHIRA AR LIEREBEIRE
BREEM  ARBAR_ZE—X"FELASMH
BASEEZRAR RN EE RS
EE S REREBRRMDEE11.73TETH

-

FRHE
Chairman’s Statement

FINAL RESULTS

In 2016, the Group reinforced its development strategy,
continued to strengthen and expand its beer business to
maximize efficiency and to premiumize its product mix.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, consolidated turnover
of the Group’s continuing operations increased by 2.6%
year-on-year to approximately RMB28,694 million. Considering
that on 11 October 2016, the Company completed the acquisition
of 49% stake in China Resources Snow Breweries Limited
(“CRSB”), and the fourth quarter is usually the slack season
for the beer industry, the Company recorded a 5.7% drop in
consolidated profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders
to RMB629 million in 2016 as compared with 2015. It is expected
that the benefit of the acquisition of 49% stake will be fully
reflected in 2017. Profit after tax in 2016 increased by 6.8% to
RMB1,419 million, as compared with 2015.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends a final dividend of RMB0.08 per share
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil) payable on or
around 16 June 2017 to shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 1 June 2017, to show
its appreciation to shareholders for their support of the Group.

STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION

The Company endeavors to create greater value for shareholders
through various means. Upon the disposal of all non-beer
businesses, including retail, food and beverage businesses, to its
parent company, China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
(“CRH”) in 2015, the Company successfully transformed itself into a
listed company that focuses on the beer business. In March 2016,
the Company announced that it had entered into an agreement with
Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV to purchase the 49% stake held by
SABMiller Asia Limited in CRSB for a total consideration of US$1.6
billion. The transaction was completed in October 2016, which
did not only mark the Group's gaining full ownership of CRSB, but
also ensured the effective implementation of the Group’s growth
strategies in China. In July 2016, in order to reinforce the Company’s
capital base and to provide greater flexibility to capture development

—

and expansion opportunities that may arise, the Company _

announced the launch of a proposed rights issue (“Rights Issue”)
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on the basis of one rights share for every three existing shares
at the subscription price of HK$11.73. The Rights Issue was fully
underwritten by CRH (Beer) Limited (“CRH Beer”), the Company’s
controlling shareholder and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRH,
demonstrating CRH Beer’s confidence in and commitment to the
Company’s future and growth prospects. In addition, the Company
believed that the Rights Issue provided the Company’s shareholders
with an equal opportunity to participate in the long-term growth of
the Company and guaranteed that their shares were not diluted.
In the end, the rights shares were oversubscribed and raised over
HK$9.5 billion. Trading in the shares started on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited in August 2016. The net proceeds were used to
fund the acquisition of the CRSB 49% stake, as well as for working
capital and other general corporate purposes.

In 2016, the overall beer market capacity was dampened by the
sluggish macro-economic growth and the decline in consumer
spending appetite. The weather condition varied during the year
under review. The market capacity was affected by the flooding
in the cities along the Yangtze River and parts of southern
China in the first half, but benefited from a warmer-than-usual
summer in the third quarter. The performance on sales volume of
the Group was better than the industry average. The Group also
carried on the premiumization of its product mix, leverage of
its economies of scale, and maintaining close communications
with distributors and points of sales to gain insights in market
changes. The Group focused resources on its flagship brand
“ETE Snow” to penetrate various cities in China. Meanwhile, it
further improved its profitability, thanks to execution capability
of its highly efficient team. During the year under review, the
Group achieved growth in both volume and average selling price,
of which the increase in average selling price was benefited from
the product mix upgrade. Furthermore, the reduction of certain
raw material costs further improved gross profit margin.

PROSPECTS

The economy of China and the world in 2016 has been impacted
by several significant global events, including Renminbi’s
inclusion in the Special Drawing Right (SDR) basket, the election
of the new United States President, as well as the Brexit vote.
In 2017, great uncertainties in the economic outlook remain in
view of the changes in political and economic policies in some
key regions, such as the unclear policies and direction after the
new United States President took office, or the elections in some
important member countries of the Eurozone.

FEEEAE (3R) B2 7 China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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Chairman’s Statement

Despite the expected fluctuation in future China beer sales volume,
the Group believes that there is still room for growth in the sales
volume of mid- to high-end beers in view of progressive consumption
upgrades in the medium to long term, as compared to other mature
countries. Thanks to that, we are confident of the development of the
China beer industry, and thus will continue to advance through both
organic expansion and grasping appropriate acquisition opportunities
to consolidate the market, in order to reinforce our market leadership
across the nation and enhance our core competitiveness.

Through implementing strategies for innovative developments
and for sales and marketing, lean sales, capacity optimization
etc., the Group is determined to expand the proportion of its mid-
to high-end beer products and canned beer products, and to
optimize its brand strategy, with a view to enhancing the products’
gross profit and the effectiveness of its selling expenses. On the
operations front, in anticipation of the pressure from the possible
rise in costs for raw materials, packaging materials, transportation
etc., the Group is dedicated to optimizing its production capacity,
reinforcing its central procurements and improving its production
efficiency and lean management. It is committed to improving its
talent staff reserve, to staff training in technical advancement and
to optimizing its staff composition. The Group is resolute in further
strengthening its risk management awareness in order to cope with
the complexities and multiple changes in 2017.

We look forward to leading the business progress and building a
better life together with our consumers, shareholders, staff and
business partners and make the Group a trusted and beloved beer
enterprise.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our special gratitude
to SABMiller PLC and its team for their contribution to the Group
in the past 20 odd years. We would like to thank all shareholders
for their support. We are grateful to our management and staff for
their dedication as well as our customers and business partners
for their long-term trust. We will continue to be fully committed to
delivering quality products to our customers and bringing attractive
and stable returns to our shareholders.

CHEN LANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

We have always believed that adhering to the highest standards
of corporate governance, great transparency and a comprehensive
accountability system enables investors to accurately understand
the latest business developments of the Group. It also helps
to improve the Group’s performance and expand business
opportunities. We have always been dedicated to maximizing
returns for the shareholders by various means. On 2 March 2016,
the Company reached an agreement with Anheuser-Busch InBev
SA/NV to acquire 49% stake in China Resources Snow Breweries
Limited (“CRSB”) from SABMiller Asia Limited, for a consideration
of US$1.6 billion. To strengthen the understanding of the
transaction for the shareholders and the market, the Company
has hosted numerous investors meetings and teleconferences
and disclosed relevant information. The acquisition was
completed on 11 October 2016. Since then, CRSB has been a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

FEEEAE (3R) B2 7 China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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The Company maintains its active
execution of effective mechanism
for multi-channel communications
with shareholders and the
investment community.

After that, in order to strengthen the Company’s capital base and
provide the Company’s shareholders with an equal opportunity to
participate in the long-term growth of the Company while ensuring
their equity will not be diluted, the Company on 6 July 2016 announced
the launch of a rights issue on the basis of one rights share for every
three existing shares at the subscription price of HK$11.73. The rights
issue was fully underwritten by CRH (Beer) Limited, a controlling
shareholder of the Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. The issue was oversubscribed
and the Company successfully raised over HK$9.5 billion. Trading in
the rights shares commenced on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 19 August 2016. The net proceeds were used to fund the
acquisition of the 49% stake in CRSB, as well as for working capital
and other general corporate purposes, providing the Company more
financial flexibility to capture future growth.

Furthermore, to ensure the transparent and timely disclosure of
the Company’s developments, the Company maintained its active
execution of effective mechanism for multi-channel communications
with shareholders and the investment community. In 2016, the
Company conducted approximately 350 meetings with nearly 1,400
analysts and fund managers, and continued to communicate with
institutional investors, analysts and potential investors in different
ways. In addition to the conferences of the results announcement,
it was in touch with investors through one-on-one meetings,
luncheons, forums and telephone conferences arranged by financial
institutions.
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The Group’s efforts in investor relations have continued
to win industry accolades. In 2016, the Group was named
“Best Investor Relations Company”, “Asia’s Best CEOQ (Investor
Relations)”, “Asia’s Best CFO (Investor Relations)”, “Best Investor
Relations Professional” as well as “Asia’s Best Corporate Social
Responsibility” by Corporate Governance Asia for the sixth
consecutive year. Also in 2016, it was named “One of Asia’s Most
Honored Companies”, “Best CEQ”, “Best CFO”, “Best Investor
Relations Professionals”, “Best Investor Relations Program”, “Best
Analyst Days” and “Best Website” for Consumer Staple Sector by
Institutional Investor. 2016 also marked the tenth consecutive
year that the Group had received accolades for the quality of its
annual report at the “International Annual Report Competition
(ARC) Awards” organized by MerComm, Inc. These honors
demonstrate the Group’s efforts and achievements in building
an all-rounded investor relations program.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to practice high
standard of corporate governance. It is confident that it can
build sustainable and profitable growth and a better return on
assets, in order to create higher value for the shareholders.

SHARE PERFORMANCE

2016 witnessed a high number of significant global events. The United
States presidential election, Brexit, as well as Renminbi’s inclusion in
the Special Drawing Right (SDR) basket impacted China and even the
global economy, giving rise to stock market turmoil. The Company’s
closing share price grew 1.2% (share price adjusted upon rights issue
in 2016) year-on-year to HK$15.40 as of 31 December 2016. The
market capitalization amounted to HK$49.96 billion as of 31 December
2016.

DIVIDEND PAYOUT RATIO

To pay back its shareholders’ continuous support, the Group is
committed to creating sustained returns for its shareholders. The total
dividend of the Company for 2016 amounted to RMBO0.08. Its dividend
payout ratio amounted to 41.3%. The Group will endeavor to maintain
a respectable dividend payout level while preserving healthy cash
levels so as to meet the requirements of its business growth.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Consolidated turnover of the Group’s continuing operations in
2016 was RMB28,694 million. This represents an increase of
2.6% over the previous year. Affected by the completion of the
acquisition of 49% stake in China Resources Snow Breweries
Limited on 11 October 2016 (“CRSB Acquisition”), coupled with
usual slack season for the beer market in the fourth quarter,
the Group’s consolidated profit attributable to shareholders
decreased by 5.7% to RMB629 million in 2016, as compared
with the previous year. The Group’s basic and diluted earnings
per share for 2016 amounted to RMB0.22 per share, which were
calculated according to the Company’s shareholdings before and
after the CRSB Acquisition (51% before acquisition and 100%
after the acquisition), thus the benefit of the CRSB Acquisition
has not been fully reflected in 2016 but is expected to be fully
reflected in 2017. The Group’s profit after tax in 2016 increased by
6.8% to RMB1,419 million, as compared with the previous year.

During the year under review, the overall beer market capacity
was dampened by sluggish macro-economic growth and the
decline in consumer spending appetite. The weather condition
varied in 2016. The market capacity was affected by the
rainstorms in the mid-lower reaches of the Yangtze River and
parts of southern China in the first half, but benefited from
a warmer-than-usual summer in the third quarter. Chinese
consumer’s growing demand for high quality products also
boosted the upgrade of product mix in the beer market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2016, the beer sales volume of the Group increased by 0.3%
to approximately 11,715,000 kilolitres as compared with the
previous year. The performance was better than the industry
average and the Group’s market share was further enlarged.
This was mainly contributed by tailored sales strategies to the
local market, established closer long-standing cooperative
relationships with distributors and expansion in market
coverage through reinforced brand promotions. The national
brand “E1E Snow” accounted for approximately 90% of total beer
sales volume of the Group’s business. Due to the Group’s continuous
efforts in optimising its product mix, mid- to high-end beer products
maintained growth in its sales volume. This led to an increase in
overall average selling price by approximately 2.3% in 2016 as
compared with the previous year, which drove an increase in turnover
in all operating segments. Together with the decrease in certain raw
material costs, overall gross profit margin increased by 2.6 percentage
points as compared with the previous year.

Two major sports events — the Union of European Football Associations
("UEFA") EURO and the Olympic Games - took place during the year
under review. The Group moderately increased its investment in
promotional and marketing activities. The Group launched a thematic
promotional activity “SNOW’s First Game” during the period of UEFA
EURO and the Olympic Games, to enhance brand awareness through
targeted promotions and publicity for its products. The Group also
concentrated resources on several large-scale promotional campaigns.
For the Group’s mid-end products “Brave the World” series, the
event “Snow Great Expedition, Challenge the Unclimbed by College
Students” aided reinforcement of the promotion for the series, which
has become the best-selling single beer brand for mid-end products.
For the Group's high-end beer series such as “Snow Draft Beer”, the
Group utilised the national photo competition on ancient Chinese
architecture, “Snow Draft Beer Ingenuity in Craft”, as well as sponsoring
the publication of the “Ancient Chinese Architecture of Popularisation
and Inheritance Series’, as the key promotion campaigns. In addition,
in order to grasp the industry’s channel development trend in the long
run, during the year under review, the Group established partnerships
with large domestic e-commerce platform providers to expand its
boundaries into online sales and marketing.

During the year under review, the Group continued to enhance
its deployment of the production capacity, and promote regional
consolidation of the production capacity and assets, so as to improve
profitability in the mid- to long-term. The impairment loss recognised
for 2016 increased by RMB321 million to RMB464 million as compared
with the previous year. As at the end of 2016, the Group operated 98
breweries in 25 provinces, directly administered municipalities and

autonomous regions in mainland China, with an aggregate annual -

production capacity of approximately 22,000,000 kiloliters.
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Looking ahead, the overall market capacity may fluctuate due to the
various lingering uncertainties in the macro economy and ongoing
intense competition. However, along with the rising trend in Chinese
consumers’ income levels and their growing demand for high quality
products, the Group will continue to enhance its product mix and
product quality, expand the proportion of its mid- to high-end and
canned beer products, to meet customers’ needs. The Group will
continue to monitor the market conditions and the competitive
environment, improve effectiveness of selling expenses through
innovative marketing and lean sales. The Group will also review
and improve its “E1E Snow” brand strategy to strengthen its brand
reputation and customer loyalty. Further, the Group will continue
to optimise deployment of the production capacity and reinforce
central procurement, so as to ease possible pressure arising from
certain cost increase, such as raw materials, packaging materials and
transportation. The business will continue to be developed through
both organic growth and evaluation of suitable potential acquisition
opportunities, which will play out more synergy effects brought about by
mergers and acquisitions. This will assure the Group’s leading position
in the market.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s consolidated cash and
bank balance amounted to RMB3,590 million. The Group’s
borrowings as at 31 December 2016 were RMB7,267 million with
RMB4,314 million repayable within one year, RMB2,952 million
repayable after one year but within five years and RMB1 million
repayable after five years.

On the basis of the Group’s net borrowings relative to the
shareholders’ funds and minority interests, the Group’s gearing
ratio was approximately at 20.8% as at 31 December 2016 (31
December 2015: 13.9%).

The Group’s principal assets, liabilities, revenue and payments
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US
dollars. As at 31 December 2016, 20.5% of the Group’s cash
deposit balance was held in Hong Kong dollars, 76.0% in
Renminbi and 3.5% in US dollars; whereas 59.5% of the
Group’s borrowings was denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
40.5% in Renminbi. The Group’s borrowings are principally on a
floating rate basis.

FEEEAE (3R) B2 7 China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year, the Company raised approximately HK$9,514
million, before expenses, by way of a rights issue of 811,044,226
shares on the basis of one rights share for every three ordinary
shares at a subscription price of HK$11.73 per rights share. As
at 31 December 2016, approximately HK$8,600 million of the net
proceeds was used for the partial settlement of the consideration
of the CRSB Acquisition, and approximately HK$400 million
was used for the acquisition-related cost and general operating
expenses. The Group intended to utilize the remaining balance for
general working capital and repayment of borrowings and interests.

As at 31 December 2016, assets with a carrying value of RMB103
million (31 December 2015: RMB125 million) were pledged for
notes payable.

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2016.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a staff size of around
58,200, amongst which more than 99% were employed in the
Chinese Mainland. Remuneration packages are assessed in
accordance with the nature of job duties, individual performance
and market trends with built-in merit components, paid in the
form of cash bonuses.

By order of the Board
CHEN LANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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was appointed as Chairman of the Board of the Company in August 2012. Mr.
Chen was Chief Executive Officer (previously named as Managing Director)
of the Company from January 2009 to August 2012. He is Executive Director
of the Company, Executive Vice President of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited, Director of CRH (Beer) Limited, Director and Chairman
of China Resources Enterprise, Limited as well as the Chairman of China
Resources Snow Breweries (China) Investment Co., Ltd., China Resources
Ng Fung Limited and China Resources Cestbon Kirin Beverage (Holdings)
Company Limited. He was previously the Director of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources National Corporation,
the Chief Executive Officer of China Resources Vanguard Co., Ltd., and Vice
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of China Resources Logic Limited
(now renamed as China Resources Gas Group Limited). Prior to that, he
was Chairman and General Manager of China Resources Development
and Investment Co., Limited and was in charge of a number of substantial
investments in Canada and Thailand of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor of Economics degree from Anhui University,
China and a Master of Business Administration degree from the University of
San Francisco, USA. He is currently the visiting professor of Anhui University,
China and also the part-time teacher of Master of International Business of
Fudan University, China. He joined China Resources National Corporation and
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1986 and 1989 respectively.
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Mr. Hou Xiaohai

REBXE
Mr. Lai Po Sing, Tomakin
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has been appointed as Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
in April 2016. He was appointed as general manager of China Resources Snow
Breweries (China) Co., Ltd. in March 2016 and was the director of its sales and
marketing departments from December 2001 to December 2007. He was appointed
as general manager and assistant general manager (also a general manager of its
distribution headquarter) of the branch of China Resources Snow Breweries (China)
Co., Ltd. in Guizhou Province and a general manager of its branch in Sichuan Province
from January 2009 to February 2016. Mr. Hou has a Bachelor of Statistics Degree from
the People’s University of China. He has previously worked in Shougang Corporation,
Gallup Poll and Pepsico. Mr.Hou joined China Resources Group in 2001.

RZZ-R"ENABZERARTNTES  BREMHERARNE - R _F—F
NARZERNRRIAGAELE - Hb 2/ - HEEEARRNETBE - FR_FTN
FAAMARRT « RRAREBAZERARNEEE - BREMBERARWE - 10
AREER  BEREEBRSHMEFMLE  YRRLEEARAR  FERITE
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WoNEDERET - SRR - ROIEEARAFMEEB I ELREE - RELREEE
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has been appointed as an Executive Director, the Chief Financial Officer and the Company
Secretary of the Company in June 2016. He was appointed as the Finance Director of the
Company in June 2014. He was previously the Audit Director of the Company. He joined the
Company in September 2008. He is currently the Vice President, the Chief Financial Officer
and the Company Secretary of China Resources Enterprise, Limited. Prior to joining the Group,
he had worked for international accounting firms in Hong Kong, and also acted as the financial
controller and company secretary of Zhong An Real Estate Limited, China Oriental Group
Company Limited and Hon Po Group (Lobster King) Limited (now known as China Energy
Development Holdings Limited), which are listed companies on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lai has extensive experience in internal and external
auditing, finance and accounting, regulatory and compliance and company secretarial
matters. Mr. Lai holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business Administration degree from the University
of Manchester, UK. He is a Fellow Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales. He is
a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the UK and of
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He is a Certified Internal Auditor and holds a
Certificate in Risk Management Assurance conferred by the Institute of Internal Auditors. He is
also a Certified Information Systems Auditor of ISACA.
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Biographical Details of Directors

FHITES

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

BRER B4
Mr. Chen Rong

B RE
Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank
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BREP RGN SAEMRBMER - WASTEEMETMHEFNEEE - R
REN_ZTLFRANAER (£E) BRAF -

was appointed as Non-Executive Director of the Company in April 2016. Mr. Chen was
appointed as Director of China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited, which is
a listed company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
in May 2016 and designated as its Non-Executive Director in June 2016. He was
also appointed as General Manager of the Finance Department of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited in February 2016 and was the head of tax management of
the same department. Mr Chen was deputy general manager and chief financial officer
of China Resources Vanguard Company Limited. Mr. Chen has previously worked in
Epson Technical Limited, Walmart China Investment Limited and Fuji Electric Technical
Services Limited. Mr. Chen joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in May
2007. Mr. Chen holds MBA degree from Xi'an Jiaotong University. He is an Intermediate
Accountant and a Certified Tax Agent in China. He is also a non-practicing member of
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

BT FANARAARRARTES AT AERITES - FRER _ZTHhEA
ECE-RERASEEARAARNNTEEREENKE MR- ESAENAE
TR RNFRAPBETARARARMWE c REL D AEBMETER AT
EE WRTEE GRVBERARME c EH 2R REETEEIERAR
(38#Nam Cheong Limited) BEMBE - ZARBNINEELRR S EMAT
WHATAEETRHBREEEAR AR CRBEERRIERERAR) AITEER
BENTE - FR -E—AENARZIARETERERARNNTES LAITTH
@E o TR —ZE—+F = ARBZ LA ITRESR,  ZARINEEHARZIAERA
BIERLE™M - REESPIHEERMASHEL BN RIREEE T ABTHERE
BEVER - HABTASHIACSE RN ESHMPeLEEEs -

has been re-designated from an Executive Director to a Non-Executive Director of
the Company since June 2016. He was an Executive Director and the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company between June 2009 and May 2016, and the Company Secretary
between August 2009 and May 2016. Mr. Lai was previously the Executive Director, Non-
executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of China Resources
Microelectronics Limited. Prior to that, he served as the Chief Financial Officer of Eagle
Brand Holdings Ltd. (now known as Nam Cheong Limited), which is a company listed on
the Singapore Exchange and before then, he served as the Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of Logic International Holdings Ltd. (now known as China Resources
Gas Group Limited). He was appointed as Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive
Officer of Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited, which is a listed company on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, in June 2016 and became its Chief Executive
Officer in March 2017. Mr. Lai obtained a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University
of Western Australia and a Graduate Diploma in Business and Administration from the
Curtin University of Technology of Western Australia. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of CPA Australia.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

BERERE
Mr. Houang Tai Ninh

FREEL
Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric
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has been a Director of the Company since 1988. He is also a Director
and Chairman of Sino Resources and Energy Holdings Limited, Sino
Petrochem Development Limited, Sino Mining Investments Limited and
a Director of China & Overseas Resources Limited. Mr. Houang obtained
his Bachelor of Business Studies degree from the Polytechnic of North
Staffordshire, United Kingdom.

R-EZE=F=-ARZERARFAEL - RAFTSREAMNEKFEES
AEkTRARBAHBEERE T _E2HEE8EZ8  USHERER
FITBREYZEHE - FHELTRESKETRANESE - SFETEEN
ERRBRAF - BEARTAERLA  BBBAEAEEEARAF - HEEH
BERERAR  ERBEREEARAR - BABERERAR - FEL
ZERBRITBROBERAFNES -

has been a Director of the Company since March 2003. He is Senior
Partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co., Certified Public Accountants (Practising),
member of the Twelve National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference and former member of the Legislative
Council of the Hong Kong SAR. Dr. Li holds directorships in a number
of listed companies including Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, Hang
Seng Bank Limited, SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited,
Transport International Holdings Limited, Wong’s International Holdings
Limited, and RoadShow Holdings Limited. Dr. Li was a Director of Bank
of Communications Co., Ltd.
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BREEL
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

REBLE

Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan
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has been a Director of the Company since November 2005. Dr. Cheng
is a practicing solicitor and a consultant of Messrs. P.C. Woo & Co.
after serving as its senior partner from 1994 to 2015. Dr. Cheng was
a member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong. He is the founder
chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors of which he is now
the Honorary President and Chairman Emeritus. Dr. Cheng currently
holds directorships in K. Wah International Holdings Limited, China
Mobile Limited, Towngas China Company Limited, Kader Holdings
Company Limited, Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited, Guangdong
Investment Limited and Tian An China Investments Company Limited, all
being listed companies in Hong Kong. He is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of ARA Asset Management Limited, a company whose
shares are listed on Singapore Exchange Limited. He was a Director of
Hong Kong Television Network Limited (formerly known as City Telecom
(H.K.) Limited), which is a listed company in Hong Kong.

RZBEERNF+—AEZARARRAEST - FADNSHBEE (IFR) BIR
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has been a Director of the Company since November 2006. He is the
Executive Director and President of Asia Financial Holdings Limited and
Asia Insurance Company Limited. He also acts as an Advisor of Bangkok
Bank (China) Company Limited. Apart from the roles in the business
community, Mr. Chan also serves as a Hong Kong Deputy to The National
People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China and a member
of the Executive Council of the Hong Kong SAR. He is also a former
member of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong SAR. In addition, Mr.
Chan holds directorship in Chen Hsong Holdings Limited and Yau Lee
Holdings Limited which are listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan was a Director
of City e-solutions Limited and New Heritage Holdings Limited.
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has been a Director of the Company since November 2006. He had
been a career civil servant for over 36 years before retiring from the
civil service in 2002. Mr. Siu rose to the rank of Secretary, Government
Secretariat in 1993 and served a number of high ranking government
positions, namely the Secretary for Economic Services, Secretary for
Transport, Head of Central Policy Unit and eventually retired from his
last posting as Secretary for Planning, Environment & Lands. Mr. Siu
now serves as an Independent Non-Executive Director of Transport
International Holdings Limited and two of its subsidiaries, and was an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Television Broadcasts Limited.
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EETE MANAGEMENT PHILOSOPHY

% 1= EEgRE EREEECEEARP AL  The Board believes that risk management is an integral part
3 Re—&o c AREEAMEHNDLERBRE  of corporate governance. Effective and efficient corporate risk
B TEEMAEEETRMBATEES - #  management will facilitate the Group’s business development and
RO ERKY  FEEZRTIHEY  operation by setting the appropriate risk appetite, maintaining
[Blfg - REXEBERREE  HMAEZERE  an acceptable risk level and more importantly, proactively
- ENEERRERRERB - FBRAKREEE  responding to risks. It therefore helps protect shareholder value
BREIIRENERERRER - WEBEIT®  and safeguard the Group’s reputation. Through putting in place
AIMER  NEBBAOBRARA - HAE  proper risk management control over the Group’s business and
ERBE TR  —BREMREEER  carrying out regular reviews and updates, the Group strives to
e B MEHFTEENEE - REBOER  reduce the likelihood and the effect of risks before they occur, and
ERETEMUERBBKENTE WEFA  deal with problems effectively when they arise. While the Group’s
SEXBHEBREMBELEZP - X% risk management is the responsibility of every management team
ErREREERFENZEHNT  FRER  member and is embedded in the business planning and daily
g - MBMHEBEEMRE(COERE  operation of the Group's business, our risk management process
BREF  BUAMERBERHR - DM is based on a decentralized model with a centralized monitoring
DER =R N system. The Group’s strategy is to maintain a streamlined risk
management process to identify, analyze and mitigate various

risks in an efficient and effective manner.

TtERBEERF CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS
EEg Board of Directors

[ Bz BE 22 Risk monitoring

TE B R 2R B M R Reporting on regular and ad hoc basis

¥BEN Business Unit

& 7

N
=2
w7 St
o a3 7l 2 g DA~ W RORAR R B
Step 1: Step 2:
Risk Identification Risk Analysis, Evaluation Risk Monitoring and
" and Mitigation Performance Evaluation
s
- = : % -
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Corporate Risk Management

We identify and assess risks both at the Group and business unit
levels, and incorporate risk management into our business planning.
At the end of each year, the Group’s business unit undertakes a review
of potential risks which fall within its business and operation area.
The Group’s business unit then performs risk reviews including risk
mapping, analysis and evaluation of their probability of occurrence
and impact. Identified risks are reported together with the explanation
of its nature and proposed risk management strategies to the Group
during the business plan review session at the beginning of each year.
In addition to the annual exercise, our regular reporting system of the
Group’s business unit also facilitates ongoing risk identification and the
reporting of risks.

When risks are identified, the assigned risk owner is responsible for
analyzing the probability of their occurrence and potential impact.
Priority will be given to risks with high probability and serious negative
impact. The risk owner then designs appropriate procedures and
actions for risk mitigation and acts accordingly. Implementation cost
is also taken into account when devising the action plan. During the
implementation, we also emphasize the balance of risks and benefits to
ensure long term business success.

After risk identification, analysis, evaluation and mitigation, evaluation
reports are submitted to the Group through the regular reporting
mechanism. To prevent the same risks from occurring again, preventive
actions and procedures to improve operational efficiency are also
incorporated into the risk management and internal control systems.
In addition, our Internal Audit Department undertakes independent
reviews on risk management and internal control systems, and our
management is responsible for ensuring appropriate actions which are
taken to rectify any control deficiencies highlighted in the audit reports
within a reasonable period of time.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

]

EATEBENEBIE Y —  NEBFH  As one of the leading beer enterprises in China, the Group has
BECEHESETsEE - TR [EFHAl  a profound understanding of the importance of its corporate
2 EFAEI TS EFH - AEKABKAR  social responsibilities. Mindful of its “Create Better Life
EBMETMEENE - REERBHETHE  Together” social responsibility mission, the Group is committed
CET ERAUZBERXERL £45%EK%E  to becoming a trusted and beloved beer enterprise. By actively
BMBEARBMR - BUOIRISELE o fulfilling its social responsibilities, implementing sustainable
development, combining its competitive advantages and
extensive network of business, the Group is committed to giving

back to the society.

EEHE COMMUNITY CARE

AEBERHERERARERLIE ¥E The Group pays much attention to community services and social

BFERNBGEA HEEFEE - #3)  welfare activities. During the year under review, the Group was

HEER - REERH ZEHEMMTIRAT  proactively involved in helping the underprivileged and advancing

TMEEHE  LRBEEZMESEE - & the community development. The activities supported by the

HEHEL BT NMEER —BERLKHE - Group hewed closely to the needs of the community, such as
education and cultural preservation. The Group also encouraged
its consumers, staff and suppliers to participate actively.

REFEBE L F2HEERRE RN
2 %R BRETT | BEEY -
The Group participated the
“Oxfam Walkathon” charity
event organized by Oxfam for
consecutive years.

—E-RF—R- Zﬁglﬁfﬁbﬁi?ﬁ%%% In January 2016, the Group helped and supported the “Oxfam

- ESEBLme R [HEKERLET] Walkathon” organized by the Hong Kong charity Oxfam. Staff of
BIRERA—RRAKBEAASE E)Fﬂ the Group and their family participated in the Walkathon at Pak

B2 1T LA”?"EZiAﬁﬁ/EifTEEh&Zi Shek Kok Promenade in Tai Po. The Group wanted to raise public
AR EELBENKEER awareness about global poverty and social injustices, and in

L BRERABHEIE response to Oxfam’s global poverty alleviation, humanitarian aid

and public education.
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Corporate Social Responsibility ‘e

During the year under review, the Group organized the “Snow
Great Expedition” series for the 12th year, under the theme of
“Snow Great Expedition, Challenge the Unclimbed by College
Students” for 2016. Out of over a million college student
applicants, around 30 conquered an unclimbed 5,116-metre-tall
peak in Yunnan Province. Throughout the campaign, the Group
hopes to deliver the spirit of “ambitious, challenging and
innovative” to the college students, and encourage them to
overcome challenges with fortitude as they explore their future.

ERERBEBRRNEHKEKRE
I | IR [HEER - k& - Bl
AR ©
“Snow Great Expedition,
Challenge the Unclimbed by
College Students” delivers
the spirit of “ambitious,
challenging and innovative”.

In May 2016, the Group, together with the School of Architecture,
Tsinghua University, started the annual “Snow Draft Beer Ingenuity in
Craft” photo competition on Chinese ancient buildings. The theme for
the 2016 competition was “Huyou” (FFHE) , which are the doors and
windows found in ancient standalone buildings in China. This was
another effort by the Group in bringing out the beauty in the exquisite
structural components of ancient buildings - following its 2015
campaign that focused on “Dougong” (2}#) . From over 1 million
candidates, the selected photographers physically experienced and
took pictures of “Huyou” (&) in the provinces of Jiangsu and Shanxi,
in Beijing and other places. The works were judged by experts on
ancient architecture, professional photographers and representatives
from the national media, with 10 finalists earning the title of “Snow
Draft Beer Ingenuity in Craft Photographer of the Year”. Alongside the
main competition, there was an additional competition debuting this
year for college students, which motivated more youth to experience
the uniqueness and attractiveness of ancient architecture, and
appreciate ancient architecture culture in China.
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in Craft” photo competition on Chinese

ancient buildings in 2016 was “Huyou” (F &)

(Doors and Windows).
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The theme for the “Snow Draft Beer Ingenuity

Over the years, the “Snow Draft Beer Ingenuity in Craft” photo
competition has attracted over 4.7 million contestants with more
than 8.9 million entries, making it as one of the largest photography
competitions on ancient architecture in China. The competition
made more people interested in the exquisite structural components
of ancient Chinese architecture, and facilitated their appreciation
for the underlying idea of “Ingenuity in Craft” through finding and
shooting the components.

In addition, during the year under review, the Group and the School
of Architecture, Tsinghua University had co-published the 5-volume
“Map of the Ancient Architecture” in its second series. It was also the
seventh series of “Ancient Chinese Architecture of Popularization
and Inheritance Series” that the Group co-published with Tsinghua
University, which is authored by experts from the School of
Architecture at Tsinghua University and includes ancient architecture
from eight provinces and cities. They provide readers not only
real-life vivid pictures and geographical locations, but also detailed
information and systematical knowledge about existing ancient
buildings that includes useful information such as local transportation
and contact details. In this way, the Group encourages readers to
experience the magnificence of the Chinese ancient architecture.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group practises the principle of sustainable development and
incorporates the policy and practice of environmental management
and energy conservation into its business development, so as to
reduce the impact from business operations on the environment.
And by organizing and supporting various environmental protection
activities, the Group promotes awareness of environmental
protection among its staff, customers, suppliers and people from
different walks of life. The ultimate aim is to preserve the earth’'s
precious resources and create a better environment together.

EEEE (#8%) B2 F China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited



BT RE IR BE

REIEBFEER - AL B GRS &R
REFE M - BLIERIAIT BRI B R sk b J7 BT S 2
VIBERURE R NIRIEE B EEERE
BEERERE  F_T—ANFHNENERGARE
BOHFER L TR B B10% - K m 54 M
SAERERRE  ABREREE S5 28R
FRLH BEEEEAESHAARE
4000870 BN GRENRES
HE ; WetfLIRBRRBEEAERESR A
T R 13 HE RN FE FR B0 RS SR BE T BT - BT T
2 HES  ReEERPEREITKTE - K=
T—RF - AEBERASEREESHOAR
#3,0008 70 © BHEENAE R BETA B #2518 o
R ERED  IHBFTMNTEIRK
BRWEWBFIMTA REBELE] K
(4 BEHE] -

RRER

AEBB N MEFRIRREGES EEE - AR
SEEMEREER - —T—F AREE
fE2 M [t RRIFA | [2EERSEE]
[2BEHRA | ELE2RREHEESEHRE
AP o AEBTHERNRREREEERER
FHIEE  RREMABRREEER -

)

SR AR

Corporate Social Responsibility

ENERGY CONSERVATION AND WASTE REDUCTION 3

During the year under review, the Group took proactive measures in energy
conservation and waste reduction, which included the adoption of much
stricter standards than the national or local ones. The Group constantly
advanced energy conservation and waste reduction in production
process, achieving an over 10% year-on-year decrease in comprehensive
energy consumption per unit product. The Group eliminated heavily
polluting and high-energy-consumption equipments, adjusted energy
structure and increased the proportion of clean energy. It invested more
than RMB40 million in projects such as the usage of burning natural gas
instead of coal and the desulfurization and dust removal. Also, the Group
strengthened environmental risk control, eliminated hidden dangers, and
actively promoted and applied new technologies, techniques and products
of energy-conservation and waste reduction that improved its technical
ability to conserve energy and reduce waste. In 2016, the Group invested
approximately RMB30 million in such efforts, undertaking 25 projects in
energy conservation and reduction of emissions. Its factories, such as
those in Wuhan, Hubei Province, and in Taizhou, Jiangsu Province, were
named by the local governments as “Environmental Credible Enterprise”
or “Green Level Enterprise”.

PROMOTION OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The group participated in various environmental and energy-saving
promotion activities, to enhance staff awareness of energy
conservation and emission reduction. The Group participated in
national thematic educational activities such as “World Environment
Day”, “National Energy Conservation Week” and “National
Low-Carbon Day” during the year under review.

AN EBATES B 33 75 U
VTR B RIRIER NIFHEIR -
The Group adopted the much

stricter standards than the
national or local ones.
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“Rising Stars” training program allows new staff to get
accustomed to the Company’s business and corporate culture
.. as‘soon as possible.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group believes that human resources are one of the most valuable
assets and a core driving force for the success of a company. In view of
this, the Group takes an active interest in its employees’ physical and
mental health, creating a pleasant and caring working environment.
It communicates with employees through different channels in order
to enhance staff loyalty. Also, by organizing various types of activities,
the Group promotes a healthy work-life balance. In addition, the Group
continues to offer training and development opportunities to boost
their overall competitiveness and productivity.

The Group attaches great importance to staff training. It continuously
improves its staff development system and pays attention to enhancing
staff skills. In 2016, the average staff training hours of the Group’s beer
business reached 17 hours. Staff training coverage reached 100%
that all staff completed the assigned training. The Group offered an
“i-Learning” online platform and continued to conduct the “Rising Stars”
training program for new staff so that they could get accustomed to
the Company’s business and corporate culture as soon as possible.
In addition, the Group made great efforts with various measures for
staff caring, including the introduction of a “Relief Fund”, to provide
assistance to staff that are in need.

The Group emphasizes production safety, and adheres to a
people-oriented and safety-first management philosophy. In 2016, the
beer business carried out a 700,000-hour safety training for staff and a
140,000-hour training for related parties. The Group conducted security
checks at all levels and invested more than RMB40 million as safety
production project expenses, to improve, transform and maintain safety
equipment and facilities in order to provide a safe working environment.

FOOD SAFETY AND PRODUCT QUALITY

The Group attaches great importance to the increasing public
demand for food safety and product quality. To that end, the
Group is abided by high quality standards and committed to
providing high-quality products and services, as part of the
efforts to maintain its overall reputation.

REFZBELRHE  BEUARER  Z2ERMNERER -
The Group emphasizes production safety, and adheres to a
people-oriented and safety-first management philosophy.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

In accordance with existing internal policies, the Group
continues to refine its system of quality standards and food
safety. In 2016, over 30 technical quality standards were
established and amended in order to strictly control the
product quality. In addition, the Group has devoted research and
development to product diversity and uniqueness to enrich the
product categories and satisfy customers’ needs.

Furthermore, the Group has consistently implemented a
management control system, including quality control system
(IS09001), environmental management system (ISO14000),
Occupational Health and Safety management system
(OHSAS180001) and food safety management system (1S022000)
etc. This serves the purpose of ensuring the product quality and
conforming internal management to systematic, scientific and
standardized norms. During the year under review, the Group
rolled out unannounced inspections on carton packaging of
the beer products without prior notice, to further enhance the
quality of the product packaging.

In 2016, the Group’s beer products had a 100% pass rate both
in the quality test and the spot tests run by the National Safety
Supervision and Inspection, respectively. The scores of the
quality, packaging and integrated quality were higher than those
in 2015.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group has strict internal guidelines for its supply chain
management. The beer division conducts monthly assessments
of the operating processes of the suppliers with seven different
standards, including the rate of quality passes, timeliness,
accuracy, declined orders, returned goods, violation behaviours and
flawed products. Contracts will be terminated for failure to comply
with the requirements. The Group also evaluates and renews the
supplier list every year to ensure their service qualities.

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

To refine the Group’s customer service quality, the Group established
a rapid market complaint response system, utilizing a unified
national customer service hotline to standardize the process of
handling customer complaints. The Group also improved factory
production information management so as to trace the production
source rapidly and accurately, which enables the customers to
experience the Group’s high quality services and raises the corporate
image.

To increase customer satisfaction, the Group continually improves the
quality of its products and services, reduces the number of complaints
and lowers the potential risk of producing contaminated beer in the
first place, by changing the recycling method and optimizing the source
management of the beer bottles. In addition, the Group established key
controlling points throughout the production chain, strengthening the
inspection of the production process and categorizing the complaints
rate into the quality assessment. All this was aimed at preventing the
production of contaminated beer. In 2016, the Group launched the-project-
“Trace back from the customer end so as to reduce product complaints’,
demonstrating its efforts to continually improve customer satisfaction.

F 3] 2016 Annual Report
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It is the firm belief of the Company that a good and solid
corporate governance framework is essential to the successful
growth of the Company and the enhancement of shareholder
value. The Company is committed to attaining and maintaining
high standards of corporate governance and adopts principles of
corporate governance emphasising a quality Board, accountability
to all stakeholders, open communication and fair disclosure.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

On 8 April 2005, the Company adopted the Corporate Governance
Practice Manual (“CG Manual”). The CG Manual which was
revised on 31 March 2009, 18 November 2010, 21 March 2012,
7 December 2015 and 18 March 2016, incorporates almost
all the Code Provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
(“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”) and includes the
implementation details for the Code Provisions and, where
appropriate, the Recommended Best Practices. The CG Manual
can be downloaded from our website and copies are available on
request to the Company Secretary.

The Company has complied with the Code Provisions set out in
the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, save
and except the following:

In respect of Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all the non-
executive directors are not appointed for a fixed term. The Board
does not believe in any arbitrary term of office. The current
arrangement will give the Company sufficient flexibility to organize
the composition of the Board to serve the needs of the Group.
Further, the Articles of Association of the Company requires that
one third of the directors (including executive and non-executive
directors) shall retire each year and every director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The directors
to retire each year shall be those appointed by the Board during the
year and those who have been longest in office since their election
or re-election. A retiring director is eligible for re-election.

In respect of Code Provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, the Board did
not have a policy concerning diversity of Board members but the
Board is actively considering the adoption of the relevant policy.

In respect of Code Provision C.1.2 of the CG Code, the Company has not
provided all members of the Board with monthly updates to enable
the Board as a whole and each director to discharge their duties.
However, the Company has based on business situation, provided to
the Board from time to time, updated business information to enable
the Board as a whole and each director to discharge their duties.
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Corporate Governance Report

In respect of Code Provision D.1.4 of the CG Code, the Company did not
have formal letters of appointment for directors. However, the directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. In addition,
the directors are required to refer to the guidelines set out in “A Guide
on Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies Registry and “Guidelines
for Directors”, and, if applicable, “Guide for Independent Non-Executive
Directors” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors in
performing their duties and responsibilities as directors of the Company.
Besides, the directors are required to comply with the requirements
under the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements.

In addition to meeting the requirements of the Listing Rules, the
inclusion of the Corporate Governance Report in this Annual Report is
intended to keep our shareholders abreast of the corporate governance
practices of the Company and their development throughout the
reporting year and to invite our shareholders’ views thereon.

THE BOARD

The Board represents shareholders in managing the Company’s
affairs. The directors recognise their responsibilities to enhance
shareholder value and to conduct themselves in accordance
with their duty of care and integrity.

The major issues which are brought before the Board for their
decisions include:

1. direction of the operational strategies of the Group;

2. setting the policies relating to key business and financial
objectives of the Company;

3. monitoring the performance of the management;

4. approval of material acquisitions, investments, divestments,
disposal of assets or any significant capital expenditure of
the Group;

5.  ensuring a prudent and effective risk management and
internal control systems;

6. review of the financial performance and results of the
Company; and

7. recommendation to shareholders of the Company on final
dividend and the declaration of any interim or special dividends.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out in paragraph D.3.1 of the CG Code, and
in this regard the duties of the Board shall include:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

2. toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and the senior management;

3.  toreview and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Company; and

5.  to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report as referred
to in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
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During the year under review, the Board considered the following
corporate governance matters:

. approval of the Corporate Governance Report of the Company;

. amendments to CG Manual of the Company;

. proposal for adoption of new articles of association of the
Company; and

. review of the results of the internal audit work on the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of each financial period which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flows for that period. The financial statements are prepared
and presented to enable a clear and balanced assessment of the
financial position of the Group. Regular management reports on
the financial position and prospects of the Group are reviewed
by the Executive Committee to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of the performance of the Company.

In the financial year ended 31 December 2016, and up to the
date of this Report, there were the following changes to the
membership of the Board:

1. Mr. Liu Hongji resigned as Vice Chairman and Executive
Director; Mr. Hong Jie resigned as Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director; Mr. Du Wenmin, Mr. Wei Bin, Mr. Yan Biao,
Mr. Chen Ying and Mr. Wang Yan resigned as Non-Executive
Director; Mr. Wang Qun was appointed as Vice Chairman and
Executive Director; Mr. Hou Xiaohai was appointed as Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director; and Mr. Chen Rong
was appointed as Non-Executive Director, on 15 April 2016.

2. Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank has been re-designated from Executive
Director to Non-Executive Director and resigned as the Chief
Financial Officer; and Mr. Lai Po Sing, Tomakin was appointed as
Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director, on 1 June 2016.

3. Mr. Wang Qun resigned as Vice Chairman and Executive
Director on 7 November 2016.

As at the date of this Report, the Board comprises 10 directors,
including three executive directors (which contain the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer), two non-
executive directors and five independent non-executive directors.
The biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 28
to 33 of this Annual Report and can also be found on our website.
The relationships (including financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships) if any, among members of the
Board are disclosed. There is no such relationship as between the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company
has received written confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive directors confirming his independence from the
Company, and considers all of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

FEEEAE (#R) B2 T China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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The experience and views of our independent non-executive
directors are held in high regard and contribute to the effective
direction of the Group. Throughout the year of 2016, the Company
complied with the requirements under the Listing Rules by
maintaining the proportion of its independent non-executive
directors to at least one third of the total members of the Board.

The Company has put in place a tailored induction programme for its
newly appointed directors. Continuing development and information
are provided to the directors to keep them abreast of the latest
developments involving the Group’s business and operations.

The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed from
time to time to ensure that the Board has a balanced composition
of skills and expertise appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company. Appointments are first considered by the
Nomination Committee. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee are then put to the full Board for decision.

All directors (including executive and non-executive directors) are
not appointed for a fixed term. The Board does not believe in any
arbitrary term of office and would like to retain sufficient flexibility
to organise the composition of the Board to serve the needs of
the Group. All directors are subject to re-election by shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting following their
appointment and at least once every three years on a rotation
basis. The Articles of Association of the Company require that
one-third of the directors (including executive and non-executive
directors) shall retire each year. The directors who are required to
retire each year shall be those appointed by the Board during the
year and those who have been longest in office since their election
or re-election. A retiring director is eligible for re-election.

During the year of 2016, the positions of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer were held separately. The role of Chairman
was held by Mr. Chen Lang and Mr. Hou Xiaohai held the position of
Chief Executive Officer (prior to 15 April 2016, Mr. Hong Jie held this
position). The segregation of duties of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer ensures a clear distinction in the Chairman’s
responsibility to manage the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer’s responsibility to manage the Company’s business. The
respective responsibilities of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are more fully set out in the CG Manual.

Mr. Chen Lang, the Chairman has attended the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 25 May 2016. The Chief Executive
Officer and either the chairman or at least one member of the Audit
Committee, Compensation Committee and Nomination Committee
attended the annual general meeting to ensure effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company. Separate
resolution was proposed at the annual general meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including re-election of each retiring
director and was put to vote at the meeting by way of poll. Detailed
procedures for conducting a poll were explained at the meeting.

F 3] 2016 Annual Report
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ExeegRIBFANRESEE (ROE

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year at

FEEM—R) c REHEREI - EFEHLE  approximately quarterly intervals. Between these regular meetings,
BREMEE - LX%ET&%EEK%%% (T~ the Board meets to discuss and consider major issues (whether or

Eﬂatﬁi‘%ﬁ, B ERE) &ﬁf@ﬁ%%%%ﬁf’ﬁ
HAEHNEE - FRESESNEHEH

E-ROEVLRFIEEEENSHBANNR
SR AR E D3RER XS HHIE NAR

not required by the Listing Rules) and also on other occasions when
Board decisions are required. With respect to regular meetings of
the Board, directors usually receive at least 14 days prior written
notice of the meeting and an agenda with supporting Board papers

E EENXM  BEEBREMER - ETFER  no less than 3 days prior to the meeting. With respect to other
BTEEHBAE - I FEMRAINE  meetings called, directors are given as much notice as is reasonable

REFTERZDNEABEAREENMBIER
SR

and practicable in the circumstances. The directors have full access
to information on the Group and independent professional advice
whenever deemed necessary by the directors.

EEeR_T—NEHBHE14K 25 (B3 During the year of 2016, 14 meetings (including meetings by way of
EMAZR)  BESN - — NELHFER  circulation of written resolutions) were held by the Board. The attendance

RRg EFfggzs
MEzEeeRERZBEeeRNFRER

BEVRZBEEEE#

of the directors at general meetings, Board meetings, Audit Committee
meetings, Compensation Committee meetings and Nomination

T%: Committee meetings held in 2016 is set out in the table below:
RREFAE
Annual Exg ERZEE® FMERE REZEE
General Board Audit Compensation Nomination
Meeting (BEHFERY Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
(BREERH Meeting(s) (BREERY (ERHERE (FRLREARY
Meeting attended/ Meeting(s) ~ Meeting(s)  Meeting(s)
attended/ BT R Hheld) attended/  attended/  attended/
E17XEheld) R S w BT RHheld) #TXHheld) 21TXEheld)
#1723 Executive Directors
BRSASTAE Mr. Chen Lang 1/1 414 3/3 7/7
%%i%i’“ Mr. Hou Xiaohai'” 11 2/3 2/2 5/5
PEBL A Mr. Lai Po Sing, Tomakin®  A@BN/A 2/2 2/2 3/3 THEAN/A
ARG Mr. Hong Jie® T@AN/A 0/1 1/1 2/2
B R5 Y Mr. Liu Hongji® THEAN/A 1/1 1/1 2/2
g &t Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank® 0/1 2/2 11 4/4 2/2
FRELO Mr. Wang Qun® 0/1 0/2 0/1 5/5
¥ TES Non-Executive Directors
BRREAD Mr. Chen Rong” 11 3/3 2/2 5/5
RLIESLES Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank® TEAN/A 22 22 3/3
HXREAE® Mr. Du Wenmin® EFN/A 11 11 2/2
Lo Mr. Wei Bin® TEAN/A 0/1 " 2/2
BRI Mr. Yan Biao® TEAN/A 0/1 11 2/2
BRIE £ Mr. Chen Ying® TEAN/A 1/1 1/1 2/2
TERE® Mr. Wang Yan® THEFIN/A /1 11 2/2
B k4 1TEE Independent Non-Executive Directors
BABLA Mr. Houang Tai Ninh 1/1 4/4 3/3 717 2/2 3/3 2/2
FRREEL Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 171 3/4 3/3 77 2/2 23 2/2
gREEL Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses 11 4/4 3/3 7/7 2/2 3/3
BREREAE Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan 0/1 3/4 1/3 7/7 2/2 2/2
AL Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon 11 4/4 3/3 7/7 3/3 2/2
—REENEERY
Total number of meetings held in 2016 1 14 2 39 200

P 5E:

Notes:

R:  TEHI®E Regular Meeting

S FBRlE % Special Meeting

W: EE/}%

%2 Written Resolutions
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(1) GEEBEEN_ZT-—RFOUATERRZEREENTE LRITES -
Mr. Hou Xiaohai appointed as Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director on 15 April 2016.
(2) BREBEENR-_Z—RERNA-—BRZETRERIUBERIITES -
Mr. Lai Po Sing, Tomakin appointed as Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director on 1 June 2016.
() HRAEER-Z-REMATHERHIERRITERPITES -
Mr. Hong Jie resigned as Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director on 15 April 2016.
(4) BAEEER_Z-—RFHATHREHIRIEFERHNITES -

Mr. Liu Hongji resigned as Vice Chairman and Executive Director on 15 April 2016.

(6) BAERAER-T—

NEANA-BHRRTEERRERINTESREHIEARENBE -

Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank re-designated from Executive Director to Non-Executive Director and resigned as Chief

Financial Officer on 1 June 2016.
(6) FEEER-ZT—

ANEOA+THAARRERBERERNTES  ERR T~ R"E+— A CHEHELERL -

Mr. Wang Qun appointed as Vice Chairman and Executive Director on 15 April 2016 and resigned from these positions

on 7 November 2016.

7)) BRREER-Z-—R"FUATHERZERIFNTES -
Mr. Chen Rong appointed as Non-Executive Director on 15 April 2016.

(8) MXEREAL - BMEL  BHRELE BRELERTELEEN-ZT—

NEMATRHBEFERTES -

Mr. Du Wenmin, Mr. Wei Bin, Mr. Yan Biao, Mr. Chen Ying and Mr. Wang Yan resigned as Non-Executive Director on 15

April 2016.
9) FME=EERE -

HAMRAGHLRET - BB —RAETEARREABE -

Among the Compensation Committee resolutions, two were passed by way of physical meeting and one was passed

by way of written resolutions.

REE AR

Heh—RAGHRET - BB —RAEFEARREARE -

Among the Nomination Committee resolutions, one was passed by way of physical meeting and one was passed by

way of written resolutions.

BT

RENERERTAIRFEALLE  28E
ERERBIEXRRR  BRUTHENE
Kicgt - NEREEEHERBEEE ALY
BRBZEATHERRFELEM -

ARREREERARFBERIIREEHRA

ElI

BENRECEETRRGEERENALT
RAEEFHEEARREERE L ZEEER -
ARATREEAMEFN - UBRRERES
Z AAR AN S I E

2RESHRSBH2EFETXER - YA
BN BB R EANFT - RAREBEBBAALR
ASEEB  EMEEEMHEENTE
$ o

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company has put in place an on-going training and
professional development program for directors.

Each newly appointed director would receive an induction
package covering the statutory and regulatory obligations of
a director of a listed company. The Company also provides
briefings and other training to develop and refresh the directors’
knowledge and skill.

All directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has sent reading materials
to directors on regulatory updates or information relevant to the
Company or its business.

F 3] 2016 Annual Report
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ARFCDEETRBEENFARIHERHE
BRIEII 28 - BRAFBIHNTK

The Company has received from all directors records of their
continuous professional development trainings during the year.
Details of which are set out in below table:

BEEXBER2ER
Type of Continuous Professional Development
BEEEY| - HEWNS REBEBBEANTR

R/ BEER RRE HEW 2 B
BRANE KRR EEEMRESR
23K AREHA Reading regulatory
Receiving training, updates or
attending and/or giving information relevant
talks at seminar and/or to the Company
conference and/or forums or its business
${TEE Executive Directors
FREASE & Mr. Chen Lang v v
mEBEE Mr. Hou Xiaohai v v
RERLA Mr. Lai Po Sing, Tomakin v v
JEE{TEE Non-Executive Directors
BRER S A4 Mr. Chen Rong v v/
BRI Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank v v
B I EITEE Independent Non-Executive Directors
BARESLE Mr. Houang Tai Ninh v v/
FREEL Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric v v
BREE L Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses v v
BRE B EE Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan v v
AT ST Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon v v

EEERE
BN RN MBI E B R IES REE

ARBWEME  BFRARATAASETE
TR :

1. RE®- %%AﬂiTTH&EE’Ji
BEERTARRETHERE - £
MEZEERENTZES ﬁ?ﬁf%i%

T EFEHRRBEC REZZEELHM

ZEBE JIHNTRES  ERXZE

g REZBELFMZEESRAEN

BE DeEARNBESEHCH

HREXERFMP  NRE LHRE

REEMEE - AHER - &

2. HFHTE —ARRAEBNAEERE
THEXHEFATERE  MEEH
TEAIAREZEERE -

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

While the Board retains at all times full responsibility for guiding
and monitoring the Company, certain responsibilities of the
Board are delegated as follows:

1. Committees — various committees have been established
by the Board to administer certain specified functions of the
Company’s affairs. The main committees include: the Executive
Committee, the Finance Committee, the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Compensation Committee.
The terms of reference of the Executive Committee, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Compensation
Committee which set out, among other things, the duties,
functions and composition of these committees are set out in
the CG Manual and available on the Company’s website; and

2. Chief Executive Officer — the day-to-day management of
the Company’s business is delegated to the Chief Executive
Officer who is accountable to the Board.

FEEEAE (#R) B2 T China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee comprised
four Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Houang
Tai Ninh (chairman), Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, Mr. Bernard Charnwut
Chan and Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon, and one Executive
Director, Mr. Lai Po Sing, Tomakin. The duties of the Nomination
Committee include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board and to make recommendation after such review
and to assess the suitability and qualification of any proposed
director candidate. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee are then put forward for consideration and adoption,
where appropriate, by the Board. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee setting out its duties and procedures
was revised on 21 March 2012 and 7 December 2015, and
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting and passed a written resolution.
The work of the Nomination Committee included the following
recommendations to the Board:

. the appointments of (i) Mr. Wang Qun as Vice Chairman and
Executive Director, (ii) Mr. Hou Xiaohai as Chief Executive
Officer and Executive Director, and (iii) Mr Chen Rong as
Non-Executive Director;

. the appointment of Mr. Lai Po Sing, Tomakin as Chief
Financial Officer, Executive Director and Company
Secretary; and

. review the structure, size and composition of the Board.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2016, the Compensation Committee
comprised four Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely
Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon (chairman), Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr.
Li Ka Cheung, Eric and Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses. The duties of
the Compensation Committee include making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure of
remuneration of directors and senior management, establishing
a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy
on remuneration and determining the specific remuneration
packages for all directors and senior management. The terms of
reference of the Compensation Committee setting out its duties
and procedures was revised on 21 March 2012 and 7 December
2015, and are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The remuneration of the directors and senior executives
is determined with reference to the performance and
responsibilities of the individual, the performance of the Group,
prevailing market conditions and remuneration benchmarks
from comparable companies. Directors and employees also
participate in bonus arrangements based on the performance of
the Group and the individual.

F 3] 2016 Annual Report
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During the year under review, the Compensation Committee met
twice and passed one written resolutions on matters including:

. recommendations on the directors fees to the Board;
. approval of the remuneration packages of the directors; and
. approval of the incentive award to the senior management

of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee comprised four
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Dr. Li Ka Cheung,
Eric (chairman), Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses
and Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan. One of its members has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. No member of this Committee
is a member of the former or existing auditors of the Company.
The membership of the Audit Committee has complied with
the Listing Rules requirement that the majority of its members
must be independent and one of whom must have appropriate
professional qualification. The existing terms of reference of the
Audit Committee which was revised on 18 November 2010, are
modeled on “A Guide for Effective Audit Committee” issued by
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and have
also adopted the principles set out in the CG Code for the time
being in force. Pursuant to the amendments to Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, the terms of reference of the Audit Committee
was further revised on 21 March 2012 and 7 December 2015,
and are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The duties of the Audit Committee include considering and
making recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors, review of the
Company’s financial information and oversight of the Company’s
financial report system and internal control procedures.
During the year under review, the Audit Committee met on two
occasions. The work of the Audit Committee in 2016 included
reviews of:

. the external auditor’s report to the Audit Committee in
respect of 2015 audit;

. the 2015 annual report and annual results announcement;

. audit strategy memorandum in respect of the 2016 audit
by the external auditor;

. connected party transactions;

. the 2016 interim report and interim results announcement;

. the reports of internal audit activities;

. the staffing and resources of the Group’s Internal Audit
Department; and
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
functions.

During the reporting year, the Audit Committee met with the
external auditor on two occasions.

FEEEAE (#R) B2 T China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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The Audit Committee has considered the performance and
independence of the external auditor of the Company. The Audit
Committee concludes that the independence of the external auditor
of the Company has not been compromised by non-audit services
performed for the Group. The statement by the external auditor about
its reporting responsibilities relating to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 70 to 81. During the year under review,
audit fees paid and payable to the Company’s external auditor
amount to approximately RMB11 million (2015: approximately RMB31
million); fees related to non-audit services paid and payable amount
to approximately RMB1 million (2015: approximately RMB1 million).

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The interests held by the directors in the Company’s securities
as at 31 December 2016 are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on
pages 59 to 61 of this Annual Report. On 8 April 2005, the Company
has adopted a Code of Ethics and Securities Transactions (“Code
of Ethics”) which incorporates the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Code of Ethics has been
amended, approved and reconfirmed by the Board on 6 April 2006, 4
April 2007, 31 March 2008 and further revised on 31 March 2009, 18
November 2010, and 7 December 2015 respectively. The prohibitions
on securities dealing and disclosure requirements in the Code of
Ethics also apply to specified individuals who include the Group’s
senior management and persons who are privy to inside information
of the Group. The Code of Ethics is on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code. Having made
specific enquiry with the directors, all directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board assumes overall responsibility to establish and maintain
sound systems in risk management, internal control and governance
to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives. The Board confirms
that it is the overall responsibility of the Board to establish and
effectively implement the risk management and internal control
systems to ensure the smooth operation of business, safeguard the
Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests as well as ensure the
reliability of financial statements.

The Group adopts the control framework consistent with the
frameworks recommended by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission in the United States
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as the
standards in establishing risk management and control systems
among our Group companies. The Group’s risk management and
internal control system includes five key elements, namely the
existence of an effective control environment, risk management,
communication and information system, cost effective control
activities and monitoring mechanism.
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The Group requires its business unit to identify and assess the risks
and impact at least once every year. The executive management team
of the business unit is accountable for the conduct and performance
of each operation in the business unit within the agreed strategies
and similarly the management of each operation is accountable for
its conduct and performance. Policies and procedures are designed
for safeguarding corporate assets, maintaining proper accounting
records and ensuring transactions are executed in accordance with
management authorisation. Monthly management reports on the
financial results and key operation indicators are reviewed by the
Executive Committee of the Board. Regular meetings are held with
the executive management team of the business unit to review the
actual performance against budget.

Our Internal Audit Function, reporting to the Audit Committee
and Chairman of the Board respectively, is responsible for
assessing the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, formulating an impartial opinion on the effectiveness
and efficiency of the systems, and reporting its findings to
the Executive Committee and the Audit Committee. Follow-
up review will be conducted in due course to ensure that
audit recommendations are being properly implemented. The
Internal Audit conducts independent reviews on the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems on an on-going basis.

Depending on the nature and risk exposure of the Group’s business,
the scope of work performed by the internal audit function
covers all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.

Results of internal audit activities are reported to the Audit
Committee at least once semi-annually and the corrective
actions are taken by the business unit. The Board conducts
regular reviews of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems through the Internal Audit Department and the
Audit Committee.

With respect to internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company shall assess
the circumstances under which inside information may arise
from time to time and disclose inside information as soon
as reasonably practicable in accordance with the Securities
and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The Company
conducts its business affairs with close regard to the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities
and Futures Commission and imposes a strict prohibition on
the unauthorised use of confidential or inside information
by directors, employees and other relevant persons (such as
external service providers and project working team members).
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Based on the assessment for the year ended 31 December
2016, the Board and the Audit Committee believe that the risk
management and internal control systems provide reasonable
assurance that the Group’s assets are safeguarded and there is
no significant area of concerns that may affect shareholders.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

In order to bring the Company’s Articles of Association in line
with the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (“Companies Ordinance”), the adoption of the new articles of
association (the “New Articles of Association”) was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting held
on 25 May 2016. The New Articles of Association is available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

In accordance with Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance, the
directors are required to call a general meeting if the Company
has received requests to do so from members of the Company
representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the members
having a right to vote at general meeting. Such requests must (a) state
the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting;
and (b) may include the text of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting. Such requests
(a) may be sent to the Company in hard copy form (by depositing at
the registered office of the Company for the attention of the Board)
or in electronic form (by email: ir@cre.com.hk); and (b) must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it. In accordance with
Section 567 of the Companies Ordinance, the directors must call a
meeting within 21 days after the date on which they become subject
to the requirement under Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance
and such meeting must be held on a date not more than 28 days after
the date of the notice convening the meeting.
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Besides, Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance provides that the
Company must give notice of a resolution if it has received requests
that it do so from (a) the members of the Company representing at
least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the members who have
a right to vote on the resolution at the annual general meeting to
which the requests relate; or (b) at least 50 members who have
a right to vote on the resolution at the annual general meeting to
which the requests relate. Such requests (a) may be sent to the
Company in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered office
of the Company for the attention of the Board) or in electronic form
(by email: ir@cre.com.hk); (b) must identify the resolution of which
notice is to be given; (c) must be authenticated by the person or
persons making it; and (d) must be received by the Company not
later than (i) 6 weeks before the annual general meeting to which
the requests relate; or (ii) if later, the time at which notice is given of
that meeting. Section 616 of the Companies Ordinance provides that
the Company that is required under Section 615 of the Companies
Ordinance to give notice of a resolution must send a copy of it at the
Company’s own expense to each member of the Company entitled to
receive notice of the annual general meeting (a) in the same manner
as the notice of the meeting; and (b) at the same time as, or as soon
as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the meeting.

Pursuant to Articles 112 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
no person other than a director retiring at a meeting shall, unless
recommended by the directors, be appointed a director at a general
meeting unless at least seven days' previous notice in writing (to be
lodged no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the
meeting appointed for such election and no later than seven days prior
to the date of such meeting) shall have been given to the Company of the
intention of any member qualified to vote at the meeting to propose any
person other than a retiring director for election to the office of director
with notice executed by that person of his willingness to be appointed.

Not less than three nor more than twenty-eight days before the
date appointed for holding a general meeting notice shall be given
to all who are entitled to receive notice of the meeting of any person
in respect of whom notice has been duly given to the Company
under Article 112.1 of the Articles of Association of the Company.

The aforesaid procedures is available on the website of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The New Articles of Association was adopted on 25 May 2016
by special resolution at the annual general meeting in order to
ensure in line with the Companies Ordinance.

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and fair disclosure of information to its
shareholders. Accurate and fair disclosure is necessary for
shareholders to form their own judgment on the operation and
performance of the Group.

The Company has established a Shareholder’s Communication Policy
and the said policy is available on the website of the Company.

Based on this policy, legitimate questions arising from generally
disclosed information deserves a reasonable reply. The Investor
Relations Department is responsible for managing investor relations
and will respond to such shareholders’and analysts’ enquiries.

The Company’s website provides shareholders, investors, existing
and prospective partners and counterparties with information on the
Company'’s corporate governance practices. Copies of such information
can be obtained from the Company Secretary upon written request.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board by addressing them to the Investor Relations
Department of the Company. The contact details are as follows:

Investor Relations Department

China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
39th Floor, China Resources Building

26 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Email: ir@cre.com.hk

Tel No.: 852-2829 9889

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Registrar.

On behalf of the Board
CHEN LANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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The directors have pleasure in presenting to the shareholders
their report and the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group has been principally engaged in the manufacture,
sales and distribution of beer products. The principal activity of
the Company is investment holding. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are shown on pages 148 to 151. An analysis of the
Group’s performance for the year by regional segments is set out
in note 6 to the financial statements.

GROUP PROFIT

The consolidated profit and loss account is set out on page 82 and
shows the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2016.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends a final dividend of RMB0.08 per share
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil) payable on or
around 16 June 2017 to shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 1 June 2017. The
final dividend, if approved, is to be payable in cash in Hong Kong
dollars which will be converted from RMB at the average CNY
Central Parity Rate announced by the People’s Bank of China
for the five business days prior to and including the date of the
Annual General Meeting (as defined in the below section headed
“Closure of Register of Members”). No interim dividend was paid
during the year (2015: Nil). No special dividend was paid during
the year (2015: HK$12.30 per share).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 22 May 2017 to Thursday, 25 May 2017, both days
inclusive, during which no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to determine the identity of members who
are entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting
to be held on 25 May 2017 (the “Annual General Meeting”), all
share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar,
Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday,
19 May 2017 for registration.

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting, the proposed final dividend will be payable to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company after the close of business at 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 1 June 2017, and the register of members of the
Company will be closed on Thursday, 1 June 2017, during which
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order
to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all share transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates
lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Standard
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 31 May 2017 for registration.
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Report of the-Directors

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for

the year ended 31

December 2016 is set out in the sections headed “Financial
Highlights”, “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion
and Analysis”, “Corporate Risk Management”, “Corporate Social
Responsibility” and “Corporate Governance Report” from pages
10to 11, pages 14 to 17, pages 22 to 25, pages 34 to 35, pages 36
to 41 and pages 42 to 55 respectively of this Annual Report.

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those having
significant impact on the Group. Any changes in the applicable
laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of
relevant employees and business unit from time to time. As far

as the Company is aware, it has complied

in material respects

with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Company.

FIXED ASSETS

Movements in the fixed assets of the Group during the year are
set out in Note 17 to the financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED

Details of the shares issued by the Company during the year
are set out in Note 29 to the financial statements. Further
particulars of such issue are set out in “Management Discussion

and Analysis”.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to

approximately RMB3 million.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date

of this report were as follows:

Mr. Chen Lang (Chairman)
Mr. Hou Xiaohai (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 15 April 2016)

Mr. Lai Po Sing, Tomakin (Chief Financial Officer)

(appointed on 1 June 2016)

Mr. Hong Jie (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 15 April 2016)

Mr. Liu Hongji (Vice Chairman)
(resigned on 15 April 2016)

Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank

(re-designated as a Non-Executive Director and
resigned as the Chief Financial Officer on 1 June 2016)

Mr. Wang Qun (Vice Chairman)
(appointed on 15 April 2016 and resigned
on 7 November 2016)
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Mr. Chen Rong

(appointed on 15 April 2016)
Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank

(re-designated on 1 June 2016)
Mr. Du Wenmin

(resigned on 15 April 2016)
Mr. Wei Bin

(resigned on 15 April 2016)
Mr.Yan Biao

(resigned on 15 April 2016)
Mr. ChenYing

(resigned on 15 April 2016)
Mr. Wang Yan

(resigned on 15 April 2016)

Mr. Houang Tai Ninh

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses
Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan
Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon

In accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Chen Lang, Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank, Mr. Houang
Tai Ninh and Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon shall retire by rotation
at the Annual General Meeting and are eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 115 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Lai Po Sing, Tomakin will retire at the Annual
General Meeting and is eligible for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company, its subsidiaries, its parent company or the subsidiaries of its
parent company were a party and in which a director of the Company
or his connected entities had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of directors are set out on pages 28 to 33.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The name of directors and alternate director who have served on
the board of the subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report is available on the Company’s website at
www.crbeer.com.hk under “Investor Relations — Corporate
Governance”
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that every
director shall be indemnified out of the funds of the Company
against all liability incurred by him as such director in defending
any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is
given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and
costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against the directors of the Company and its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFO”),
which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, including interests
and short positions which the directors and chief executive of the
Company are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO, or which are required to be and are recorded in the register
required to be kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

HiEESEE DL

KRB BB Aggregate
EERE HE %R Number of percentage of
Name of director Long position/Short position shares interest’ (%)
BREA wE 400,000 0.01
Chen Lang Long position
BOL Ik R 149,498 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position
PR E 271,817 0.0
Li Ka Cheung, Eric Long position
PR B e 67,488 0.01
Bernard Charnwut Chan Long position
B 5E Notes:
1. EBARQFARGOPTEBEIERAT 1. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions

R-F—XE+ - A=+ RBE
BBREOEDL -

2. LEXEBEzRGRSEEUNESE
BAZENEHE -

in shares of the Company to the total issued shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2016.

2. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director
in his capacity as beneficial owner.
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(i) M—TEREEE - FEEHER
AEI([EHEM]) EEHTEBR

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

As at the same date, certain directors had interests in the
issued ordinary shares of associated corporations (within

the meaning of the SFO):

(i)  Interests in issued ordinary shares of an associated
corporation, China Resources Land Limited (“CR

&z s Land”):
HiEESEE DL

ROEE Aggregate
BEspns HE KR Number of percentage of
Name of director Long position/Short position shares interest’ (%)
ROkt wE 10,000 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position
FRIE HaE 50,000 0.01
Li Ka Cheung, Eric Long position
B 5k - Notes:
1. IBHEMS REEBE MM LEIL 1. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long

EHBEMN T -RF+-A=+—
HEZTROEBNEDLL -

2. LEXHBEBEZEGZE2HHEFAER
BAEANZIG0RA -

(i) RM—RHEBEEEE — FERRIER
BERAT (EEMR)) 2817

positions in shares of CR Land to the total issued shares of

CR Land as at 31 December 2016.

2. All interests disclosed above are being held by the director

in his capacity as beneficial owner.

(i) Interests in issued ordinary shares of an associated
corporation, China Resources Gas Group Limited (“CR

LR R Gas”):
HERADHL

ROEE Aggregate
EENE BE /KB Number of percentage of
Name of director Long position/Short position shares interest’ (%)
g R 10,000 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position
B3E Notes:
1. IR ATHMEEBR RN BN 1. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long

ERMEN_ZE-RF+-A=1+—
HEZTROEBNADLL -

27 EXHBBzREEE2NHESFUAER
BEAZG0RA -

positions in shares of CR Gas to the total issued shares of

CR Gas as at 31 December 2016.

2. All interests disclosed above are being held by the director

in his capacity as beneficial owner.

EEEE (#8%) B2 F China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (Continued) =

(iii) Interests in issued ordinary shares of an associated
corporation, China Resources Power Holdings
Company Limited (“CR Power”):

LR T DL
RHE B Aggregate

EERE HE SRR Number of percentage of

Name of director Long position/Short position shares interest’ (%)

B Sy} 10,000 0.01

Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position

Bi&E - Notes:

1. IBEEFS REVEBSE ) RMDEEIE 1. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long
EHENR_ZE—R"FTZA=1+— positions in shares of CR Power to the total issued shares of
AZEBITROHBENE DL - CR Power as at 31 December 2016.

2. LXMBBEZMARGHERAES 2. All interests disclosed above are being held by the director
BEAZHNOEER - in his capacity as beneficial owner.

. N N [N N=pr -

(iv) RA—EEBER — =R ER (iv) Interests in issued ordinary shares of an associated OF
BRAR (TZEREKED 2817 corporation, China Resources Cement Holdings 3 e
Epilivd: 3o Limited (“CR Cement”): §]§}\

.
HiLERF DL o
RHEE Aggregate ]

EEpE HE KR Number of percentage of ®

Name of director Long position/Short position shares interest’ (%)

BOL I LSy} 40,000 0.01

Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position

P 5T - Notes:

1. IRIFRRTY REERIORR D EEUL 1. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long

ERARR T AFT=A=T—
AERTROBBOE L -

EXmABEEz SRR EREAES
B’EANZG0RA -

positions in shares of CR Cement to the total issued shares
of CR Cement as at 31 December 2016.

2. All interests disclosed above are being held by the director
in his capacity as beneficial owner.
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TR MARIN - LU AT RARRQ R
MEAERN T HREERB(ESFRBAE R
By EXVEBE — 2 = o Bhm A A & 4 78 2k
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KA

SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2016, other than the interests and short
positions as disclosed above, the following persons have
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as they fall to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company:

BEERAHRE
BERZNRAEE
Number of
shares in which
#Aa /KA the interested BREASL
Long position/ party is deemed Percentage of
BEERL AR Name of interested party Short position to have interests shareholding (%)
FEEBEAT China Resources National HE 1,684,077,366 51.91
(TEBeRR]) (M) Corporation (“CRNC”) (Note) ~ Long position
EBROHBRAA China Resources Co., Limited ia 1,684,077,366 51.91
(TEEm 1) () (“CRC”) (Note) Long position
CRC Bluesky Limited (#f3) ~ CRC Bluesky Limited (Note) i1E 1,684,077,366 51.91
Long position
8 (58) BRA China Resources (Holdings) e 1,684,077,366 51.91
[EH%E]) (WE) Company Limited (“CRH”) Long position
(Note)
EREE (28) EBAR CRH (CRE) Limited (Note) e 1,676,338,664 51.67
ED) Long position
EHEIEBRAA China Resources Enterprise, e 1,676,338,664 51.67
(FizE) Limited (Note) Long position
EHEE (BH) 5RLA CRH (Beer) Limited (Note) e 1,676,338,664 51.67

(Fiz1) Long position
Mzt - ZEHEE ('195/@) BIR2QA (A *ﬁ%i/ﬁ%@ Note: CRH (Beer) Limited (formerly known as CRH (Enterprise) Limited)
(Bl%) BRRE)) REBERATDRIEE and Commotra Company Limited directly held 1,676,338,664
B A 2 7]1,676,338,6648% &7 738,702 shares and 7,738,702 shares in the Company respectively. CRH
BRI - EWEE (BF) ARARAEE (Beer) Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Resources
BIZEBERAE (FIBANEEIR (F8) AR Enterprise, Limited (formerly known as Well Gain Ventures (Hong
NGID! E’J%é WEBAR  mMEBEEERA Kong) Limited), which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
AREEEE (E8) ARAA (AEREF CRH (CRE) Limited) (formerly known as Well Gain Ventures

‘Hxﬁ NaE) MEERBAR - FHEE
(F8) BRARMKEBERARY AEH
SENESZENBAR - EHEEABCRC
Bluesky Limited®EmE=EMBE AR - M
CRC Bluesky LimitedM Z B D 2 & #
B ERROREBRAAANEKRERZEE
BB AR - Bt - #H%E - CRC Bluesky
Limited * EHRMO REBEQRWRAE
N AR E),684,077,366[ B ) F HE 6 1

X o
fm

Limited). CRH (CRE) Limited and Commotra Company Limited
are beneficially wholly-owned subsidiaries of CRH. CRH is a
beneficially wholly-owned subsidiary of CRC Bluesky Limited,
which is in turn wholly-owned by CRC. CRC is an ultimately
beneficially wholly-owned subsidiary of CRNC. Thus, CRH, CRC
Bluesky Limited, CRC and CRNC are deemed to be interested in an
aggregate of 1,684,077,366 shares in the Company.

EEEE (#8%) B2 F China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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Report of the-Directors

RESTRICTED INCENTIVE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted incentive award scheme on 21
March 2013 which was subsequently amended with retrospective
effect from 21 March 20183. The restricted incentive award scheme
does not constitute a share option scheme pursuant to Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules and is a discretionary scheme of the
Company. The purpose of the restricted incentive award scheme
is to: recognise and motivate the contribution of the Group’s
employees; provide incentives and help the Group in retaining
its existing employees and recruiting additional employees; and
provide them with a direct economic interest in attaining the long-
term business objectives of the Company.

A trust has been set up under the restricted incentive award
scheme and BOCI Prudential Trustee Limited has been
appointed as the trustee. Pursuant to the restricted incentive
award scheme, the trustee may purchase shares from the
public market out of cash contributed by the Company from
time to time. The maximum number of shares which the trustee
may purchase during the term of the scheme out of the funds
contributed by the Group is 5% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company from time to time. According to the
scheme, the Company can utilise the proceeds generated from
the disposal of the shares purchased and held by the trustee for
awards made under the scheme. Grantees of any award under
the scheme do not have any right to the shares.

Unless otherwise sooner terminated as determined by the Board,
the restricted incentive award scheme has a term of three years
commencing from the date of its adoption and expired on 20 March
2016.

The trustee did not purchase, hold or dispose any shares during
the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed above under “Restricted Incentive Award
Scheme”, no equity-linked agreements were entered into during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions with
connected persons which constituted “connected transactions”
or “continuing connected transactions” under the Listing Rules.
Particulars of these transactions are also set out in note 1D
and note 34 to the financial statements headed “Key events”
and “Material Related Party Transactions” respectively, with
respect to which the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of those transactions which are subject to the
reporting requirements under Rule 14A.71 of the Listing Rules
are summarised as follows:
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BERAATIN_-_E—XNE=ZA_EFRT
BHRE  ARF] (BERFEEHSEE
B51%E 31T AN) 52 [E B EAnheuser-
Busch InBev SA/NV ([ABI]) sT M E &
wE((EEWHED) Bt A28 F
R = RE (BABIEIE GRS 2EF
SABMiller Asia Limited ([SABMiller
Asial) B E=HELEEH T 40%E 8
A 2 SRIEA1,600,000,0003TT °

RAEREREER - SABMiller Asia BERS
BB EEZRER BARRNH B
NEIEEMEEALT - MABIR T
FESABMiller Asiafy B A& BIEK A7
RAMNBEALT - At EEWHEE
TRSGERRNATNEEL S -

ARRR-F—A"F+A+—BEKL
MWEIRF B TIBRLS  FREER
BREZRRARRNEEMBLRF -

R-T—=F+-"A+=0  ARA=E
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

As set out in the announcement issued by the Company on 2
March 2016, the Company (then holding 51% of the total issued
share capital of CRSB) and Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV
(“ABI”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale
and Purchase Agreement”) on the same day, pursuant to which
ABI has conditionally agreed to procure SABMiller Asia Limited
(“SABMiller Asia”) to sell, and the Company has conditionally
agreed to acquire the remaining 49% of the total issued share
capital of CRSB, at the consideration of US$1,600,000,000.

During the relevant period, SABMiller Asia was a substantial
shareholder of CRSB and a connected person of the Company at
the subsidiary level; and ABI would become a connected person
of the Company upon its acquisition of SABMiller Asia’s parent
company. The transaction under the Sale and Purchase Agreement
therefore constitutes a connected transaction of the Company.

Completion took place and was announced by the Company
on 11 October 2016, following which CRSB became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

On 13 December 2013, the Company announced that the
Group intended to continue to enter into new contracts for the
design, decoration and furnishing of the Group’s offices, retail
outlets and investment properties under the framework terms
with Uconia Company Limited (“Uconia”), a non wholly-owned
subsidiary of CRNC, and its subsidiaries (“Uconia Group”) for
the three years ending 31 December 2016. According to the
framework terms, each provision of decoration services by the
Uconia Group to members of the Group would be documented
in a separate written agreement with duration not exceeding
three years and each contract of decoration services would be
entered into on normal commercial terms and the prices would
be either at market prices or at prices no less favorable to the
Group than those available from independent third parties. The
granting of contracts to Uconia Group for the design, decoration
and furnishing of the retail outlets, supermarkets and offices
are in the usual and ordinary course of business of the Group.
The annual cap for the decoration services by the Uconia
Group for each of the three years ending 31 December 2016 is
HK$100,000,000. As CRNC is the ultimate holding company of
the Company, CRNC is a connected person of the Company and
Uconia Group is an associate of CRNC under the Listing Rules
and any transactions pursuant to the aforesaid framework
terms constituted continuing connected transactions.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group did not
use any decoration service provided by Uconia Group.

FEEEAE (#R) B2 T China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

On 20 December 2013, the Company issued an announcement
in connection with, among others, (i) the intra-group lending
arrangement with members of the group of CRC, CRH and
their respective subsidiary companies (“Framework Loan
Agreements 2013”); (ii) the provision of general banking
services including deposits services by China Resources Bank
of Zhuhai Co., Ltd. (“CR Bank”, a subsidiary of CRC) and (iii)
financial services and products by China Resources SZITIC
Trust Co., Ltd. (“CR Trust”, a subsidiary of CRC) ((ii) and (iii)
collectively the “Strategic Cooperation Agreements 2013”). By
virtue of CRC being the controlling shareholder of CRH, which
in turn holds a controlling interest in the Company, CRC and
CRH are connected persons to the Company as defined under
the Listing Rules. In addition, CRC holds more than 50% of
the registered capital of CR Bank and CR Trust respectively,
CR Bank and CR Trust are connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules, and any transactions under the
aforesaid agreements constituted continuing connected
transactions.

Each of the Framework Loan Agreements 2013 was for a
term of three years commencing from 1 January 2014 and
expiring on 31 December 2016.

As set out in the announcement issued by the Company on 20
December 2013, the annual lending cap for the Group on any
single day for the term of the Framework Loan Agreements 2013
is HK$3,000,000,000. Such maximum daily amount is applicable
for each day during the relevant year, and such maximum daily
amount is calculated on an individual basis as outstanding at
the end of each day during the relevant year without aggregating
with the daily amount incurred on the days before.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group did not
carry out any lending transaction or receive any interest
pursuant to the Framework Loan Agreements 2013.

Each of the Strategic Cooperation Agreements 2013 was
for a term of two years commencing from 1 January 2014
to 31 December 2015.

The Strategic Cooperation Agreements 2013 have been
renewed on substantially similar terms as the existing
terms under new strategic cooperation agreements
between the same parties dated 9 December 2015
("Strategic Cooperation Agreements 2015”) as set out in
the announcements issued by the Company on 9 December
2015 and 23 December 2015 respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Each of the Strategic Cooperation Agreements 2015 was
for a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2016
to 31 December 2018.

CR Bank provides deposit and other commercial banking services
on normal commercial terms which apply to other customers of
CR Bank. Any deposit made with CR Bank under the Strategic
Cooperation Agreements 2015 will bear the same interest and
be on the same terms and conditions as would apply to a similar
deposit made by any other customer of CR Bank which rates are
determined with reference to that published by the People’s Bank
of China or such other preferential rates.

From time to time, the Group may use the commercial
banking services of CR Bank including, but not limited to,
letter of credit, letter of guarantee, granting of loans with
collaterals, bill acceptance and discount services, account
receivable factoring services, RMB and foreign currency
settlements, provision of entrustment loans and security,
wealth and cash management services, financial consulting
service and other financial services as agreed by the parties.
These services will be provided on normal commercial terms
which apply to other customers of CR Bank.

CR Trust provides financial services including, but not limited
to, cash management, asset management, custodian trust loan
services, equity cooperation, shares nominee services, account
receivable factoring services, buying and resale services
consulting services and other trust services to the Group. These
services will be provided on normal commercial terms and will
be charged at a rate no less favourable as would apply to similar
services provided to any other customers of CR Trust.

As set out in the announcement issued by the Company
on 9 December 2015, the maximum daily deposit amount,
inclusive of interest payable rounded to the nearest million,
which may be placed by the Group with CR Bank for the
term of the relevant Strategic Cooperation Agreements
2015 is HK$1,300,000,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the maximum daily
aggregate amount of outstanding deposits placed by the
Group with CR Bank totaled RMB21,907 (equivalent to
approximately HK$26,095), and the aggregate interest
income arising from such deposits was RMB77 (equivalent to
approximately HK$90).

FEEEAE (#R) B2 T China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

As set out in the announcement issued by the Company
on 283 December 2015, the maximum daily amount of
the financial services and products (other than deposit
services) provided by CR Bank together with CR Trust to
the Group is not expected to exceed HK$1,300,000,000 for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2016, 2017
and 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group did not
use any financial services and products provided by CR
Bank or CR Trust, nor incurred any fees and commissions
therefor.

On 1 September 2015, China Resources Snow Breweries
Limited ("CRSB”, currently wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, together with its subsidiaries, “CRSB
Group”), entered into a beer supply framework agreement
(“Beer Supply Framework Agreement”) with Gain Land
Limited (“Gain Land”, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of
CRH, together with its subsidiaries, “Gain Land Group”)
with a term commencing from 1 September 2015 to 31
December 2017, pursuant to which the CRSB Group agreed
to supply its beer products to the Gain Land Group from
time to time for the purposes of retail and distribution
of the same by the Gain Land Group. The transactions
shall be conducted on normal commercial terms and the
terms, as a whole, shall be no more favourable than those
terms offered to independent third party retailers and
distributors of the CRSB Group in relation to the supply of
beer products of similar nature and quality. It is estimated
that the maximum amount of purchases to be made by
the Gain Land Group under the Beer Supply Framework
Agreement will not exceed HK$85 million, HK$345 million
and HK$415 million respectively for the four months
ending 31 December 2015 and the two years ending 31
December 2016 and 2017 as set out in the announcement
issued by the Company on 1 September 2015. As Gain
Land is an indirect subsidiary of CRH which is in turn holds
a controlling interest in the Company, Gain Land is an
associate of a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules, and any transactions under the Beer Supply
Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the aggregate
amount of purchases made by the Gain Land Group
from the CRSB Group under the Beer Supply Framework
Agreement was approximately RMB149 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$174 million).
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EEHE
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ZERXRPGEBEANTHRARRAS
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RpMEET &
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YHERFERERST

(a) AEAEBEHBEEEBEHEIL

(b) T RAEARGRKEEGTET K
) REZXFEXZIMBEBHBHRLZITA

% A AR 2 IR B R 26 0 1
17 -

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the directors engaged
the auditor of the Company to perform certain work on continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has provided a letter to the directors of the Company and confirmed
that, for the year ended 31 December 2016:

(a) nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(b) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to its attention that causes
it to believe that the transactions were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group;

(c) nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

(d) with respect to the aggregate amount/daily balance of each
of the relevant continuing connected transactions, nothing
has come to its attention that causes it to believe that
such continuing connected transactions have exceeded the
annual cap/maximum daily balance as set and disclosed
by the Company.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these transactions and confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(@) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

FEEEAE (#R) B2 T China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2016 are set out on pages 148 to 151.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Save as disclosed above under “Restricted Incentive Award Scheme”,
neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above under “Restricted Incentive Award
Scheme”, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, the subsidiaries of its parent company, or its parent
company a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the respective percentage of the aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and
the aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was less than 30% of the Group’s total value of
purchases and total turnover.

AUDITOR

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 May
2016, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers was re-appointed as the
auditor of the Company.

Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
CHEN LANG

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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To the Members of China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company
Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION
WHAT WE HAVE AUDITED

The consolidated financial statements of China Resources Beer
(Holdings) Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 82 to 147, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016;

. the consolidated profit and loss account for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

. the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

OUR OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (*HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (*“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

FEMEAE (#%) BMR 27 China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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Impairment assessment of goodwill
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENCE

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

. Impairment assessment of goodwill

. Recognition of promotion and marketing expenses
. Impairment assessment of fixed assets

. Deferred tax on tax losses

EMNETNATEEFERETFSER
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

IR E MR - P T IR E S DR E T (4 M 4R 5 8
IrEREREBBRNIT T A TER

Refer to Note 3A “Critical Accounting Estimates
- estimated impairment of goodwill” and Note 18
“Goodwill” to the consolidated financial statements

RZB-—RF+ZA=+—H > EBESENRNBEFEHR
WEEBERRE  HEMDHEBEEARKS 422
BETHEE -

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had goodwill of
RMB8,422 million which arose from acquisitions of
businesses engaging in the manufacture, sales and
distribution of beer products in previous years.

In addressing this matter, we had performed the
following procedures on the discounted cash flow
forecasts prepared by management that supported
the impairment assessment:

. BERTHERSENEREEN ENEEETL
B AHRERERATNARBAZBEBEESS
I8

. assessed the reasonableness of key input data
in the cash flow forecasts by comparing them
with the historical actual information and
management’s approved budget;
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BRENSE () EMNFTNMEEFERETSR (H)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

(Continued)

Key Audit Matter (Continued)

BENRENE (&)

Impairment assessment of goodwill (Continued)

FMERAEEIRESEEY) BHHABRRSEESN -
uﬁ%uw@w\&m 3B4AET  PEIMENHAR
¥e0mE T MmE BRI ARKS 2988 - BE
BETRERNE REECBEEAGRERENITRED
B WHEHREE#ETHR - ETERERERATAR
RANTEXNAFEAM 2 RNBRRALBRXRE
B E RS R AR A AT -

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated
to the relevant cash generating units ("CGU”) in
various regional segments including eastern region
of RMB2,334 million, central region of RMB829
million and southern region of RMB5,259 million.
Management conducted an impairment review by
comparing the recoverable amounts of the goodwill,
estimated based on value in use calculation, with
their carrying amounts. The key assumptions and
judgements adopted by management in the relevant
discounted cash flow forecasts included discount
rates and expected revenue growth rates beyond the
five-year projection period.

HRRZZE—AF+_A=+—HABRENEERR
1B - ARFE (b ET Lk BRTE (B &Y AT U [0 1R B 2 I 85K 1 -
IR RE T EERNESFE -

Because of the significance of the carrying amounts
of goodwill as at 31 December 2016, together with
the use of significant judgements in estimating the
recoverability of such carrying amounts, we had
identified this matter as a key audit matter.

?Iﬁiii‘ﬁiHIJH;EZ1§E’J%EHHH&)\1‘E+,\$E =0l
SR TR EA - ETHE

compared the expected revenue growth rates
beyond the five-year projection period to
relevant market expectations such as industry
information;

BEB S E B RN TISIE NG IEAE - I 6
HEU A RETHER  RARAI GRS E
H B HHTEE

tested the discount rates assigned to the
CGUs with reference to our understanding of
the business, compared to those used by other
similar companies, and our broader market
considerations;

LA P AERANERBEMERZE
FTERA ORI B RN - K&
evaluated the methodologies adopted and
checked the mathematical accuracy of the
value in use calculation used to estimate the
recoverable amounts; and

HORE R A0 B S A BUR AN R R _@W'\E"
i AEBREZREESE M e
L o

performed sensitivity analysis on the key input
data and assumptions to the impairment
assessment, to understand the impact of
reasonable alternative assumptions that
would have on the estimated recoverable
amounts.

EMEE (%) AR 2 F China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)

fEH R EREEANRER

Recognition of promotion and marketing expenses

B2 MBRENT= (2) [EZg5HEs — BiR
RIHRERER] REFE= 1+ [E 5 REAMERFIE]
Refer to Note 3B “Critical Accounting Estimates -
accruals on promotion and marketing expenses”
and Note 24 “Trade and Other Payables” to the
consolidated financial statements

BE_Z-—RFT_A=+—HLEFE- BEEEEX
ENRELREEER  HRINGEBERRTERARIHEE
BN (EH2ERA/EXRERD) JHEERSHER - A
KR -—AFE_T—R"FT_A=+t—HBtAKX
FEREATEIEER -

The Group had significant amounts of promotion
and marketing expenses and recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account as sales
rebates (accounted for as a reduction of revenue) or
selling and distribution expenses for the year ended
31 December 2016. Meanwhile, the related accruals
were also significant as at 31 December 2015 and
2016.

EREERBEBERS N E RS R D HEERK
MR ER R EBIMEHEBNLEE - fInER
1 REE THS  HREHAEEERAMERESE -
Management records accruals for promotion and
marketing expenses according to the relevant
terms in the agreements with a large number
of distributors in various regions in Mainland
China, taking into consideration of the nature of
the promotion activities such as volume rebates,
allowances, discounts, etc.

3 37 A% W R
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EMHNFTNMEEFERETSR (H)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
(Continued)

EREEFEER - RMMITTATER
In addressing this matter, we had performed the
following procedures:

- E\RMFGEEEERR - AT MEREHELEE
ERMNBREAEERENREE  LHEREN
ZHIETTRIH

. understood, evaluated and selectively
tested the key controls associated with
management’s process of identification,
estimation and recognition of promotion and
marketing expenses and accruals;

- ERBFIERFEN -5 HAY ELFENTE
REMERETTAHE  SEFNRIRERSK
HEAFEEREANSHETLR  UEEE
BEAMTEBETREFERE

. as part of our risk assessment, evaluated
the outcome of the prior year accruals by
comparing the historical accruals to the
actual amounts utilised in the current year to
ascertain if management bias existed in the
estimation process;

- RBREEEERGNBABE BEE2EZEHSHE
MEAER REFHHMBENEFIEHNS
B OBABLEBERINERANDHEELNER
FAAEEENAREIRER &

. based on input data prepared by management
that included references to the underlying
contracts with distributors, nature of
promotion activities provided and amounts
of expected expenses to be incurred, tested
the key accruals made by management by
comparing them with signed contracts with
distributors and issued invoices; and
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BMRESEE (F) BMWETONEERRETSE (H)

Key Audit Matter (Continued) How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
(Continued)

REREREANER (F)

Recognition of promotion and marketing expenses (Continued)

MRRFFHEARHEEAN - WHARASRER - BBESEIRITNARAMBHOBERETLER

SRR o M —RITHIEETEENERRARIB D FRIAARFEEERHERMOME -
HRHERDHERATNRIEREEER - - tested the recognition and classification of
If the promotion activities are related to future sales expenses during the year by comparing them
volume, the related costs are treated as a reduction with signed contracts with distributors and
of revenue. The costs related to general marketing issued invoices.

activities are classified as promotion and marketing
expenses in selling and distribution expenses.

BEMGFERRNTERERUARBRE EFR D SNIHE
ROHERNDBFEZRAESE  stEMEZ B
EREHRA ERFREANEEREMGAMHALE -
Determining and calculating the accruals as at
period ends and the respective classification
as either a reduction of revenue or selling and
distribution expenses requires application
of various accounting principles relating to
classification, measurement and recognition, which
involved significant management estimates and
judgements.

HRPRHDHBHEERS  RBEE_T—R"F+_H
St HIEFENRERREREIEEER - UKRER
MO BFHEESEMIENERHAEG - HFIRRER—
(AR R T FH -

Because of the large number of distributors involved
and the significance of the accruals for promotion
and marketing expenses for the year ended 31
December 2016, together with the significant
judgements involved in determining the amounts to
be recognised and classified, we had identified this
matter as a key audit matter.

EMEE (%) AR 2 F China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)

Bl 72 & 7 WO Rl (B FF A

Impairment assessment of fixed assets

w2 MBRENT= (R) [EZS5H A5 — M5t
EFEEEME] KT+ [BEEE]

Refer to Note 3C “Critical Accounting Estimates -
estimated impairment of fixed assets” and Note
17 “Fixed Assets” to the consolidated financial
statements

MRZEBE-—RF+ZA=+—H  E5E#FLEEEA
RARE209008B8THEEEE °

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had fixed assets
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB20,900
million.

WRRECELBUNEEFERETR -  EEESEBR
HERRREEEMLNATIRE S BARETRENE °
EFEENAIKRESERERBENRIABERBENX
AR EE - ERENRSREFRA P AAERABHITEX
AR R EFSETEE R BRI M A -

If impairment indicators exist on the cash
generating units (“CGUs”) to which the assets
belong, management conducted an impairment
review by estimating the recoverable amounts of
the relevant CGUs, using the higher of value in use
calculation and fair value less costs of disposal.
The key assumptions and judgements adopted by
management in the relevant discounted cash flow
forecasts included discount rates and revenue
growth rates, etc.

3 37 A% W R

Independent Auditor’s Report

EMHNFTNMEEFERETSR (H)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
(Continued)

EREEFEER - BMAITTATER
In addressing this matter, we had performed the
following procedures:

- AFEEEHAREFRORSELBMOHETE
BEMGEIESERAReESBMOE T EEAK
A EPAX

. tested management’s assessment as to
which groups of fixed assets have indicators
of impairment, together with management’s
grouping of such assets in the relevant CGUs;

- HRARETROBeESBUHNETEEE A
AAREEERHNEETERESRERR - B

. for those CGUs that included fixed assets with
impairment indicators, tested the relevant
discounted cash flow forecasts prepared by
management, including:

- KBENERSBNERESENTEEET
LR - FHEER @R ETRAI O B I A BUR
EREE

. assessed the reasonableness of key
input data in the cash flow forecasts by
comparing them with historical actual
information and management’s approved
budget;
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EMNFTNMEEFERETSR (H)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
(Continued)

BMRESEE (F)

Key Audit Matter (Continued)

B & &= #UR E TG ()

Impairment assessment of fixed assets (Continued)

RBFEER  BARKIBETEHCHAREE
B #imp S EEEEEENREEEATRESE -
Based on the result of assessment, an impairment
charge of RMB291 million was recorded to reduce
the carrying amounts of certain fixed assets to their
recoverable amounts.

BHRRZE—AREF+_A=T—HERENEEEER
HE(ETEEEARETRNETEEE)  AREM
SHEMEENATIRE ST REAE - RARBRE
AN ESFE -

Because of the significance of the carrying amounts
of fixed assets as at 31 December 2016 (including
those with impairment indicators), together with
the use of significant judgements in estimating the
recoverable amounts of the relevant assets, we had
identified this matter as a key audit matter.

EMEE (%) AR 2 F China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited

RTEEA A S R R AR TS TEA - Han
THER - BT

compared the expected revenue growth
rates to relevant market expectations
such as industry information;

BRERMHEBORE  EREERSEL
B MEBE - NMTSIE R IRAR - I
HAARLIE A RBEITHE - ARSI ER
tested the discount rates with reference
to our understanding of the business
including the future business plans of
the relevant CGUs, comparisons to other
similar companies and broader market
considerations;

AR E e EHAERANEREERER
BN ERNERNT &
evaluated the methodologies adopted
and checked the mathematical accuracy
of the value in use calculation used to
estimate the recoverable amounts; and

SR ERT ik & B 528 A BUR FIRERE 1T U
MO - AR RRRER T & R & B 5t Al
WEEHTE -

performed sensitivity analysis on the
key input data and assumptions to the
impairment assessment, to understand
the impact of reasonable alternative
assumptions that would have on the
estimated recoverable amounts.



RREEE (H)

Key Audit Matter (Continued)

BRREERNIELHEH

Deferred tax on tax losses

A2RGa M BRERONT= (T)[EEGsHhET — &
JEPTIS B ERFER | R E = ++ RETRIEA
Refer to Note 3D “Critical Accounting Estimates
- recognition of deferred tax assets” and Note 27
“Deferred Taxation” to the consolidated financial
statements

RZZB-—RF+A=+—H > EXEATKEEMR
EXNELHEEERARKSIBET - R - HAPEH
W E A R B AREREENIAEENTBERR
AR¥E3,673EETT

At 31 December 2016, the Group had deferred tax
assets attributable to tax losses of RMB81 million.
Meanwhile, there were tax losses relating to certain
subsidiaries in Mainland China of RMB3,673 million
that were not recognised as deferred tax assets as
at the same date.

HRERELET A E E RS R IUANE IR BT (48R
B R B PRREF A2 AT AE T 5080 & AR 58 A1 LA R
ELTHISEE o

The recognition of tax losses as deferred tax
assets depends on management’s assessment as
to whether the relevant subsidiaries would have
adequate future taxable profits to utilise these tax
losses within a period of five years from the year of
occurrence.

3 37 A% W R
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EMHNFTNMEEFERETSR (H)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
(Continued)

EREEFEER - RMMITTATER
In addressing this matter, we had performed the
following procedures:

. BARARBAER-ZE-—RF+TA=+—HERH
MBEE - BEEENERRHBEE i
B BB RAERBBEREA -

. tested and agreed the selected tax losses at
31 December 2016, including the respective
expiry periods, to the tax computations and tax
correspondences for the relevant subsidiaries;

- REBEBHENTEE  BENBERSEBEMEREN
MISTER - LT B - TR - FEEH
M R AR &N TR B ) B 82 8 A BUR R RER
(BREARKEMARFNENRR) 2065

. assessed the reasonableness of key input data
and underlying assumptions adopted in the
profit forecasts (including the timing of future
taxable profits) for the relevant subsidiaries by
comparing them with management’s approved
budget, historical actual information and
relevant market expectations such as industry
information;
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BRENSE () EMNFTNMEEFERETSR (H)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

(Continued)

Key Audit Matter (Continued)

ERBBERNELEREH (&)

Deferred tax on tax losses (Continued)

AEARREABRMNBEEE RS ERERBCIHENE « ZETEBHRNFAMRBOEOEREMYE

T 51 1 =k & T TR 9 5K 2 FE AN 56 K B 0 2 BB R R D BT &
i o WETH P REBEMERMTAHE . checked the mathematical accuracy of

Determining the adequacy of future taxable profits
requires assessment of projection of both the
amounts and timing of future taxable profits which
are based on approved business plans or profit - HEREEMNRERREHEFEITLER - AR
forecasts, and such assessments involve significant B IR E B Il i) & ) TR FE A A AR R BT SR
management estimates and judgements. Efigk o
. tested management’s reconciliation of the
above profit forecasts to taxable profit
calculations by comparing with management’s
book-to-tax reconciliation schedules.

the forecasts profit or loss prepared by
management; and

HRRZZE—RFET_A=T—BHORERKERE - A
A HERR MR ME R B R E TR TS S MU B A H - 214
RREE— ERRNETFE -

Because of the significance of the amounts of tax
losses as at 31 December 2016, together with the
significant judgements involved in determining the
amounts of respective recognised and unrecognised
deferred tax, we had identified this matter as a key
audit matter.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Hftfz 8

BEAREFAHAMEEAR - HWEEE
REBANAERER  BETEEGEEMBER
KRB RS o

BREGEMBHRENERL NREEMBE
B BAIRTEREEAME R BERERAEN
HVEERE M ©

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

BRRMYRAMBHRENEN  RANE

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial

78

ERMEEMER - EiLBiET - ZEEA
EEEREGAMBHRRARMAERERE
R TENBERTEEABBEAEUTFE
BAHERBMAER

ERBEMDTATHIE  WREMAZBLEM
EEFEERERRL  RMFEREZE
EofEhmE RIFORBEMRS

statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

EMEE (%) AR 2 F China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

ERBECEBETEL) ETHEFHIEIR  As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
o BPER T EFRHE - REFETEXIER  professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
REE o T APITR throughout the audit. We also:

80

aBk Bl RN RY i e 0 R GE BB RR T 8 AR
EMBRREFEERNERRANE
@ RAFRMITEAEFABREEL
R - A REEE - MEE B FA R
B ERBRMABRAER - ARG
AeErhER RE EERERF E
R SO ERABES 2 L B
Ith R B B IR P HRRE T B B B RS RR
R ER SN RERREAERME
B BRFEREULMER -

TREEAMOABIEH - LR
BEOEHRR BEMLEY &
EEABEHOEHEERER -

AEESEMRASTBRNBE LR
EL & AT AR EN SN -

HEERAHELESTERNIGE
MEH & - RIZMERNEFT R
o MEEAFEESTHEXKBERLE
O EATHEEN M8
i ERENBERERNIELSE
REEE - MRBEPIRBEFEEANE
E - MELEAZBENRE TR
EREIEFAMBRRPOEBE
E-REEHENEETRE  RIZRFE
ERRFEREER - RANEW<
ERZEE®E B EAREHERTE
e R ARFEKBAAELE
M BEEETRERFELE -

AEREM B RANERIIHRS A
BBENAT BREE NAREERM
BHRREETERRRXZMER -

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Liao Weining.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
(If there is any inconsistency between the English and Chinese

version of this independent auditor’s report, the English version
shall prevail)
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

HEZZ—XF+=-A=+—HILFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2016

ZEB-RF —T—RF
2016 2015
B 5E ARBEET AREBETT
Notes RMB million RMB million
(&31)
(Restated)
BERE XK Continuing operations
LR Turnover 6 28,694 27,959
SHE KA Cost of sales (19,021) (19,272)
E7 Gross profit 9,673 8,687
Eablg A Other income 7 723 819
HENRDHE A Selling and distribution expenses (5,033) (4,552)
— R ETHE A General and administrative expenses (3,535) (3,003)
B TSR AN Finance costs 8 (89) (228)
B35 A A Profit before taxation 1,739 1,723
I8 Taxation 13 (320) (394)
BEKSEZEKZ Profit for the year from
REERF continuing operations 9 1,419 1,329
EARIERE XK Discontinued operations
BRIERE XK 2 Loss for the period from
AREfE1E discontinued operations 15 - (5,337)
1,419 (4,008)
DR Attributable to:
ZiN/NGT Shareholders of the Company
RSS2 575 Continuing operations 629 667
AR IR 7 ZETS Discontinued operations - (4,785)
629 (4,118)
FEIEHIRR R Non-controlling interests 790 110
1,419 (4,008)
BRER (FH#E) Earnings/(losses) per share 16
REBELER From continuing and
BRIEEE 2 %% discontinued operations
2R Basic RMBO0.22 RMB(1.56)
by 1 Diluted RMBO0.22 RMB(1.56)
FBISE 2 X From continuing operations
R Basic RMBO0.22 RMBO0.25
e Diluted RMBO0.22 RMBO0.25
BRI E 2 ETE From discontinued operations
R Basic - RMB(1.81)
b1 Diluted - RMB(1.81)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-T—AF+=-A=1+—BILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2016

—E-RF —EZ—hF
2016 2015
AREEHER ARBBET
RMB million RMB million
(&31)
(Restated)
RERERR (E5E) Profit/(loss) for the year 1,419 (4,008)
Hih2m (BH), W& : Other comprehensive (expenses)/
income:
BETENEEERZEE :  Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
BINEB 2 ERER Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations (114) 1
AEREARBEHE Fair value adjustment on available
for sale investments - (14)
EDHEFE Reclassification adjustments:
—EAHEREREME L 2 - release of valuation reserve
HERFEE upon disposal of available
for sale investments - (6)
-~ REHENBAR XS - release of exchange differences upon
e ERER disposal of subsidiaries/business - (112)
- RALEHRB AR ¥ — release of valuation reserve upon
Es 2 (A AR E disposal of subsidiaries/business - 11
AEEHME2EER (BH#%) Other comprehensive expenses for
the year, net of tax (114) (120)
REFEZHEUKE (EBF) B Total comprehensive income/
(expenses) for the year 1,305 (4,128)
SECR - Attributable to:
iN/NE] 1§23 Shareholders of the Company 531 (4,108)
FE1ZE I IR SR A 2 Non-controlling interests 774 (20)
1,305 (4,128)
AR BRREGRFEE Total comprehensive income/(expenses)
2EKE(BA) B8 for the year attributable to shareholders
of the Company arising from:
ST S Continuing operations 531 601
BRI E 2 7% Discontinued operations - (4,709)
531 (4,108)
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GARBEBBR
Consolidated Balance Sheet

R=Z—"F+=A=+—H At31 December 2016

—E-RE —T—hF —T—hF
+=—A=+-8 +t=A=+—H —A—H
31 December 31 December 1 January
2016 2015 2015
Ff5E AREBBEERT ARKBERT AREBETR
Notes RMB million RMB million RMB million
(Ex) (&51)
(Restated) (Restated)
FREBEE Non-current assets
BEEEE Fixed assets
— KRB - Investment properties 17 - = 16,649
— e M E: - Interests in leasehold land
L kgL held for own use under
operating leases 17 3,324 3,134 8,404
— HMms - - Other property, plant and
W eE R equipment 17 17,576 18,255 44,415
(EES Goodwill 18 8,422 8,326 18,029
Hth\ &&= Other intangible assets 19 171 194 402
RSN T 2 HE2R Interests in associates - - 290
REBRE s Interests in joint ventures - - 800
AIERE Available for sale investments 20 9 10 26
TEFRIE Prepayments 21 89 158 801
RIEF IR B B Deferred taxation assets 27 2,011 1,655 1,794
31,602 31,732 91,610
REEE Current assets
rE Stocks 22 6,110 6,488 21,844
B 5 MEAMBEWFKIE  Trade and other receivables 23 1,253 1,531 13,060
AR EIF IR Taxation recoverable 75 90 124
EEMIRITAT Pledged bank deposits 103 125 148
B MIRTTHETF Cash and bank balances 3,487 2,802 16,288
11,028 11,036 51,464
REEE Current liabilities
B 5 R H M E FIR Trade and other payables 24 (16,411) (16,778) (60,160)
B —RIER R R E R Loans from a holding company 25 (2,722) = -
RHIE N Short term loans 26A (1,592) (1,778) (7,120)
e FEIE Taxation payable (80) (194) (843)
(20,805) (18,750) (68,123)
REEEFE Net current liabilities (9,777) (7,714) (16,659)
BEERRBERS Total assets less current
liabilities 21,825 24,018 74,951

FEMEAE (#%) BMR 27 China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited



GARBEREAMR
Consolidated Balance Sheet

—E—XRF —T—hF —T—hF
+=—B=+—8 +t=ZA=+—H —H—H
31 December 31 December 1 January
2016 2015 2015
M 3E AREBBEERT ARKBERT ARKBETR
Notes RMB million RMB million RMB million
(Ex) (Ex)
(Restated) (Restated)
FRnBERE Non-current liabilities
REIEK Long term loans 268B (2,953) (3,839) (15,676)
EEFIBAE Deferred taxation liabilities 27 (271) (258) (1,771)
Hi 3w ats Other non-current liabilities 28 (934) (601) (2,580)
(4,158) (4,698) (20,027)
17,667 19,320 54,924
B AR R 4 Capital and reserves
N Share capital 29 14,090 5,941 15,691
(e Reserves 3,511 4,115 22,764
ARATFRRELEDS Equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company 17,601 10,056 38,455
eI R R Non-controlling interests 66 9,264 16,469
R Total equity 17,667 19,320 54,924

BREA CHEN LANG
ZEEDjrector

FEE LAI PO SING, TOMAKIN

FZEDjrector
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HAH R ER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HEZZ—"F+=ZA=1+—HILSFZ For the year ended 31 December 2016

—EB-KF —T—RF
2016 2015
B aE AREEHER ARBBET
Notes RMB million RMB million
(&)
(Restated)
RETH2RIRE Cash flows from operating activities
KEME R Cash generated from operations 30A 5,089 6,288
B BB S Hong Kong Profits Tax paid - (10)
B R REAH TS Chinese Mainland income tax paid (783) (1,662)
RIEF B A TS Chinese Mainland income tax refunded 14 71
EKETE) RS R A RS Net cash from operating activities 4,320 4,687
RETHZHAESRE Cash flows from investing activities
HEBTEEEFSHIE  Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 280 291
HEREREMSHIE  Proceeds from disposal of available for
sale investments - 14
HEKB ARG Proceeds from disposal of partial
B EBHEE interest in subsidiaries/formation
ESRIE of joint venture - 803
HEWBAR S EK Disposal of subsidiaries/business
CRBrEE RS (net of cash and cash equivalents
RIREEE) disposed of) 30B - 811
R E NG SN Dividends received from associates - 15
BT ERERE Dividends received from available
for sale investments - 1
B HFIE Interest received 71 308
B2 TR 46 B Receipt of government grants 462 297
WEEF—RHEAR Repayment of loan to a fellow
SEBARNER subsidiary - 203
U Bl & F —FE4EA A "] Repayment of loan to a holding
HE R company - 812
BABREEE Purchase of fixed assets (1,863) (5,262)
BARERE Purchase of available for sale
investments - (103)
W B R A %5 Acquisition of subsidiaries/business
ORBR BB FT 1S 2 (net of cash and cash equivalents
ReERIFSEEH) acquired) 30C - 16
S ARTEEZUEENE  Settlement of consideration payable
NAEREREE for acquisition of subsidiaries in
prior years (536) -
EHERITE T2 Changes in pledged bank deposits 22 (298)
RETEMFEHA2FHE  Netcash used in investing activities (1,564) (2,092)
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AN HER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

—E-AF —T—RF
2016 2015
AREEHET ARBBET
RMB million RMB million
(&31)
(Restated)
METH2RERE Cash flows from financing activities
EAE Dividends paid - (11,738)
EENL YNGR Dividends paid to non-controlling
f& 3 2 I 8 shareholders of subsidiaries (15) (2,001)
BAIFIE Interest paid (106) (346)
BITERRFTSHRIE Net proceeds from issue of ordinary
HRE shares 8,149 =
BIRfT R HMEERS  Proceeds from bank and other
FRIH borrowings 2,284 5,262
BERTREMEER Repayment of bank and other
borrowings (3,594) (8,525)
RN E A Al Purchase of additional interests in
BEX KA (i) subsidiaries, including transaction
cost (Note) (11,092) (5)
HERGIELEE) T8I Sale of shares under restricted
A 15 incentive award scheme - 296
’E—FEERAR] Loans from a holding company
BE R 3,030 691
RE—FEARIEE Loan from a fellow subsidiary
B /8 2 Rl &K - 487
BE —HER AR Repayment of loan from a holding
HE R company (341) =
EE—HERAREER Repayment of loan from a fellow
BB A RIMER subsidiary (500) =
BMEEEFEA2FHE  Netcash used in financing activities (2,185) (15,879)
FRERBEZEEIM ~ Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and
(R 4) cash equivalents 571 (13,284)
fEERRE 2 E Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 114 (202)
R—A—RAzHREa Kk Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
BeFE 2,802 16,288
R+=—A=+—Hz2 Cash and cash equivalents at
ReERBAEEE 31 December 3,487 2,802
ReRBEEEEH Analysis of the balances of cash
Z AT and cash equivalents
HWe MIRITER Cash and bank balances 3,487 2,802

Bt BB AR T EREEEE TR
BE49% I HE (MiFE=+=) °

Note: Purchase of additional interest in subsidiaries mainly includes the
purchase of additional 49% equity interest in CRSB (Note 33).
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b 6 M R HE 3 2 B %

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEZZ—XF+=-A=+—HILFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2016

T
Share
capital

ARKEER

FEH
RRER
Non- ags
LT controlling Total
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company interests equity
Rt
b4 R
FrisB
Shares held
fhERE EXiffE  forrestricted REER
Valuation Exchange incentive Retained CEl
reserve reserve award scheme profits Total

ARKEET ARWEER ARMEER ARWEER ARWEER ARMEER ARWEER

RMB million  RMBmillion RMBmillion ~ RMBmillion RMBmillion RMBmillion  RMB million  RMB million
RZE—7"5—A—H " EJ| At1January 2016, as restated 5,941 3 (2,353) (19) 6,484 10,056 9,264 19,320
BNEH ERER Exchange differences
on translating foreign
operations - - (98) - - (98) (16) (114)
REE R Profit for the year - - - - 629 629 790 1,419
AEERHER Total comprehensive
income for the year - - (98) - 629 531 774 1,305
EENBARER Purchase of additional interest
in subsidiaries (Note) - - - - (1135) (1,135) (9,957) (11,092)
i) Dividends - - - - - - (15) (15)
AR Tz IRR Issue of new shares under
(R E TR ER) rights issue (net of share
issue expenses) 8,149 - - - - 8,149 - 8,149
8,149 - (98) - (506) 7,545 (9,198) (1,653)
RZF-AEFTZA=1—H At31December 2016 14,090 3 (2,451) (19) 5,978 17,601 66 17,667

Mt M BARES T EREERERE LR
BE49% &M (isE=+=) °

Note: Purchase of additional interest in subsidiaries mainly includes the
purchase of additional 49% equity interest in CRSB (Note 33).
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

F2at]
ks
Non- s
RARRGEES controlling Total
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company interests equity
Rl
EERH #E:1El
THERRE FitR
Employee Shares held
R {5EEE  share-based EiGE  forrestricted REEH
Share Valugtion ~ compensation Exchange incentive Retained it
capital reserve reserve reserve  award scheme profits Total
AREBEL AREBET ARERET AREEET  AREAET AREAET AREEET AREAER  AREAERD
RMBmilion ~ RMBmillion ~ RMBmilion ~ RMBmillion RMBmilion ~ RMBmilion ~ RMBmilion ~ RMBmillon ~ RMBmillion
RZE-RE-A-H Ej At1January 2015, as restated 15,691 1,492 173 (2.371) (315) 23,785 38,455 16,469 54,924
BEH EREE Exchange differences on
translating foreign operations = = = 130 = = 130 (129) 1
TEREM BERE Fair value adjustment on
available for sale investments = (14) = = = = (14) = (14)
EiLENBAF/ £1 Release of exchange differences
[iichnd 253 upon disposal of subsidiaries/
business = = = (112) = = (112) = (112
EiLENBAF/ £1 Release of valuation reserve
Mgz EERE upon disposal of subsidiaries/
business = 1 = = = = 11 = 11
EHETEREMEL,  Releaseof vluation reserve
[EB&A upon disposal of available
for sale investments = () = = = = () (1) (6)
KEEER Loss for the year - - - - - (119 (4119 110 (4,008
REF2EER Total comprehensive expenses
for the year - €] - 18 - (4118) 4,108) (20) (4,128)
HEDINEL AR Disposal of partial interest
in subsidiaries = = = = = 5 5 61 86
WERBAT 5 Acquisition of subsidiaries
HEAAER or purchase of additional
interest in subsidiaries = = = = = = = 5 5
HERBAF/ £ Disposal of subsidiaries/business - - - - - - - (5,250) (5250)
ER IR Sale of shares under restricted
ofv) incentive award scheme - - - - 2% - 2% - 2%
B (3 Capital reduction (Note 15) (9969) - - - - 9,969 - - -
&y Transfer - - (173) - - 173 - - -
BHENBAR /£ Release of valuation reserve
sz [hEkE upon disposal of subsidiaries/
husiness - (1.481) - - - 1481 - - -
ke Dividends = = = = = (24,831) (24,831) (2,001) (26,832)
BURREMETZRG  Sharesissued inlieu of scrip
dividend 19 = = = = = 19 = 219
(9,750) (1,489) (173) 18 296 (17.301) (28,399) (7,205) (35,604)
RZZ-REF-A=T-H" At31December 2015, as restated
BT 5941 3 = (2.353) (19 6,484 10,056 9,264 19,320
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—KREE

RAEZERAR
ARAS—RAREBBEMERILZ LT
BRRAR] REOREEHER 5
BERAR (MR £ - EFZRR
R ARYE AR A B A 0 R B A B A 2 RO AR
BEHAQR ([EEEARA]) AR
BIREM M 5 N = 2 E I E ey bk
RELBEBE2RERFAEINE -

AEBETERZEE  HERD HE
BEE - ARAIZETEEKIRARE
R e HFE BB R Al 2 EETIE R
F148HEE151H

GARKREEREE

BE_Z—RF+A=+—HItF
ERFEEMBREDREFTEARE
AARARE - R I XX BG4t
BERFFRIEAIN AWM B RE IR
EBERANEDIRR -

AN - AR A B S RS B IR R TR 5
FHREIRES R IHEN (F622F)
HERNERFEESE -

BESEEE

RZE—AR"F=ZA=-HB' A2Q 7
B Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV
(TABI)) 3T B & % LA BB 1,600
BEETERZKAA (BERARE
11,001 EE8T) KEEESHEEES
RAF ([ HSIEEAE]) 49%M% #
(TWEE]) - AREIRFEIFBEER (B
M) BBE A 7 ([SABMiller Asial) &
2 R #EE S I8 E51% & 49% 5%
e BN —_FT—XR"F+A+—H
TR EAKE  ERESREERBER AR
RRANEENBAR e

GENERAL
ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Company is a public company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liabilities and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The directors regard the ultimate holding
company to be China Resources National Corporation
(“*CRNC”), a company established in the Chinese Mainland.
The address of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company is 39/F, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture, sales
and distribution of beer products. The principal activity of
the Company is investment holding. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are shown on pages 148 to 151.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016 have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
Save as specified in the principal accounting policies as
set out in Note 2, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

KEY EVENTS

On 2 March 2016, the Company and Anheuser-Busch InBev
SA/NV (“ABI”) entered into a sales and purchase agreement
to acquire the 49% equity interest in China Resources
Snow Breweries Limited (“CRSB”), a company previously
owned as to 51% by the Company and 49% by SABMiller
Asia Limited (“SABMiller Asia”), at a total consideration
of US$1,600 million and transaction cost (equivalent to
RMB11,001 million) (the “Acquisition”). The Acquisition
was completed on 11 October 2016 and CRSB become a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company upon completion.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL (Continued)
KEY EVENTS (Continued)

During the year, the Company raised approximately
HK$9,514 million, before expenses, by way of a rights issue
of 811,044,226 shares at a subscription price of HK$11.73
(equivalent to RMB10.05) per rights share, on the basis
of one rights share for every three ordinary shares. The
proceeds were mainly used for funding the Acquisition.
The rights shares were allotted and issued on 18 August
2016. As a result, the earnings/(losses) per share has
been adjusted and prior year comparative has also been
restated for such effect.

In addition, China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
(“CRH”), an intermediate holding company, provided
shareholder’s loans to the Company during the year
for funding the Acquisition. As at 31 December 2016,
RMB2,722 million was provided to the Group (Note 25).

CHANGE IN PRESENTATION CURRENCY

Since the completion of the disposal of non-beer
businesses, the Group’s revenues and cash flows are
primarily generated from beer operation in China of which
the functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB”), and are
expected to remain principally denominated in RMB in the
future. The Company determined that, with effect from 1
January 2016, the Company would change the currency in
which it presents its financial results and position from
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) to RMB, in order to reduce the
impact of foreign exchange movements on reported results
so as to better reflect the underlying performance of the
Group.

A change in presentation currency represents a change in
accounting policy which is accounted for retrospectively.
The comparative figures were translated from HKD to
RMB using the applicable closing rates for items in the
consolidated balance sheet and applicable average
rates that approximated to actual rates for items in the
consolidated profit and loss account and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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—. —REE @) 1. GENERAL (Continued)
o) RAEFT R RIEFTERl - 85T R#A%  F(i) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS,
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(&7])
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(&7]) R’z
s
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AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) has issued a number of new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations on Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) that are effective or
available for early adoption for the financial year beginning
1 January 2016. In the current year, the Group has adopted
the following new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations.

HKASs and HKFRSs Annual Improvements

2012-2014 Cycle
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
(Amendments)

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

The adoption of the new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations has had no material
effect on the results or financial positions of the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods. Accordingly, no
prior period adjustments are required.
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AW &R E MG
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. GENERAL (Continued)

F(ii) ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND AMENDMENTS THAT
ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards and amendments that have been issued
but are not yet effective.

HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows'
(Amendments)

HKAS 12 Income Taxes'

(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement

(Amendments) of Share-based Payment
Transactions?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 10 and Sale and Contribution of Assets
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
(Amendments) Associate or Joint Venture*

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers?
HKFRS 16 Leases®
Notes:
1. Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2017.

2. Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2018.

3. Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

4. Effective date was postponed indefinitely.

The Group has not early applied the new and revised
standards and amendments that have been issued by the
HKICPA but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new
and revised standards and amendments but is not yet in
a position to determine whether these new and revised
standards and amendments would have a material impact
on its results of operations and financial position.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include
the financial statements of the Company and of all its
direct and indirect subsidiaries. The results of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are included from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate. All material intra-group
transactions and balances have been eliminated on
consolidation.

Prior to 1 January 2010, increases in interests in existing
subsidiaries were treated in the same manner as the
acquisition of subsidiaries, with goodwill or a bargain
purchase gain being recognised where appropriate. For
decreases in interests in subsidiaries, regardless of
whether the disposals would result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries, the difference between the
consideration received and the carrying amount of the
share of net assets disposed of was recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account.

From 1 January 2010 onward, changes in the Group’s
ownership interests in existing subsidiaries that do not
involve a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, with no impact on goodwill or profit or
loss. When control of subsidiary is lost as a result of
a transaction, event or other circumstance, the Group
derecognises all assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests at their carrying amount. Any retained interest
in the former subsidiary is recognised at its fair value at
the date the control is lost, with the gain or loss arising
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account.

SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the group has control. The group controls
an entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. In
the Company’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries
are carried at cost less any impairment loss. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary prior to
1 January 2010 represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary on or after
1 January 2010 represents the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the previously held equity interest in the acquiree over
the net fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. Goodwill is tested for impairment
at the reporting date and whenever there is an indication
that the cash generating unit to which the goodwill relates
may be impaired. Such goodwill is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. An impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised in the consolidated profit and
loss account and is not reversed in a subsequent period.
On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Prior to 1 January 2010, a discount on acquisition
arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary represents the
excess of the Group’s interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition over
the cost of acquisition. Gain on bargain purchase arising
on an acquisition of a subsidiary on or after 1 January
2010 represents the excess of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
over the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the fair value of the previously held equity interest in
the acquiree. Discount on acquisition or gain on bargain
purchase arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is
recognised immediately in the consolidated profit and loss
account.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Group’s financial assets are classified as “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss”, “loans and
receivables” and “available for sale investments” dependent
on the purpose for which the assets are acquired. Financial
liabilities are classified as “financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss” and “financial liabilities other
than financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(other financial liabilities)” Details of classifications and
measurements are as follows:

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are initially measured at fair value and have two
sub-categories: financial assets held for trading and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised directly in the profit and loss account
in the period in which they arise.

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market which are initially measured at fair
value. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. Objective evidence of impairment includes significant
financial difficulty of the debtors, the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

FEMEAE (#%) BMR 27 China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited



T
(2)

FESHEE @)
SREEREE (@)
BRRFEREIE ()

ERHEENRREIFIRZIREN T
BiEE SRR ERBE &%
EEESFE - AREBRAINERT
B - BB — AR - VA
MEERHEMEERE A ZREETE
B 180 fied 1 B SRR B T JR 8 L 3R RO B 5
DN

AERE

&R EAEEAN AL ENETE
R EABER 2 FETET A -

AEERFEETLEREERMS LI
HHERELEBLAEHEEERR
BEZBRABSFKRE ZFAUERE
TR A BB BT » Britb 25 7]
ERERBABRRRAABAEMNK
DA - AR BEANSEESR
BEHE AEESERERSE
@m EERBZEMEENHEHRK
BELRBRESL EREEERS
ac REEGAGRE T - X
R RTHER

HWAEZBEDRBERRERE DR
B - REEEERRRTER

BMENEBREBREE  BTAHXRS
HBF2EAMBRE ARBREL
& E B A 2 B 3o 05 R OB AR R Y AT 52

Beog( -

AW &R E MG
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)
LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount
can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS

Available for sale investments are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories.

The Group holds certain investments in equity securities,
that do not have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be measured reliably. These
available for sale investments are stated at cost less
impairment losses. Apart from this, available for sale
investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs. At each balance sheet date the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised directly in equity, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity
is removed from equity and recognised in the profit and
loss account.

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss
account when there is objective evidence that the equity
investment is impaired.

Objective evidence of impairment includes significant
financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty and
observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with the operations of the
investment.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)
AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS (Continued)

For those investments carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the equity investment and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment losses will not reverse in subsequent
periods. For those investments carried at fair value, any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such equity
investments is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in valuation reserve.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in the profit and
loss account in the period in which they arise.

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

DERECOGNITION

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
the profit and loss account.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the profit and loss
account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FIXED ASSETS
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings which are held for long term rental and/or for
capital appreciation. Such properties are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet at their fair value. Changes in
fair value of investment properties are recognised directly
in the profit and loss account in the period in which they
arise.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production or administrative purposes, are
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes all construction expenditure, professional
fees, borrowing costs capitalised and other relevant
expenses directly attributable to such projects.

No provision for depreciation is made on construction
in progress until such time when construction work is
complete and the costs of construction are transferred to
the appropriate category of fixed assets when available for
use.

OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Fixed assets other than investment properties and
construction in progress are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation of other fixed assets is provided to write off the
cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account their estimated residual values, using
the straight line method. The residual values and useful lives
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

= Interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term
= Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being 20 to 40 years
= Leasehold improvements 3 to 10 years or over the
unexpired term of lease,
whichever is shorter

= Plant and machinery
= Furniture and equipment
= Motor vehicles

5 to 25 years
3to 10 years
5 to 6 years
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(ii)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

LEASED ASSETS

Assets acquired under finance leases

Assets acquired pursuant to finance leases that transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases and are accounted for as if purchased whereby
an amount equivalent to cost is recorded as fixed assets
and as obligations under finance leases. Depreciation
is provided in accordance with the Group’s depreciation
policy. Payments to the lessor are treated as consisting
of capital and interest elements. The interest element is
charged to the profit and loss account.

Operating lease charges

All leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income or expense arising from operating leases (net
of any benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease) is recognised in the profit and
loss account on a straight line basis over the periods of the
respective leases except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an
investment property.

IMPAIRMENT OF FIXED ASSETS

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources
of information are considered to assess whether there is any
indication that fixed asset other than investment properties
are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated and where relevant, an
impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Such impairment losses are
recognised in the profit and loss account.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the assets is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount. Such reversal of
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to the profit and loss account in the

year in which the reversals are recognised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FIXED ASSETS (Continued)
IMPAIRMENT OF FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal or retirement of an item
of fixed asset is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the profit and loss account.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

On initial recognition, other intangible assets acquired
separately and from business combinations are recognised
at cost and at fair value respectively. After initial
recognition, other intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are carried at cost less subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. Other intangible assets with finite
useful lives are stated at cost and are amortised on
the straight line method over their useful lives with
amortisation commences when the asset is available for
use. The estimated useful lives of other intangible assets
with finite useful lives are as follows:
Brand names 10 to 20 years
These intangible assets are assessed for impairment
at each balance sheet date by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts. Where indication
of impairment exists, an impairment loss is charged
to the profit and loss account to reduce the assets
to its recoverable amount. Where an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assets
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount. Such reversal of impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation is provided in full on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements, with limited exceptions. Deferred
taxation assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.
Deferred taxation is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
STOCKS

Stocks which comprise raw materials, consumables and
packing materials, work-in-progress and finished goods
are stated at the lower of cost (include those costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of finished goods. Purchase
rebates are deducted in determining the cost of purchase)
and net realisable value or amortised into expense based
upon periods of usage.

Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprise
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads.

Cost is determined on the weighted average method.

Net realisable value is determined as the estimated net
selling price less all further costs of production and the
related costs of marketing, selling and distribution.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income over the periods necessary to match the grant
on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to
compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the
fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to the profit and loss account over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset.

RECOGNITION OF REVENUE

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods and services provided in the normal course of
business and net of discounts.

Sales are recognised upon delivery of goods and provision
of services; and interest income is recognised in the profit
and loss account as it accrues.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is amortised to the consolidated profit and
loss account over the guarantee period.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs are accounted for on the accrual basis
and charged to the profit and loss account in the year
incurred, except for costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of that assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Fees paid for the arrangement of syndicated loan facilities
and debt securities are deferred, and are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign
currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet
date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FOREIGN EXCHANGE (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in the profit and loss account in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences arising
on a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net
investment in a foreign operation, in which case, such
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Renminbi), as set out in Note 1E, at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and
their income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
Group’s exchange reserve. Such exchange differences are
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account in
the period which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the translation
reserve.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

A discontinued operation is a component of the group’s
business that has been disposed of, or is classified as held
for sale, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographic
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated
plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the consolidated profit and loss
account which comprises the post-tax profit or loss of
the discontinued operation and the post-tax gain or loss
recognised on the measurement to fair value less costs
to sell, or the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 2C. Determining whether goodwill
is impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable
amounts of cash generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. The recoverable amounts have been
determined either based on value-in-use calculations or
the cash-generating units’ fair value less costs of disposal.
Details of the key assumptions are disclosed in Note 18.

ACCRUALS ON PROMOTION AND MARKETING
EXPENSES

Management makes accruals on promotion and marketing
expenses according to the term and conditions of the
agreement with the distributors and customers. If the
promotion activities are related to future sales volume, the
related costs are treated as a reduction of revenue. The
costs related to general marketing activities are classified
as promotion and marketing expenses in selling and
distribution expenses. Application of various accounting
principles related to the classification, measurement and
recognition requires the Group to make judgements and
estimates. Specifically, arrangements with non-standard
terms and conditions may require significant judgement
to determine the appropriate accounting treatment. The
estimation basis is reviewed on an on going basis and
revised where appropriate.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF FIXED ASSETS

According to the accounting policies stated in Note
2E(E), the Group tests whether fixed assets, for example,
buildings and machinery have suffered any impairment
on the balance sheet date if impairment indicator exists.
The recoverable amounts of the fixed assets have been
determined based on the higher of value in use calculation
and fair value less costs of disposal. These calculations
require the use of accounting estimates included discount
rate and revenue growth rates.

RECOGNITION OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Recognition of deferred tax asset, which principally relates
to tax losses of certain subsidiaries, depends on the
management’s expectation of future taxable profit that will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and
currency risk. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

CREDIT RISK

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables and bank balances.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk
to trade and other receivables as its customer bases are
widely spread across diverse geographical locations. The
Group has policies in place to ensure that open account
customers are financially viable and with an appropriate
credit history. To minimise its credit risk exposure, credit
evaluations are performed for the determination and
approval of credit limits granted and other monitoring
procedures are implemented to ensure that follow-up
actions are taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
regular reviews on aging and recoverability are performed
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK (Continued)

In respect of bank deposits, the Group has procedures and
policies in place to ensure they are made to counterparties
with good credit rating.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient
cash and the availability of adequate committed credit
facilities to fund capital, prospective investment
opportunities, debt servicing obligations and dividend
payments. Management also closely monitors the Group’s
rolling forecast and actual cash flows and maturity profiles
of financial liabilities.

The following table details the outstanding contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
borrowings, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay.

EHEES $:)
REREAR
R-2Z%  R-ZIf Total
—£R pd pd | BBEE  contractual REE
Within 1 Between 1 Between 2 Over undiscounted Carrying
year and 2 years to 5 years 5 years cash flow Amount
AREEET ARKBER ARBEET ARBEET AREEER ARKBEER
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
“B-RE 2016
EEREEE Fixed rate borrowings
B—RIERARER  Loans from a holding
company (1,748) - - - (1,748) (1,700)
FBNEEE Variable rate borrowings
RITER Bank loans (1,723) (2,530) (451) ) (4,705) (4,545)
B—MERAFER  Loans from a holding
company (1,034) - - - (1,034) (1,022)
(2,757) (2,530) (451) U] (5,739) (5,567)
(4,505) (2,530) (451) 1 (7,487) (7,267)
“E-5f B 2015, as restated
FBNEEE Variable rate borrowings
RITER Bank loans (1,800) (424) (3,461) (2) (5,687) (5,617)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (continued)

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk mainly from
its long term and short term borrowings. Borrowings at
fixed and floating interest rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk
respectively. To cover interest rate risk, the Group maintains
the loan portfolio in a preferred fixed/floating interest rate
mix and review regularly.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and
non-derivative instruments at the balance sheet date. For
floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of liability outstanding at the balance sheet
date was outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 would
decrease/increase by RMB48 million (2015: decrease/
increase by RMB47 million).

This analysis is prepared by using certain assumptions on
a hypothetical situation. In reality, market interest rates
would not change in isolation. In management’s opinion,
the analysis is used for reference purpose and should not
be considered a projection of the future profits or losses.

E¥EE CURRENCY RISK
AREBERERNAEBAERBIGEEE AINE The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
tWEETENCEREENBEME balance sheet date to currency risk arising from recognised
EMEERR  R&EZERBEFRnN assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than
5 ¢ the functional currency of the entity to which they relate:
—E—XREF —T—hF
2016 2015
BE =Fi BE afE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
ARBEERT AR%MEER AREKEET ARBAER
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
(=31)) (&31)
(Restated) (Restated)
AR¥ Renminbi 45 1,720 8 4
eV US Dollars 125 - 545 -

FEMEAE (#%) BMR 27 China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited



BREREEEERBE @)

B ERE (8)

TRHADARK LBTRETHE
HAKENTE  RRETHLETH
HEEXGIAXTE FEHRED
FEERARBERINESEIUINIE
MWEBFENERER  FERAR
EE - ARBRINEE RH5%EE) - &
ARBH BT RETIZES% » ¥ F
REEHEFERRNTE -

AW &R E MG
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CURRENCY RISK (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% strengthen in Renminbi against Hong Kong Dollars
and US Dollars, assuming the pegged rate between Hong
Kong dollar and US dollar would be unaffected. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding monetary
items denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate. For a 5%
weakening of Renminbi against Hong Kong Dollars and US
Dollars, there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the profit or loss.

—E—RE —T—AF

2016 2015

AREBEET AREBETT

RMB million RMB million

(&%)

(Restated)

HREBER S (EE) WFE  Effect on profit/(loss) after tax (85) (14)

WA REBERLBRE RBRKRBRM
EiT - RERBRT  MBEXRTE
BEENE - EEEBERRUONMRAAE
2% TRFEEERT DN HEIEN
FER o

EXREBREE
AEBBITAXTEMAN  ZER

REMAERESESE  ARBES
B RS E BN EL  REFIRE
BB RO EI9R o 7 o B B 4B 5 B B A — £
B MR -

AEENENEBERED (BEME
“tRERZTAMEENER)  Re
RBReEEY ARAERFAE AR
s (BREAEAEDRMEED
BEBRITRA - FRLREER)

FEEEEEEMEZEAEE - X
SEEREAKNARSBENN R
Rk WEBXMERE - BITHR
UNEEHRITEEXERRBEEE
TR HERBEANERELTE -

This analysis is prepared by using certain assumptions on
a hypothetical situation. In reality, market exchange rates
would not change in isolation. In management’s opinion,
the analysis is used for reference purpose and should not
be considered a projection of the future profits or losses.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 25 and Note
26, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to equity holders of the Company, comprising issued
capital, reserves and retained profits as disclosed in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital, and will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the raise of bank
borrowings or the redemption of existing debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N EXBEROWER 6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

110

—RE —ET—RHEF
2016 2015
ARBEER ARBBET
RMB million RMB million
(&%)
(Restated)
BEKE oS ¥HEEIE  Turnover from continuing operations
RETHEB ZWA : comprises revenue from:
HEER Sales of goods 28,694 27,959
DEER SEGMENTS

N

DEERFEERSERKRRABZA
BREFL A —B -

HRIH G EREBBTIEHED
AAREEARR

Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting or resource allocation and assessment
of the performance.

In prior years, management assesses the performance of
the Group by the following business segments:

- =& - Retail

- A - Beer

- R - Food

—  #m - Beverage

E-Z—RF HEHEFEEXKR

TPRAJEBRETRR BEEENR
BRTHEEREERE  BAKEE
DEHBEEBAEEN SR AEE
B 7K £ 8] P 5P B 7 8 B R 5 R R O
REBEREENAM -  ALEEERTE
RApREEBREMFEEREEMLZ
BB D RRR AN T & -

- RERKRPERIEMRIMEED

=]
on ©

- FERAKRREMERZIMNEE

o

o

— BEAKRTEREMAERDER

BE_T-AF+-A=t—ALF
B2 HBRARDIAERE - 584
RS E T2 8 AR E O BRR -
MG REIRERELYE -

In 2016, following completion of the disposal of non-beer
businesses and change in management organisational
structure, management has revisited the existing
management reporting structure and considered a
change of operating segments from business to regional
perspective as a more relevant performance measurement
basis to be used in the Group’s internal financial and
management reporting. As such, management has
re-determined the regional segments of the remaining beer
business for the manufacturing and distribution of beer
production on these reports by the following segments:

= Eastern region represents Northeast and Eastern
coastal regions of China.

= Central region represents other than those included
in Eastern region and Southern region.

= Southern region represents Southeast and Southwest
of China.

Information for the year ended 31 December 2015 that is
presented for comparative purposes have been restated
accordingly. The change in segment reporting does not
have an impact on the Group’s financial position, financial
performance or cash flows.
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ERBERDBER (@)

(Continued)

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

DEER (&) SEGMENTS (Continued)
RELEZER
Continuing operations
AR BALEE
RE HE BB V4l LEH!
Eastern Central  Southern  Corporate/ BiE Discontinued B &t
region region region  Elimination Beer operations'  Elimination Total

AREET ARMEER ARMEER ARMEER ARMBER ARMEET ARMEERL ARYBER
RMB million  RMBmillion RMBmillion RMBmillion RMB million RMBmillion RMB million RMB million

HZ-F-~E1=h Fortheyearended
=t-HLEE 31 December 2016

gxR TURNOVER
HohE External sales 15,016 6,588 7,000 - 28,694 - - 28,694
NHHE? Inter-segment sales? 429 48 284 (761) - - - -
At Total 15,445 6,636 7374 (761) 28,694 - - 28,694
PPEE Segment result’ 1,007 7 m 1,852 - 1,852
AENERLA Unallocated corporate
aas £XPenses (95) - (95)
FEHA Interest income 7 - 7
BBRA Finance costs (89) - (89)
BB Profit before taxation 1739 - 1739
il Taxation (320) - (320)
REERF Profit for the year 1419 - 1419
RZZ-RE+ZA  Asat31December 2016
=t+-H
&g ASSETS
NHEE Segment assets 19,932 172 12,181 - 39,837 - 39,837
BRHEAE Deferred taxation assets 2,011
AREHE Taxation recoverable 75
AEHENAT Unallocated corporate
BREE assets 707
BAEESER Consolidated total assets 42,630
& LIABILITIES
HHEE Segment liabilities 13,756 3,614 4,254 - 21,624 - 21,624
ERBE Taxation payable 80
BEHEER Deferred taxation
liabilities m
AEHENAT Unallocated corporate
ek liabilities 2,088
GRERERE Consolidated total
liabilities 24,963
EfhER OTHER INFORMATION
REFREEE Additions to non-current
assets 592 422 31 - 1,745 - 1,745
TEREH Depreciation and
amortisation m 402 396 2 1,721 - 1,721
BERHESE Impairment loss
recognised 163 169 132 - 464 - 464
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N EEHERITBER @) 6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
DEBE R (&) SEGMENTS (Continued)
RELEIRE
Continuing operations
AR B LS
R HE B Ve LEB
Fastern Central  Southern  Corporate/ BE  Discontinued 3 Aif
region region region  Elimination Beer  operations’  Elimination Total
AEBBET AR¥AER ARMRET ARWAET ARMEET ARMEET AR¥EER ARKEER
RMBmillion ~ RMBmillion ~ RMBmillion ~ RMBmilion ~ RMBmilion ~ RMBmillion ~ RMBmillion ~ RMB million
HZ-F-RE1=H  Fortheyearended

St-ALEEE: 31 December 2015,

EJ as restated
gx8 TURNOVER
e External sales 14,784 6,241 6,826 - 27851 79,021 - 106872
SHRERE Inter-segment sales?

-BRIHEEZEK - discontinued operation 89 14 5 - 108 - (108) -

14,873 6,265 6,831 - 27,959 79,021 (108) 106,872
FhmEs Inter-segment sales?

-BREE Y - continuing operation 733 127 126 (986) - - - -
G Total 15,606 6,382 6,957 (986) 27,959 79,021 (108) 106,872
PREE Segment result’ 1,100 34 677 1811 (1,950) (139)
AENBANF Unallocated corporate

aa3 expenses (21) (99) (120
HERA Interest income 161 175 336
BBmE Finance costs (228) (632) (860)
BiEHERS Loss on re-measurement

EENBE of disposal group? - (1,784) (1,784)
HERRERY Net loss on disposal of

£B05FR discontinued operation - (313) (313)
REUAER] /(B8)  Profit/(loss) before taxation 1,723 (4,609) (2,880)
fiE Taxation (394) (734) (1,128)
KERER /(68)  Profit/(loss) for the year 139 (639)) (4,008)
R=Z-EF+=f  Asat31December 2015,

=t-R &l as restated
gE ASSETS
NREE Segment assets 19,947 8,149 11,988 - 40,084 - 40,084
ELHRAE Deferred taxation assets 1,655
AREHE Taxation recoverable 90
X I Unallocated corporate

BREE assets 939
GREELE Consolidated total assets 42,768
& LIABILITIES
HHERE Segment liabilities 15,735 3,469 3,619 - 22,823 - 20,823
ERBE Taxation payable 194
Eithaats Deferred taxation liabilities 258
REHER LA Unallocated corporate

Ak liabilities 173
GRaRAE Consolidated total liabilities 23,448
AfEER OTHER INFORMATION
TEETHEE Additions to non-current

. assets* 656 411 1,424 - 2,491 2,577 5,068
NEREH Depreciation and

\ amortisation 937 391 401 = 1,729 1,809 3,038
ERZHERR Impairment loss recognised 7 15 57 - 143 2475 2618
RENZERRA Valuation gain on

Investment properties = = = = = 87 87

EMEE (%) AR 2 F China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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1. AKBEEE_Z-HFAA-BHE
FEMERTS o JEEE XIS A TIME
RERIEREZER -

2. EBHEBEENERERATSERK

8. O EFEERARIFBMA - MIBEA
NIRRT R °

4. REFRDEERREEEE BB
REMBELEE

5, AKERENAEHEMAEGEEAR
AREBEEREREXNAERT AR

1,784B EILHIEE ©

6. AKENTEXBREEEHEEE
SEVBRBME IR SRR S T AW
ARl BEBEER T ARK2,0228
EITRIRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

SEGMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

1. The Group’s non-beer businesses were disposed on 1
September 2015. The results of the non-beer businesses
were classified as discontinued operations accordingly.

2. Inter-segment sales were charged at prevailing market rates.

3 Segment result represents earnings before interest income,
finance costs and taxation.

4. Additions to non-current assets included fixed assets,
goodwill and other intangible assets.

5, The Group had recognised a loss of RMB1,784 million in
relation to the re-measurement of disposal group to the fair
value less costs of disposal.

0. The Group’s retail segment had made an impairment
on goodwill amounting to RMB2,022 million, following
management’s assessment of its performance as a result of
challenging environment of industry and keen competition.

OTHER INCOME

—E-—RE —ZT—AF
2016 2015
ARBEHETR AREBET
RMB million RMB million
(E51)
(Restated)
Htn g A BT 5I%IE : Other income includes the following:
BERE XK Continuing operations
FLE A Interest income 71 161
& A ERE TS5 A Profit on disposal of available for
sale investments - 3
EERBT Government grants recognised 146 14
AIEIRENREMA Dividend income from available for
sale investments - 1
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M.

B AR AR

8. FINANCE COSTS

—E—RF —T—hF
2016 2015
ARBEER ARBBET
RMB million RMB million
(&E%)
(Restated)
BHERKE 2% Continuing operations

RITER R EAE KT L Interests on bank loans and other loans 124 113
A& Financing charges 17 25
EH (W), B Exchange (gain)/loss (32) 108
109 246

B ABREEKAERZ  Less: Amount capitalised in cost of
BT & ARFIA* qualifying assets* (20) (18)
89 228
* RZZT—RFEAN - — RIS A INREF = During 2016, the weighted average capitalisation rate on

BERMENERFEREIE% (=F

—HF 1.42%) °

. AFEEEF

9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

funds borrowed generally is 1.57% (2015: 1.42%) per annum.

—E-RF —T—hF
2016 2015
AR¥BEEBT AREBET
RMB million RMB million
(&31)
(Restated)
AEERBNSMBRTHIBIE : Profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging:
BHERE 2% Continuing operations
Z RN B & Auditors’ remuneration
—ARFE - current year 8 12
— AR E 5T — underprovision in prior year - 1
8 13
BIRA (BIEEEMSE)  Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) 5,714 5,203
e Depreciation
—BHEBEE - Owned assets 1,697 1,706
HMEpE EEH Amortisation of other intangible assets
(BRE—MRRITHE (included in general and
=P administrative expenses) 24 23
ERRIRERE Impairment loss recognised on
(BRE—MRERITHE (included in general and
BAA) administrative expenses)
—EEEE - Fixed assets 291 72
-FE - Stocks 173 71
T REF s AEMLOER  Operating leases charges on land
and buildings 120 122
BEEEMKAR Cost of goods sold 19,021 19,272
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10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

EEME DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
—E-RE —ZT—hF
2016 2015
ARBEETR AREBETT
RMB million RMB million
(E51)
(Restated)
we Fees 0.84 0.76
HAR ¢ MoERL Basic salaries and allowances 3.88 5.96
NESHR Provident fund contributions 0.18 0.31
TEAT Bonus' 4.45 1.34
9.35 8.37

ok Hitiif &
Fees Other Emoluments
HEXgé
RER DESHHR “T-1%F
Basic Provident 2015
Salaries and Fund A a5t A&t
Allowances Contributions Bonus' Total Total
—E-RE 2016 AREBET AREBEERT AREKBEET AREEER AREBERT AREKBER
EEnA Name of director RMB million ~ RMBmillion ~ RMBmillion ~ RMBmillion ~ RMBmillion ~ RMB million
(&51)
(Restated)
FREA Chen Lang = - - - - 0.71
=3 Hou Xiaohai -2 117 0.08 2.09 3.34 -
ReER Lai Po Sing, Tomakin - 0.69 0.02 - 0.71 -
byl Lai Ni Hium, Frank 0.04 1.09 0.01 115 2.29 432
AR Houang Tai Ninh 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.15
BRH Li Ka Cheung, Eric 016 - - - 0.16 0.15
ORE Cheng Mo Chi, Moses 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.15
REE Bernard Charnwut Chan 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.15
B Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.15
HA Hong Jie -2 0.01 - - 0.01 1,37
e Liu Hongji -2 - - - - 1.22
T Wang Qun =2 0.92 0.07 1.21 2.20 -
At Total 0.84 3.88 0.18 4,45 9.35 -
—T-1fE & 2015, as restated 0.76 5.96 0.31 1.34 - 8.37
MI5E Notes:

1.

EADDEMFERE 2 KE%EE - @5
AL THERR R FRM ST
el

AEEZHBEFBLERAR

RZB—REEERLLEEREIN
BER S MBS TSHAELRIRER - B
B EEAEMNER (2T —
R &) RERIEHEZTREN
F=ERHAEHEURE (=T -0
FE) SBERNNES - HiZH
MEABBERARERNER  £5
FHEMR S (T —0F : &) -

1.

The bonus is determined with reference to the operating
results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics during both years.

Director fee for the year had been waived by respective
directors.

During 2016, no retirement benefits, payments or benefits
in respect of termination of directors’ services were paid
or made, directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor are any
payable (2015: Nil). No consideration was provided to or
receivable by third parties for making available directors’
services (2015: Nil). There are no loans, quasi-loans or other
dealings in favour of the directors, their controlled body
corporate and connected entities (2015: Nil).
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- AuESEHES 11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
IfUSEHEEMEXNZMEHE The details of the remunerations paid to the five highest
LU paid employees are as follows:

ZE-RF —T—AhF
2016 2015
ARBEET AREBET
RMB million RMB million
(E31)

(Restated)

BERGr & RER Basic salaries and allowances 6.25 4.55

NERE Provident fund contributions 0.48 0.34

TEAT Bonus' 12.52 37.18

19.25 42.07

Mz - Note:

1. —E—RERNSTMNHIEA RS 1. Part of the amount of bonus paid in 2015 was in relation to
B SEEETE R —E——FFE = the restricted incentive award scheme and the performance
TNFEZRERTIERIRGH - and services from 2011 to 2014.

RN ESHENF T HIEE The emoluments of these five highest paid individuals were

within the following band:
AE
No. of person
—E-RF —T—AhF
2016 2015
AR#2,993,001tE RMB2,993,001 to RMB3,420,000
AR#3,420,0007T (HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000)
(#%3,500,001 TE
75#4,000,0007T) 2 -
AR#3,420,001 L2 RMB3,420,001 to RMB3,848,000
AR#3,848,0007T (HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000)
(74,000,001 T &
75#4,500,0007T) 1 -
ANR#3,848,001 & RMB3,848,001 to RMB4,276,000
AR#4,276,0007T (HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000)
(74,500,001 T &
75#5,000,0007T) 1 -
AR®5,131,001TE RMB5,131,001 to RMB5,558,000
AR#5,658,0007T (HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000)
(#%6,000,001 T2
75%6,500,0007T) 1 -
AR¥7,595,001E RMB7,595,001 to RMB8,378,000
AR #8,378,0007T (HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000)
(#4%9,500,001TE
75%10,000,0007T) - 4
AR®11,310,0017TE RMB11,310,001 to RMB11,729,000
AR#11,729,0007T (HK$13,500,001 to HK$14,000,000)
(713,500,001 L&
&% 14,000,0007T) - 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. STAFF PROVIDENT FUND

A

HONG KONG

The Group operates various defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all Hong Kong
employees. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The amount of contributions is based on a specified
percentage of the basic salary of employees and any
forfeited contributions in respect of unvested benefits of
staff leavers are used to reduce the Group’s contributions.

—EB-XRF —T—RF

2016 2015

ARBEETR AREBHET

RMB million RMB million

(E31)

(Restated)
AEEHEE NES 2 7R Group contributions to staff
BireBmrxilk (M) provident fund, charged to

consolidated profit and
loss account (Note) - 27

BEE
BREFBECENERLEEZER -

PER it

AEBEFBERNBEIESHER A
BT HFEENBEREEENRE
MEF K E - AEBARZK EIX
NEITEREADLLNER - (FRE
MNED AEBEAENEFFENE—F
EER R EMRNK -

At BAAEARSEmESS
B RPHBRBAR AL EARES14
AEL(ZE—HF: AR®153478

e —

BIL) °

B

Note:
Including continuing and discontinued operations.

CHINESE MAINLAND

The employees of the Group in the Chinese Mainland are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the respective local government in the Chinese
Mainland. The Group is required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
these schemes is to make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated profit and loss
account in respect of the above-mentioned schemes in the
Chinese Mainland amounted to approximately RMB514
million (2015: RMB1,534 million).

13. TAXATION

e —2—5%F
2016 2015
ARBEHET AREBETT
RMB million RMB million
(E31)
(Restated)
HEGE 2% Continuing operations
REFEHIF Current taxation

B Hong Kong - 2
==Y Npe) Chinese Mainland 674 918
674 920

IEIEBLIE Deferred taxation
A B A it Chinese Mainland (354) (526)
320 394
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T=Z. %18 (@)

EBFNERIBIBEAFE 2 G5 ER
T % A IR T &16.5% (ZF — A 4F -
16.5%) 518 -

RE R E AR Z TS5 RIEE
B B IS A ) 3R {51 1B SR B A
H-BHE-Z—A~"F+=-A=+—8H
IEFEMBRMEHER25% (ZF—
R 25%) °

AEBBRBBANGEN(BE) 2B
AERRBREAEBEZERRE
SHEZIERVR  FEOT

13.

TAXATION (Continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits for the year.

Chinese Mainland income tax has been provided for based
on the estimated assessable profits in accordance with
the relevant tax laws applicable to the subsidiaries in the
Chinese Mainland. The applicable principal income tax rate
for the year ended 31 December 2016 is 25% (2015: 25%).

The taxation on the Group’s profit/(loss) before taxation
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the domestic rates applicable to the country concerned as

follows:
ZE-RF “T—AF
2016 2015
AREEHER ARBBEET
RMB million RMB million
(&%)
(Restated)
(MtEE2)
(Note 2)
BRE R A (&) Profit/(loss) before taxation
(TEFEEIEHE AR R (excluding share of net results
BETEZHEEFH) of associates and joint ventures) 1,739 (2,879)
AB BB ERSEAE Tax calculated at the domestic rates
ZTiIE applicable in the country concerned 409 (510)
T STl N Income not subject to taxation (25) (38)
TRz 2 N Expenses not deductible for taxation
purposes 50 767
ERFRIARBHERZ Utilisation of previously unrecognised
TR ER temporary difference (371) (67)
REER A Tax losses not recognised 293 1,086
EF (%), LEEB2TIE  (Over)/under provision on taxation in
previous year (45) 58
A ATERHEE (M3E1)  Income earning companies exempted
from taxation (Note 1) - (10)
RO BEFE 2 BHEH Withholding tax on undistributed profits 9 (155)
RIS Taxation charge 320 1,128
P e Notes:
1. AEEBPHEFEAMEENHREA 1. Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in the Chinese
AR ZE TR RERATBER Mainland are eligible for certain tax holidays or concessions
A Bl A R R L3R A B A and were exempted and reduced from Chinese Mainland
FriS%i - income taxes for the year under review.
2. PERELERERIEKRE X - 2. Including continuing and discontinued operations.
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14. DIVIDENDS
—E-RF i
2016 2015
ARBEHETR ARBBET
RMB million RMB million
(&E%)
(Restated)
—T-AFMEIRBEEFIRE 2015 special dividend paid of
BRREBARE12.30T HK$12.30 (RMB10.08)
(ARE#10.0870) per ordinary share - 24,516
T NEMBURE RIS 2016 proposed final dividend of
BRREERARE0.087T RMB0.08 per ordinary share
(ZT—hF &) (2015: Nil) 260 -
260 24,516

ERARAIR-_FT—tF=A=-+—H
RIONEF L EFRERRPREE
REBRRARK0.08T (ZE—H%F:

) - BKBE IR AR RN
CEREANEARBREE

TES

e arad
ZE

BB BRI REANERRAIE

—E-AEFHBRENFRIARNKE

M RENETT -

At the meeting held on 21 March 2017, the directors
proposed final dividend of RMB0.08 (2015: Nil) per ordinary
share. This proposed dividend, which is calculated on the
Company’s number of ordinary shares as at the date of
the board meeting, is not recognised as a liability in these
financial statements.

Details of the 2015 special dividend are set out in Note 15
to the consolidated financial statements.
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THERIERE XK

R-_ZE—FHAFERAMBE AAQAE
EHEETVEERZ (2 —AF
ANA+TEBBI Y AEEmE) (BB
Wzl BhHARQRRABELE M
EZEHEBNTREBEAERZIHIE
BEER((HEEHE]) BREA
75 #530,0008 BT (HERH AR
24,088 BIT) - WHESZSHER_-Z
—AFNANA—B=K ([ZK]) - HE
MERESERGEETEHREPHE=1
Zo

BEEEHE  ARAAIBEE IR &K
HFRIRL B4R BB 4B 129,028 E T
(HERWARE24516B8T) &
PERR 17 B %12.30 (BEROARKE
10.087T) ([HFRIRR B 1) » ek &£
ERATEBEATERERK - ARAI D
EKFEBETRABATEZNCETER
BEDRIEEES  AARDETH
WA A B E100B T (HERHARKE
99.6918 7T) (BB AL AN ) © Bl sk A% 2
ER—_ZE—RAFNA-+—HEES
A AR AR S R A o
BB IE ANE £ 2 #E RS AB 10018
T (HEERK ARKIS.69ETT) B8
BE AT DR GEE o b K A
BZFHEA MARAERR A
BAEBEEHEEBHEN  EHEE
HEARARREABTEBE=FAK
AR A 100B TR ER © A
RepEREBRRERERETRITX
CREBEREESEEEERNF
KRR _ZFE—RF+-_A=+—8"
BIREARK2722BEETHAEH
(fsE=+7) o

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 4 May 2015, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (as supplemented by a supplemental
agreement dated 15 June 2015) (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreements”) with CRH pursuant to which the Company
agreed to sell and CRH agreed to purchase all of the
non-beer businesses of the Group (the “Disposal”) at a
total consideration of HK$30,000 million (equivalent to
RMB24,088 million). The completion (“Completion”) of such
disposal took place on 1 September 2015. Information
of disposal is set out in Note 30B to the consolidated
financial statements.

Under the Sale and Purchase Agreements, the Company
was required to declare and pay a special dividend
of HK$12.30 (equivalent to RMB10.08) per share in
the aggregate amount of approximately HK$29,928
million (equivalent to RMB24,516 million) (the “Special
Dividend”) as soon as practicable after Completion. As
there were insufficient distributable reserves to support
the proposed distribution of the Special Dividend, the
Company has implemented a capital reduction scheme
of HK$10,000 million (equivalent to RMB9,969 million)
(“Capital Reduction”). The Capital Reduction became
effective upon the registration of the relevant documents
with the Registrar of companies in Hong Kong on 21
September 2015. The credit arising from the Capital
Reduction amounted to HK$10,000 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB9,969 million) has transferred to
the distribution reserve. In addition, for a period of three
years from the date of Completion, upon the request of the
Company and for the purpose of developing the Group’s
beer business, CRH will provide shareholder’s loan(s) for
a duration of not more than three years up to a maximum
aggregate amount of HK$10,000 million to the Company at
an interest rate at which CRH is able to borrow Hong Kong
dollars in an amount equal to the relevant loan from a
bank or a financial institution for the relevant period. As at
31 December 2016, RMB2,722 million was provided to the
Group (Note 25).
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15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

The results of the discontinued operations for the period
from 1 January 2015 to 31 August 2015 included in the
consolidated profit and loss account are set out below:

—ZT—RF
2015
ARBBET
RMB million
(&71)
(Restated)
ERLELE XK 2 ARBER Loss for the period from
discontinued operations
W= Revenue 79,926
s Expense (82,431)
il NG - Share of net results of associates ()
JEIE & BTG TR Share of net results of joint ventures 2
EFTELEHAEERNEE Loss on re-measurement of disposal group (1,784)
HEERIERE 2 52 F 18 Net loss on disposal of discontinued
(fsE=+2) operation (Note 30B) (313)
BR A% BT &S 18 Loss before taxation (4,603)
18 Taxation (734)
BrEii2 1R Loss after taxation (5,337)
RERESIE D BCR Loss for the period attributable to:
RN B R M 7 Shareholders of the Company (4,785)
DERR R Non-controlling interests (552)
(5,337)
=T—hF
2015
ARBBET
RMB million
==27))
(Restated)
CRIEEECERNRESRZSMMT © The analysis of the cash flows of
discontinued operations is as follow:
KRR MM AFE Net cash from operating activities 1,715
AREEEEZFHE Net cash used in investing activities (2,054)
AREEEE 2 FRe Net cash used in financing activities (112)
FRERE Net cash flows (451)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TR ERIEKE ZEK @) 15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)
—ZE—hF
2015
AREBETT
RMB million
(&%)
(Restated)
EARLERE 2 EKZHMBBA Other income of discontinued operations
BETIIRE : includes the following:
FEWA Interest income 175
WEYEE GRS Valuation gain on investment properties 87
& A B R E TS5 A Profit on disposal of available for sale
investments 4
B HERIU #H BY Government grants recognised 126
EARIKE 2 X5 2 KA Finance costs of discontinued operations
RITERREMERFE Interest on bank loans and other loans 259
BB (B IEE X s M EE) Financing charges (including exchange
gain or loss) 373
632
ERIERE EBHIE Taxation of discontinued operations
AEAB T IE Current taxation
BB Hong Kong 104
PR B A 3 Chinese Mainland 565
669
BRI Deferred taxation
B Hong Kong (2)
AR B A i, Chinese Mainland 67
65
734
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

—T—hfF
2015
AREBETT
RMB million
(&25)
(Restated)
RIS 222 A Loss for the period of discontinued operations
BEEHKRTIIEE : has been arrived at after charging:
ZEMMe — AFE Auditors’ remuneration — current year 12
BIXRA (BEESEH:) Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) 7,624
e Depreciation
—BEBE - Owned assets 1,798
Hofth T & B 5 Amortisation of other intangible assets
(BRE—REITHEERNA) (included general and administrative
expenses) 11
ERREEE Impairment loss recognised on (included
(PREEHERDHEBAN KR in selling and distribution expenses or
TRERA) general and administrative expenses)
—BEEEE - Fixed assets 241
— A& (&) - Goodwill (Note 1) 2,022
- FE - Stocks 212
EFFrEHEHEAEENEE (F2) Loss on re-measurement of disposal
group (Note 2) 1,784
HEKBAR  EB5HEEE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries/business 313
THREBFEEBNER (H:3) Operating leases charges on land and
buildings (Note 3) 3,528
EEEmAA Cost of goods sold 60,428
WEFTA : And after crediting:
HEWAERE Gross rental income 616
A FEREE Less: Related out-goings (40)
HEWAFE Net rental income 576
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TH.ERLERE

B 5E -
1. EHRTEEB T HREELBNNRD
BRERE ERETEBHEAESE

FREPRENEIRIE RIS T REN
A o AT El SR TAEREEAE
£ o (FRIRESREBANERKE
EEEBHAENREAFHUFBEER
FFIINMEIRR - M AFHZ
REMEFAREIERE25%-6.5%
ST o

2 (@)

2. AEEBREFAEHEHAEZHEAD
REBEEREHEEXNATER T ARE
1,784BEBTHERE - E2IFELE M
AREE - FHATBRME ABIRE
TR MAERINSE -

3. BRERIARBEEARKI16EE

JC °
TYEZKIARBEIREEBETE
LEHETE ©

TR EBREF (FHE)
AU ESRET/(BH) 0% EK

-
A
Eka

15.

16.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

Notes:

1. Impairment loss on goodwill relates to the impairment
of a cash generating unit under retail segment, following
management’s assessment of its performance as a result of
challenging environment of industry and keen competition.
The recoverable amounts are determined based on a
value-in-use calculation. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period and a discount rate
of 9.9% per annum. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using the nominal growth rate of 2.5%-
6.5%.

2. The Group has recognised a loss of RMB1,784 million in
relation to the re-measurement of disposal group to the
fair value less costs of disposal. This is a non-recurring fair
value which has been measured using observable inputs,
being the actual consideration paid.

3. Included contingent rent of RMB116 million. Contingent

rent for certain properties was determined by a certain
percentage of turnover of the leases.

EARNINGS/(LOSSES) PER SHARE

The weighted average numbers of ordinary shares used

MEFHHEER T —F"ENA TN in the calculation of earnings/(losses) per share have
H 5 Bt & 21T AR E’J‘%%.%T’E been adjusted for the bonus element of the rights issue
AR HUEFEHFNERETEE following the allotment and issuance of the rights shares
178 - on 18 August 2016 and prior year comparative had also
been restated for such effect.

—E—RE —T—hF
2016 2015
(&%)
(Restated)

dvig < 4=| Number of shares

BUGTEZREARK
BSEAA (BE)
A A% DAE 15 2K

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of calculating
basic and diluted earnings/(losses)
per share

2,873,592,085 2,647,781,013
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TR BRER (EHE) @ 16. EARNINGS/(LOSSES) PER SHARE (Continued)

ZE-RF —T—RfF
2016 2015
ARBEHETR ARBBET
RMB million RMB million
(E51)
(Restated)
BREANREHERAN (FE) The calculation of the basic and diluted
THiRE RSBt E earnings/(losses) per share is based
on the following data:
BR (F#E) Earnings/(losses)
FEICE 7T 2 Profit attributable to shareholders
R B A of the Company for continuing
operations 629 667
BRI E 2 X2 Loss attributable to shareholders
AN/NG Y e =] of the Company for discontinued
operations - (4,785)
629 (4,118)
AR¥ T AR¥TT
RMB RMB
(E31)
(Restated)
HEAXRBEZ2ER Basic and diluted earnings/(losses)
BR (&#8) per share
— BELERBRIEEE - From continuing and
ZETE discontinued operations 0.22 (1.56)
— BEEE XK - From continuing operations 0.22 0.25
— BRI E 2 ETE - From discontinued operations - (1.81)

BRERBNESRETRN, (B
1B) EZBGTEE E XA —2% -

The denominators used are the same as those detailed

above for both basic and diluted earnings/(losses) per

share.
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Tt.BEEE 17. FIXED ASSETS
KEER RHiiE - BERRE
e Other property, plant and equipment
g
Interests in
leasehold
land held
forown BRET b
REME  useunder Buildings BEgE
Investment  operating heldfor  Other fixed it it
properties leases own use assets Sub-total Total
ARERET ARBEET AREEERT AREEERT AREEER ARKBEER
RMBmilion ~ RMBmilion ~ RMBmillion ~ RMBmillion ~ RMBmillion ~ RMB million
ARG E Cost or valuation
RZE-16—f-H  Ejl At 1 January 2015, as restated 16,649 9,346 21,915 41,115 63,030 89,025
YENBLAR / $HEEA Relating to acquisition of
subsidiaries/business = = 61 95 156 156
HENBAR/ £HkEH Relating to disposal of
subsidiaries/ousiness (16,810) (7,218 (13,410) (21,667) (35,077) (69,108)
HE Additions - 174 171 4,561 4,738 4912
it Disposals - (18) (1) (1,366) (1,417) (1,435)
iR Reclassifications - 1,624 813 (1,056) (243) 1,381
Efh% Adjustment on valuation 87 - - - - 87
EiEE Exchange difference 74 (213) (355) (919) (1,274) (1,413)
R-Z-R%+=A=1-B At 31 December 2015 and
R=F-~E-A-H &l 1 January 2016, as restated - 3,695 9,150 20,763 29913 33,608
hE Additions - 256 4 1,448 1,489 1,745
ik Disposals - (19 (189) (737) (926) (945)
ETip] Reclassifications - 30 445 (490) (45) (15)
EfZE Fxchange difference - (1) (17) (49) (66) (67)
RZE-7"E+-A=1-H At 31 December 2016 = 3,961 9,430 20,935 30,365 34,326
ZEERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
RZZ-1%-A-B Ejl At 1 January 2015, as restated - 942 3848 14,767 18,615 19,557
HEMBRA/ $HKEL Relating to disposal of
subsidiaries/ousiness = (841) (2,100) (7,794) (9,894) (10,735)
TEENE Charge for the year - 182 621 2,701 3322 3504
HERR Written back on disposals - (4) (25) (1,049) (1,074) (1,078)
BRI RERE Impairment loss recognised - - 2 311 313 313
EX g Reclassifications - 312 305 764 1,069 1,381
EfzE Exchange difference = (30) (%) (697) (693) (723)
RZF-R%tZA=1-A At 31 December 2015 and
R=F-~E—A-H & 1 January 2016, as restated - 561 2,555 9,103 11,658 12,219
TEENE Charge for the year - 83 374 1,240 1614 1697
HERE Written back on disposals - (6) (108) (582) (688) (694)
BRRZAEER Impairment loss recognised - - 53 238 291 291
R Reclassifications - - - (15) (15) (15)
EiEE Exchange difference - (1) (18) (53) 04 (712)
RZE-E+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2016 - 637 2,858 9,931 12,789 13,426
EE%E Net book values
RZE-7E+ZA=1-A At 31 December 2016 = 3,324 6,072 11,004 17,576 20,900
R-E-RF+-A=F-H & At 31 December 2015, as restated - 3,134 6,595 11,660 18,25 21,389
BMIAAGIR AR Representing assets stated:
A At cost - 3,961 9,430 20,935 30,365 34,326
B-E-NEEZ[E At 2016 professional valuation - - - - - -
= 3,961 9,430 20,935 30,365 34,326

EMEE (%) AR 2 F China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

Other fixed assets mainly comprise construction in
progress, plant and machinery, leasehold improvements,

KRE o furniture and equipment and motor vehicles.
ERIR BERE  BEVEEE
Construction Plant and Leasehold ] &
in progress machinery  improvements Others Total
AREBET AREBET AREBET AREEET AREEET
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
AASEE Cost or valuation
R-E-HF—A-H & At 1 January 2015, as restated 5,431 22,54 8,586 4,556 41,115
WENRBAR / $BREA Relating to acquisition of
subsidiaries/busingss = 89 = 6 95
HERBAR/ $HREL Relating to disposal of
subsidiaries/business (3,602) (5,653) (8,349) (4,063) (21,667)
ME Additions 3,233 348 368 612 4,561
HE Disposals (20) (605) (304) (437) (1,366)
ER ] Reclassifications (3733) 2,032 47 598 (1,056)
EREE Exchange difference (99) (253) (343) (224) (919)
R-F-R%+-A=+-AFk At 31 December 2015 and
“5-rE-A-B &l 1 January 2016, as restated 1210 18,500 5 1,048 20,763
hE Additions 1311 113 - 2% 1448
e Disposals (1) (673) = (63) (787)
B8 Reclassifications (1.743) 1,198 - 85 (490)
ERES Fxchange difference 3 (52) ; i} (“9)
R=B—7ETZA=1-H At 31 December 2016 780 19,086 5 1,064 20935
ZiERAE Accumulated depreciation and impairment
RZE-1%-f-B Ej At 1 January 2015, as restated 72 9,485 3,100 2,110 14,767
HENBAR/ $HkET Relating to disposal of
subsidiaries/business (113) (2,336) (3,311) (2,034) (7,794)
REEME Charge for the year - 1,476 653 572 2,701
HERD Written back on disposals - (432) (300) (317) (1,049)
ERRZAERR Impairment loss recognised 72 109 99 31 311
EZ ] Reclassifications - 288 ) 478 764
EREH Exchange difference (29) (174) (234) (160) (597)
R-E-1F+-A=1-HER At 31 December 2015 and
“5-r5-A-H & 1 January 2016, as restated 2 8,416 5 680 9,103
KEEME Charge for the year - 1147 - 9 1,240
HERD Written back on disposals = (529) = (53) (582)
ERERAEER Impairment loss recognised - 23 - 5 28
EEip] Reclassifications - (17) - 2 (15)
EXES Exchange difference - (53) - - (53)
R=B—7ETZA=T-H At 31 December 2016 2 9,197 5 727 9,091
ERFE Net book values
RZZ—"ETZA=T-H At 31 December 2016 778 9,889 - 337 11,004
RZE-2&5+=B=1-0 &} At 31 December 2015, as restated 1,208 10,084 - 368 11,660
BN ASIRLBE - Representing asses stated:
E A At cost 780 19,086 5 1,064 20,935
S EEEE At 2016 professional valuation - - - - -
780 19,086 5 1,064 20,935
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TN\.EE 18. GOODWILL
AREBET
RMB million
P ZNME Cost
R-ZE—HFE—H—H ' &7 At 1 January 2015, as restated 18,042
bE 5 =58 Exchange difference (61)
HENMBAR ERG Disposal of subsidiaries/business (9,655)
RZE—RFE+=_A=+—H At 31 December 2015 and
R=ZZF—X"F—H—H8  #7 1 January 20186, as restated 8,326
ME 5, =50 Exchange difference 96
RZZE—ARFE+HA=+—H At 31 December 2016 8,422
ZEPRERE Accumulated impairment losses
R-ZZE—HF—HF—H &% At 1 January 2015, as restated 13
b =50 Exchange difference 1
BEERREEE (MHE+h) Impairment loss recognised (Note 15) 2,022
Bt EHEHESEENER Loss on re-measurement of disposal group
(F+5) (Note 15) 1,784
HEMBAR 25 Disposal of subsidiaries/business (3,820)
R-EBE—RAF+-_A=+—8 " At 31 December 2015,
—E-RF—H—H &7 1 January 2016, as restated
F=—F—FRE+-_A=+—H and 31 December 2016 -
AREE Carrying values
RZZE—R"F+=A=+—H At 31 December 2016 8,422
RZEBE—RF+_A=+—H - =7 At 31 December 2015, as restated 8,326

BEREEIEERSELEM
(TeGUl) » e DA K B # 175 8
ERMEAEREENEMBZLER
B-UT/ABIE D EHE

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the
cash generating units (“CGU”), each of which represent an
operating entity within the operating segments identified
by the Group for the purpose of segment reporting. A
segment level summary of the goodwill allocation is
presented below:

—E—REF —T—AF

2016 2015

ARBEETR ARBEET

RMB million RMB million

(&%)

(Restated)

R® Eastern region 2,334 2,261
= Central region 829 815
& [@ Southern region 5,259 5,250

EMEE (%) AR 2 F China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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HEAET ZSHEHEARBARESE
EERAzAFHUEREmMELZ
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ERANTEAAETRAERRR
8.7% (ZZE—HAF : 10.5%) ZFH:#
REBABRSIHE o

AW &R E MG
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18. GOODWILL (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined
based on a value in use calculation. These calculations use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period, cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
key assumptions including expected revenue growth rates
stated below and a discount rate of 8.7% (2015: 10.5%) per
annum.

BHAEFHBERREZ
HAFRABRE
Expected revenue growth rates
beyond the five years’
financial budget

(%)
—E-ARF —TAF
2016 2015
R Eastern region 2%-3% 2.5%-5%
R R Central region 2%-3% 2.5%-5%
7 [& Southern region 2%-3% 2.5%-5%
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Th.EtEEEE 19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
PREE

B  Exploitation &5t

Brand names rights Total

AREBET ARKBET ARKAEERT

RMB million RMB million RMB million

AR Cost
S el el = At 1 January 2015, as restated

gl 652 66 718

TEMRBAR ¥ Disposal of subsidiaries/

business (170) (64) (234)
PE =58 Exchange difference (7) (2) 9)
RZZT—RAF+=A At 31 December 2015

=t—HRER-ZT—RF and 1 January 2016,

—A—H &7l as restated 475 - 475
e Disposals (2) - (2)
P& M =%8 Exchange difference (4) = (4)
RN-ZE—NRE+=A At 31 December 2016

=+—H 469 - 469

ZETEEE RO E Accumulated amortisation and
impairment
R=ZE—HF—H—H" At 1 January 2015, as restated

&7 301 15 316
REZHH Charge for the year 31 3 34
HENBAR %5 Disposal of subsidiaries/

business (47) (17) (64)
PE N ZE%R Exchange difference (4) (1 (5)
RZE—RF+_A At 31 December 2015

=t+t—BR=_Z—RE and 1 January 2016,

—A—A8 ' &7 as restated 281 - 281
NG Charge for the year 24 = 24
& 5l Written back on disposals 2) = 2)
PE 5 =58 Exchange difference (5) = (5)
NR-ZZE—RE+=HA At 31 December 2016

=+—H 298 - 298

REFE Net book values
R-ZE—XRE+=A At 31 December 2016

=+—H 171 - 171
R-ZE—HF+ A At 31 December 2015,

=+—8  £%| as restated 194 = 194
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20. AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS

—E—XREF —E—AhF
2016 2015
ARBBEER ARBBET
RMB million RMB million
(E31)
(Restated)
AR A TR Listed equity shares in Chinese
ARrfEE Mainland, at fair value 9 10

IHRERENAABEELRMS

WEMAEE
- B R

The fair values of investment in listed equity shares are

determined with reference to quoted market bid prices.

21. PREPAYMENTS

—E-EHfF —ZT—ARF
2016 2015
ARBEETR AREBET
RMB million RMB million
(&%)
(Restated)

BERETEEZF SRR Deposit payment for purchase of
fixed assets 89 158

i g < 22. STOCKS

—E—REF —T—AF
2016 2015
AREEET ARERETT
RMB million RMB million
(&%)
(Restated)
Rk Raw materials 571 639
SFEm M B EME Consumables and packing materials 4,464 4,978
FE& Work-in-progress 265 311
BIFK oh Finished goods 810 560
6,110 6,488
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Tt ES REMEWRIR

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

—E—RF —T—RF
2016 2015
ARBEET ARERETT
RMB million RMB million
(&%)
(Restated)
EUWE=TFESHEX Trade receivables from third parties 688 599
FEW RN R EE KB A 7 Trade receivables from fellow
B SR subsidiaries 41 70
AR Provision for doubtful debts (40) (39)
689 630
Al B E R Value-added tax recoverable 190 260
TEfTFRIE Prepayments 196 268
BfiEE Deposits paid 5 11
H b e IR Other receivables 172 360
U — AR A A Amount due from a holding company
8 (EE) (Note) 1 _
e STNGIESE] Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
A RIFIE (Fisk) (Note) - 2
1,253 1,531

BaE

JE M — Rl P22 A 2 ) e [R] 5 B B8 2 R OB A

i 2B RERRRE

AEE—RETEPATZEES

() B33 &
(Z2) =Z+EN+RERIR

REERANEURE=TRERAEE

Note:

(a) cash upon delivery; and

(b) open credit from 30 to 90 days

Amounts due from a holding company and fellow subsidiaries were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The Group normally trades with its customers under the
following credit terms:

The following is the aging analysis of trade receivables

MEARE ZERAREAITIT : from third parties and fellow subsidiaries at the balance
sheet date:

—E-XRF —T—hF
2016 2015
ARBBEER AREBHETT
RMB million RMB million
(E%)
(Restated)

rER The Group
0-30% 0-30 days 96 119
31-60K 31-60 days 58 99
61-90K 61-90 days 57 93
> 90K > 90 days 478 319
689 630

AEEREERNE S K H M EKRK
BARBEEEREERS

The fair value of the Group’s trade and other receivables at
balance sheet date was approximate to the corresponding
carrying amount.

EMEE (%) AR 2 F China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

MOVEMENT IN THE PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS

=B—XRF —Z—RF

2016 2015

ARBEET AREBET

RMB million RMB million

(&E%)

(Restated)

R—HA—H At 1 January 39 91

B R REEE Impairment losses recognised 21 39

ES 97 E R s et Amounts written off as uncollectible (20) (24)

HEWB AR, ¥ Disposal of subsidiaries/business - (63)

M 5 =58 Exchange difference - (4)

Rt+—A=+—H At 31 December 40 39
380 A 1B AR (B BR R A9 AR iR AGING OF PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED

—E-KF i

2016 2015

ARBEHER ARBBET

RMB million RMB million

(&%)

(Restated)

#HAN 308 Less than 30 days past due 56 20

#HI31-60H 31-60 days past due 4 7

#HI61-90 8 61-90 days past due 5 8

BHE90 H M | Over 90 days past due 66 9

131 L4

R AR 8D HA R OR (B A FE IRERIR - F
RTARBRNER  wfPoFH g

Rk o

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.
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R ES REMENRE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

—E-RF —T—hF
2016 2015
AREBER ARBEET
RMB million RMB million
(&31)
(Restated)
BN E SRR Trade payables 1,583 1,501
TEUWFRIE Receipt in advance 613 623
ERER (M) Accruals (Note 1) 8,091 7,512
BlES Deposit received 4,404 4,204
E A RT3 Other payables 1,670 2,291
FEMHERL A BIZRIAE (5£2)  Amounts due to holding companies
(Note 2) 50 146
HANRSYNGIE L) ZpN Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
R (PFE3) (Note 3) - 501
16,411 16,778
BisE Notes:
1. FEIREABIEARK6363HEET 1. Including accruals on promotion and marketing expenses of
ZE—hF: AR5936EET) RMB6,363 million (2015: RMB5,936 million).
WIEREHERERER -
2. ERNERABRFIAREER 28K 2. Amounts due to holding companies were unsecured,
BElr BRiR o interest-free and repayable on demand.
3. RIZT—H1F ENIAAEEMN 3.  Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries in 2015 included an

BRRRIEEEREARKE
BLe WREAEEA  RFERX
3.92%:t B RER B — NFERNEH

{=E yom
IB& °

REEANENE SRR ZREDT

amount of RMB500 million which was unsecured, bear
interest at 3.92% per annum and fully repaid in 2016.

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the

R balance sheet date:
—E—XREF —E—hF
2016 2015
ARBEET ARBEET
RMB million RMB million
(&%)
(Restated)
0-30K 0-30 days 1,461 1,373
31-60K 31-60 days 22 42
61-90K 61-90 days 12 26
> 90K > 90 days 88 60
1,583 1,501

AEBERNGEEBNE S REMERRK
BARBEREKERERS

The fair value of the Group’s trade and other payables at
balance sheet date was approximate to the corresponding
carrying amount.

EMEE (%) AR 2 F China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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25. LOANS FROM A HOLDING COMPANY

Loans from a holding company in 2016 included loans
of RMB1,700 million and HK$1,143 million (equivalent to
RMB1,022 million) which are unsecured, bear interest at
3.8% and Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) +
0.8% per annum, respectively, and repayable within 1 year.

As set out in Note 15, CRH will provide shareholder’s
loans upon request of the Company for the period of three
years from 1 September 2015. The aggregate amount
of shareholder’s loan facilities available to the Group is
HK$10,000 million (equivalent to RMB8,945 million) (2015:
HK$10,000 million; equivalent to RMB8,378 million). As at
31 December 2016, a sum of RMB2,722 million (2015: Nil)
has been drawn down.

BAREAARK2722BE T (ZZ—

hE &)
TR REEER 26A.SHORT TERM LOANS
—E-RF —T—AF
2016 2015
ARBEETR ARBBET
RMB million RMB million
(E31)
(Restated)
REVEEIFIRITE R Current portion of long term
B HAZR {7 unsecured bank loans - 1,508
EHEEHIRITER Short term unsecured bank loans 1,592 270
1,592 1,778
I REIER 26B.LONG TERM LOANS
ZEB-RF —T—RF
2016 2015
ARBEETR ARBEETL
RMB million RMB million
(E73))
(Restated)
I IRIRITE X Unsecured bank loans 2,953 5,347
e & &2 BIHA SR Current portion included in current
liabilities - (1,508)
2,953 3,839
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N REER & 26B.LONG TERM LOANS (Continued)
—NE T —RF
2016 2015
ARBEETR AREBET
RMB million RMB million
(&%)
(Restated)
ﬁHHE\FZiFEﬂHH*BTﬁFE The non-current portion of long term
WA TFEHEE - liabilities are repayable as follows:
RITER Bank Loans
—FUAEEMER After 1 year, but within 2 years 2,505 -
MENEERFEA After 2 years, but within 5 years 447 3,837
hF& After 5 years 1 2
2,953 3,839
AREBEMHAMNEAAEBERERRE The aggregate amount of committed bank borrowing
BAREB295EBT (ZE—HF : AR facilities available to the Group is RMB2.95 billion (2015:
¥B36EIT) R-B—ARFE+-A= RMB5.35 billion). As at 31 December 2016, a sum of
T—B EBAFE/ARK25E RMB2.95 billion (2015: RMB5.35 billion) has been drawn
T (ZZE—R%F : AR¥KBE35ET) down.
REBEUBERARBREN 2F The Group has floating rate borrowings denominated in
BAER  BEHRIEHIBORKH E A Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi with interest rates linked
RERITIRE 2 BGAF =54 - to HIBOR and the lending rate stipulated by the People’s
Bank of China respectively.
AEBEFZEBRZERENEEER The effective annual interest rates on the Group’s floating
1.02%%E3.92% (ZE—HF: BF rate borrowings range from mainly 1.02% to 3.92% (2015:
1.02%=E3.92%) 1% o from 1.02% to 3.92%) per annum.
St IEERL IR 27. DEFERRED TAXATION
FRNELEHIBEERBEZZSHAT : The movement in deferred taxation assets and liabilities
recognised during the year is as follows:
HE - BEREM
B Impairment, provision B3t
Tax losses and others Total
—E-xE ZT-hAF ZE-xE C—T-HFf CZB-R"E C—ZT-1%
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

ARBEER ARKEERL ARWEER ARWEEL ARWEER ARKEER
RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMBmillion ~ RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million

(&51) (&3) (&3))
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

B EAE Deferred taxation assets
®—A—H At 1 January 12 209 1,643 1,585 1,655 1,794

EREBRR Credited/(charged) to

FEA/ () consolidated profit and
loss account 69 (3) 287 316 356 312

HEMBAR /%%  Disposal of subsidiaries/
(MsF=12) business (Note 30B) - (190) - (259) - (449)
[ERHE Exchange rate adjustment - (4) - 2 - (2)
“+ZA=1—H At 31 December 81 12 1,930 1,643 2,011 1,655
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Tt IRERIE (@) 27. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)
BERBEENEBAORBH RS E Deferred taxation assets are recognised for tax losses
ARRRERVRAFINERS LR - & carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
REEBEEEER - R — X F+ tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
ZA=1+—B  AEBRERZHE At 31 December 2016, the Group has unrecognised tax
BEEAREI7I2BEET (ZE—1 losses of RMB3,712 million (2015: RMB3,365 million)
F: AR¥336558L) r MAKEE which is uncertain as to whether it can be utilised to set
NBETEE A & B A 7% 2 SR IE B R 2R Y off against future taxable income. Out of this amount,
JERB AL HeBEERERAF the unrecognised tax loss of RMB3,673 million (2015:
NE R R ERZMBEEE ARE RMB3,365 million) will expire within 5 years.

373 EETL(ZE—TF: ARK
3,365AB L) °
NTREEGEEEBERTER The components of deferred taxation liabilities recognised
EEREE EAEMKI N ERFER in the consolidated balance sheet and the movements
g : during the year are as follows:
AOEFEZ
BEMAEHR
RENEER MEBIEHE Withholding
Revaluation Accelerated taxon
of investment tax  undistributed ast
properties depreciation profits Total
ARBEBET AREBET AREBET AREBET
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
WZF—RF—F—H F5| At1January 2015, as restated 537 634 600 1,771
ERABRRNR / Charged/(credited) to
(5t A) consolidated profit
and loss account 20 (14) (155) (149)
HEMBAR /%% Disposal of
subsidiaries/business (560) (467) (348) (1,375)
P R g Exchange rate
adjustment 3 (8) 16 11
RZE—1F At 31 December 2015
+=A=t—-8k and 1 January 2016,
“E-R¥-A—H 5| as restated - 145 113 258
ERABRER (Credited)/charged to
(FtA)/ 10k consolidated profit
and loss account = (7) 9 2
b R =% Exchange rate
adjustment = 1 10 11
RZZ—"EFZA=+—H  At31 December 2016 - 139 132 271

BREPEARKMBEDESR - RIEMG
MEHTEMBARE —_ZTENF—
A— B EREF B E e B B
B - EER B AR 2 BC A B B AT
AERNEREMOBRE S LRIEE
o

Under the Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has been provided for undistributed profits to the
extent that declarations of dividends are anticipated in the
foreseeable future.
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N Bt IERBRE

RZE—R"E+ZA=+—8 " Eft
IRBEERECERAELE RSN
BEEARESSIAE T (ZE—H
F: ARKESSSEET) - BB E
Do \REMBBRMAHESES
fAE L rmas -

ZHh R

28. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2016, other non-current liabilities
included government grants of RMB881 million (2015:
RMB588 million) recognised as deferred revenue. The
government grants mainly represent subsidies granted by
PRC governmental authorities towards the purchases of

leasehold land.

29. SHARE CAPITAL

—E-RF —EZ—h%F
2016 2015
REE EE L] &
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
HER ARMHER BER AREBEETL
million RMB million million  RMB million
(E31)
(Restated)
BT R R Issued and fully paid
®n—A—H At 1 January 2,433 5,941 2,421 15,691
B AR A (BisE1) Capital reduction
(Note 1) - - - (9,969)
FIT AR SRR D Issue of scrip
dividend shares - - 12 219
AR 1T 2 FTAR (D Issue of new shares
(MBRBITRHZER) under rights issue
(FffzE2) (net of share issue
expenses) (Note 2) 811 8,149 - -
R+Z—H=+—H At 31 December 3,244 14,090 2,433 5,941
BdaE - Notes:
1. HIBRBRAKFBEHNEGE M ERES 1. Details of capital reduction are set out in Note 15 to the
MEE+A - consolidated financial statements.

2. REBEE-_ZT—R"F+-A=+—8H1t
FERN AREERBRER=-ZT—F
tAZ+—HERE=RRMHERE—
P& IR B 1 B ELAE DA iR 7 611,73
7T (FHERARE10.057T) MREE
517 MR EE811,044, 226 FT R 15 ©

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 811,044,226 new
shares were issued and allotted by the Company pursuant
to rights issue at the subscription price of HK$11.73
(equivalent to RMB10.05) per share on the basis of one
rights share for every three shares held by its shareholders
on 22 July 2016.
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT
RETHZHRERE A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
—E—-XKF —T—hF
2016 2015
AREEER ARBBET
RMB million RMB million
(&E%)
(Restated)
BREEDER  (E5iE) Profit/(loss) before taxation 1,739 (2,880)
FHEE - Adjustments for:
B N B 4R TR Share of net results of associates - 3
EhE BB FEEE TR Share of net results of joint ventures - 2)
HENBRAR %% Loss on disposal of subsidiaries/
Fri5Esia business - 313
BT ELEEHEEGELEDN Loss on re-measurement of
518 disposal group - 1,784
HERERE SR Profit on disposal of available for
sale investments - (7)
AERENREWA Dividend income from available for
sale investments - (1)
PEH (Wax), Bk Exchange (gain)/loss (32) 383
FEA Interest income (71) (336)
FEZH Interest expenses 104 372
HEBTEEESF OFF),/ Net (gain)/loss on disposal of
518 fixed assets (28) 91
ERERZEEEE Impairment loss recognised on
RIEEE fixed assets 291 313
ERERZEERERSE Impairment loss recognised
on goodwill - 2,022
EHRZFERERE Impairment loss recognised on stocks 173 283
e Depreciation 1,697 3,604
Hh T & 8 Amortisation of other intangible
assets 24 34
REYFEEH RS Valuation gain on investment
properties - (87)
B R BT B Government grants recognised (146) (240)
EEBSEBR 2 LE Operating cash inflows before
WEMA working capital changes 3,751 5,549
SELNpiEk Ao Prepayment for rental deposit - 24
FEZ2#E) Changes in stocks 208 2,907
B 5 RE A EWGRIE 2 Changes in trade and other
ZE) receivables 277 15
B 5 RHAMBENKIEZ Changes in trade and other
) payables 853 (2,207)
LESZRE Cash generated from operations 5,089 6,288
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CHEEEERERKNE @

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT (Continued)
Z HEWBAR ¥EH B DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS
—B-XRF —ET—hF
2016 2015
ARBEETR ARBEETL
RMB million RMB million
(&71)
(Restated)
HEEESE Net assets disposed of:
EEEE Fixed assets - 48,370
[k Goodwill - 5,835
HEEEEE Other intangible assets - 170
N /N e ey Interests in associates - 271
REBRHE 2 ER Interests in joint ventures - 779
AIERE Available for sales investment - 92
TE IR Prepayment - 560
REFIRE E Deferred taxation assets
(HFE=+t) (Note 27) - 449
& Stocks - 11,952
B 5 Nk E MR FIE Trade and other receivables - 9,567
AR BIFR IR Taxation recoverable - 17
BERBIRITET Pledged bank deposits - 329
B& RIRTTERE Cash and bank balances - 10,895
B 5 Kk EMERA TR Trade and other payables - (41,894)
MEHER Short term loans - (6,260)
FERNFLIA Taxation payable - (604)
RHIEX® Long term loans - (8,150)
HEMIERB AR Other non-current liabilities - (1,251)
BEERIEBE Deferred taxation liabilities - (1,375)
- 29,752
FEFE AR R A 2 Non-controlling interests - (5,250)
o e Reserve released - (101)
HEMBAR, #55 Loss on disposal of subsidiaries/
FiBEE (ME+h) business (Note 15) - (313)
- 24,088
PNIESENE Satisfied by:
HeRE Cash consideration - 11,706
A EE () Promissory note (Note) - 12,382
- 24,088
HEMBATR¥K Analysis of the net inflow of cash and
FFBzBReRES cash equivalents in respect of
ZERANFEDN disposal of subsidiaries/business
BUWIRERE Cash considerations received - 11,706
HERE MIRTTHET Cash and bank balances disposed of - (10,895)
- 811

it < AR 2E TSR BV RO IR E AEE RE
S5 1 5 9 45 0 0 4 3 AR 8. 4RO

EMEE (%) AR 2 F China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited

Note: The promissory note receivable from CRH has been settled
and set off with the special dividend payable to CRH.
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Continued)

B DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS (Continued)

On 4 May 2015, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (as supplemented by a supplemental
agreement dated 15 June 2015) with CRH, pursuant to
which the Company agreed to sell and CRH agreed to
purchase all of the non-beer businesses of the Group at
a total consideration of HK$30,000 million (equivalent
to RMB24,088 million). The disposal was completed on 1
September 2015.

WEEMB AR, %% C ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS
—E-RF —T1fF
2016 2015
ARBEETR AREBETT
RMB million RMB million
(&E%)
(Restated)
R RS EENRAE ©  The assets acquired and liabilities
recognised at the dates of acquisition:
EEEE Fixed assets - 156
3 Stocks - 41
B 5 K& H A WK IE Trade and other receivables - 16
RE RIRTTEF Cash and bank balances - 16
B 5 R HME TR Trade and other payables - (122)
REIE K Short term loans - (3)
- 104
il IR R Non-controlling interests - (9)
- 95
ATHIA A A Discharged by:
B A EEA Transfer from associates - 8
BETERIA Equity instruments issued - 87
- 95
WEMBLAT %% 23HE Analysis of the net outflow of cash
RREEEREFEIN and cash equivalents in respect of
acquisition of subsidiaries/
business’s undertaking
ENBREERE Cash consideration paid - =
B FT1S IR & RIRTTHETT Cash and bank balances acquired - 16
- 16
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Zt- BAREE 31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
—E—RE —T—hF
2016 2015
AR¥EEBT AREBET
RMB million RMB million
(&51)
(Restated)
REE B RARTKZER Capital commitments outstanding at
AELR - the balance sheet date are as follows:
EELOEMAREE (M) Contracted but not provided for (Note) 5,017 3,571
Mz BREEETEECEARARERAR Note: Including contractual commitments for the acquisition of
Be017EBL (ZE—HF: AR fixed assets of RMB5,017 million (2015: RMB3,571 million).
#3,671EEIT) °
CTLERMEARE 32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
ERAE A AS LESSEE
—E-RF —TIfF
2016 2015
AR¥BEEBT AREBHET
RMB million RMB million
&=27))
(Restated)
REEER - BRIBEAA At the balance sheet date, the total
EEA AR 0T HARE future minimum lease payments
Ttz SEAERIEMAEE :©  under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:
—E—FN — Within one year 57 42
— S ETERHE - In the second to fifth year inclusive
(BEEREME) 20 4
—hF & — After five years 2 4
79 50
EHEMEFTER - TFE2HESF Operating leases are negotiated for lease terms principally
HARgE o ranged from 1 to 20 years.
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33. TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS

As set out in Note 1D, the Company acquired an additional
49% equity interest in CRSB at a consideration of US$1,600
million and transaction cost (equivalent to RMB11,001
million). CRSB became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company upon completion of this acquisition.

The carrying amount of the non-controlling interest in
CRSB on the date of acquisition was RMB9,889 million. The
excess of approximately RMB1,112 million, represented the
difference between the fair value of the consideration and
transaction cost paid for the acquisition and the carrying
amount of the non-controlling interest acquired on the
date of acquisition, was recognised within equity. The effect
of changes in the ownership interest in CRSB on the equity
attributable to the shareholders of the Company during the
year is summarised as follows:

—B-A%
2016
ARBEHET
RMB million
SATHE FEIEHIAR R 2 BB AR Consideration paid to non-controlling
R interests and transaction cost 11,001
U B B FEAE I AR R A 2 Carrying amount of non-controlling
RIS H BRI E interests acquired as at acquisition date (9,889)
RERERNEZRRER Excess of consideration paid and transaction
RGEAZ % H & cost recognised within equity 1,112
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IR ERBERS

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

G2

ARREEEMB AR (BRARE
BAL) ETZRZEREAIKEKY
i WEARKERRE - BRAMH

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries,
which are related parties of the Company, have been

ERTRBZR S REHRIN  AE
BETTIRREAFERS ¢

eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this
Note. In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered

into the following material related party transactions:

—EB-RE —T-RF
2016 2015
ARBBEER ARBBEETT
RMB million RMB million
(E3)
(Restated)
M5 AREASm Purchase of goods from
(SNl )= Fellow subsidiaries - 919
BX T AR 2 RS Receipt of services from
—ER AR () A holding company (Note) 78 -
BRAKEZHBAT] Fellow subsidiaries - 187
=N Associates - 11
M5 ARHEE R Sales of goods to
—RAERAT] A holding company -
(SYNSIESE Al =FNC] Fellow subsidiaries 149 51
[ N5 A R AR S Rendering of services to
—EZER AR A holding company - 12
BRREEZHBAR Fellow subsidiaries - 5
=N Associates - 4
AR ARI ST EEBLFKIE Operating lease payment to
(SYNGIESE )N Fellow subsidiaries 22 63
A N5 A mURERF S Interest received from
—MEER AR A holding company - 5
AR EEZHEAF] A fellow subsidiary - 8
ERNIAGIFZ RS Interest paid to
2 NG| Holding companies 22 -
(SYNGIESE )= PNG A fellow subsidiary 4 1
BEEFHEEH:ELRMEEE Transaction under godown management
EETR S agreement and facilities management
M 5 A B RER AR 7 & Receipt of service fee from
—EZER AR A holding company - 52
BRREEZHBA A Fellow subsidiaries - 60
R NSIARIXTAE Payment of monthly fee to
—MEERAE A holding company - 5
BRAEEZHBERR Fellow subsidiaries - 14

P

TR R i — IR A IR + KA A A
FHE - WRATAROEEHE -

Note:

basis.

144 EMEE (%) AR 2 F China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited

Administrative service is provided by a holding company, of which
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34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES WITH OTHER
STATE-CONTROLLED ENTITIES IN CHINESE
MAINLAND

The Group itself is a part of a larger group of companies
under CRNC which is controlled by the PRC government.
Apart from the transactions with CRNC group and the
associates of the Group, it also conducts businesses
with entities directly or indirectly owned or controlled by
the PRC government in the ordinary course of business.
The directors are of the opinion that those entities other
than the CRNC group do not have the power to govern or
participate in the financial and operating policies of the
Group. The transactions including sales and purchases of
goods and services and bank deposits and corresponding
interest income, with these entities are conducted in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business. The Group believes
that it has provided, at the best of its knowledge, adequate
and appropriate disclosure of related party transactions as
summarised above.

TEEE AE ZFHM COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

SNHTHRESERAUGSFHEEING Remuneration paid for key management personnel other

FEEFBABZMEFBELT than directors or the five highest paid employees are as
follows:

—E-KRF —T0fF

2016 2015

ARBEBER ARBBEET

RMB million RMB million

(&%)

(Restated)

BEARF & MOERE Basis salaries and allowances - 0.96

RNIES Provident fund contribution - 0.09

- 1.05
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IR EERERRFEEED

F OEEREX
R-ZF—R"F+-A=1+—H

35. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

OF THE COMPANY

A BALANCE SHEET

At 31 December 2016

—E-XE —T—hF —T—hF
+=A=+—H +t=-A=+—H —H—H
31 December 31 December 1 January
2016 2015 2015
AREBEERT AREBEERT ARKBEET
RMB million RMB million RMB million
(&%) (&%)
(Restated) (Restated)
FRBEE Non-current assets
EEEE Fixed assets
—REME - Investment properties - - 52
— Hbs - #as — Other property, plant and
NG equipment 3 5 6
R B A E 2 RS Interests in subsidiaries 16,722 7,333 22,558
16,725 7,338 22,616
REBEE Current assets
B 5 Rk H MW GRIE Trade and other receivables 152 293 436
e MIRITET Cash and bank balances 698 778 4,008
850 1,071 4 444
REEE Current liabilities
B 5 &M FRIE Trade and other payables (61) (424) (1,563)
B —EER AR ER Loans from a holding company (2,722) = -
MHIE R Short term loans (346) = =
(3,129) (424) (1,563)
#E (BfE) EESME Netcurrent (liabilities)/assets (2,279) 647 2,881
BEERARBAER Total assets less current liabilities 14,446 7,985 25,497
ERBERS Non-current liabilities
FEAST BT /B A I 5RIE Amounts due to subsidiaries - (2,068) (8,582)
EERIEEE Deferred taxation liabilities (1) (1) (1)
(1) (2,069) (8,583)
14,445 5,916 16,914
MR R Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 14,090 5,941 15,691
M Reserves 355 (25) 1,223
14,445 5,916 16,914

BREJ CHEN LANG
ZZEDirector

R EE LAI PO SING, TOMAKIN

EZEDijrector
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BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

ARFZHEEE B RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
BE_T— X NF+-_A=+—HIt#F For the year ended 31 December 2016
J‘g
PR 6 4
HEE
JiiEsT 00
Shares held
EifEfE  forrestricted REEM
Exchange incentive Retained At
reserve  award scheme profits Total
AREBET AREBET AREBET ARBEBET
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
R-ZE—AF—HA—H &7 At1January 2015, as restated (4,013) (315) 5,551 1,223
ER=R Exchange differences on
translation 1,040 - - 1,040
AEERF Profit for the year - - 12,278 12,278
HER 1 R BT 2R AR (D Sale of shares under restricted
incentive award scheme = 296 = 296
BPRAR AR Capital reduction - - 9,969 9,969
K2 Dividends - = (24,831) (24,831)
R=ZZE—AFF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2015 and
R=—Z—XRE—A—B 8% 1January 2016, as restated (2,973) (19) 2,967 (25)
xRz Exchange difference on
translation 744 - = 744
$$J§E€§T§ Loss for the year = - (364) (364)
RZE—~"E+-A=+—H  At31 December 2016 (2,229) (19) 2,603 355

AARAHDERFRREZFEBEBAR
BIBEBL(ZE—HEFE: ARK

o —

756 E &) °

HERSHBRE

F2HEFI47TETE 258 M iEhE
EEEEEeRN T t+HF=A_-+—

HELE -

Reserves of the Company available for distribution to the
shareholders amounted to RMB431 million (2015: RMB756
million).

36. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2017.

The consolidated financial statements set out on pages 82
to 147 were approved by the board of directors on 21 March
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Principal Subsidiaries

R=Z—"F+=A=+—H At31 December 2016

RABSL
Percentage of capital
BRAEBRRA /RER AEEER  ADNARE WELRRE
MEAR Issued ordinary share capital/ Attributable  Held by the Heldby E%%
Subsidiaries registered capital to the Group Company subsidiaries Principal activities
REBZMRL
Incorporated in Hong Kong
ERRREHERAR LRERR 100.0 - 1000 B%
CRE Beverage Trading Limited 2 ordinary shares Financing
REBRZRSEMAL
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands
ERSHRRERAR 42,800,400%BRE(E1ET L EBR 100.0 100.0 - REER
China Resources Snow Breweries Limited 42,800,400 ordinary shares Investment holding
of US$1 each
R ER R L
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland
o EREREE (L)) BRELAT AR¥124,143,8537 1000 - 1000 BENHEREER
China Resources Snow Breweries RMB124,143,853 Manufacturing and distribution
(Sichuan) Co., Ltd. of beer products
o EREEWE (BR) BRACAR ARE131,270,0007 100.0 - 1000 HENHERAER
China Resources Snow Breweries RMB131,270,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Guangan) Co., Ltd. of beer products
o EREREE (W) BRECAH AR#147,047,2377C 100.0 - 1000 BERNHERAER
China Resources Snow Breweries RMB147,047,237 Manufacturing and distribution
(Neijiang) Co., Ltd. of beer products
o EREREE (B5) BRECAT ARE245,792,5017 1000 - 1000 SHEMBHERBER
RMB245,792,501 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o EREEWE (%) BRACAR AR%132,000,0007C 100.0 - 1000 SHENMHERBER
China Resources Snow Breweries RMB132,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Leshan) Co., Ltd. of beer products
oo ZPETEE (FH) GRAR 31,200,000 7T 100.0 = 100.0 BERHEREER
China Resources Snowflake Brewery US$31,200,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Jilin) Co., Ltd. of beer products
o ERERWE (RBE) BRAA AR #260,000,0007 1000 - 1000 SHEMEERBER
RMB260,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o EREEWE (Z8) BRAA AR378,500,0007C 100.0 - 1000 SHENMHERBER
China Resources Snow Breweries (Anhui) RMB378,500,000 Manufacturing and distribution
Co., Ltd. of beer products
* EESRBE (L) ARAF AR#141,000,0007T 90.0 - 90.0 BENHEREER
China Resources Snowflake Brewery (Anshan) RMB141,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
Company Limited of beer products

FEMEAE (#%) BMR 27 China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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Principal Subsidiaries

R-ZZT—XF+=-HA=+—H At 31 December 2016

RABAH
Percentage of capital
BRAZARRA /FMER AEEEE  ADFARE KELAERE
HWEAR Issued ordinary share capital/ Attributable  Held by the Heldby FE£%
Subsidiaries registered capital to the Group Company  subsidiaries Principal activities
ARERBERAL ()
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland (Continued)
o EREREE () ARAA ARE570,000,0007C 100.0 - 1000 REMHEREER
China Resources Snow Brewery (Wuhan) RMB570,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
Co., Ltd. of beer products
o EREREE (RE) HRAF 12,982,255 7T 100.0 - 1000 A HBEER
US$12,982,255 Distribution of beer products
o EREREE (LR) ARAA 21,000,000 100.0 - 1000 BENHEREER
US$21,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o EEEREE (550) GRAR AR#70,000,00070 100.0 - 1000 BENHEREER
China Resources Snow Breweries RMB70,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Shu Cheng) Co., Ltd. of beer products
o EREREE (BR) ARAA 55,850,000 100.0 - 1000 REMHEREER
US$55,850,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
* o ERERBE (RF) ARAA 44,250,000% 7T 97.0 - 970 BEMHEREER
China Resources Snow Breweries US$44,250,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Tianjin) Company Limited of beer products
o EEEREE (KE) GRARA 32,797,869% T 100.0 - 100.0 BENHEREER
China Resources Snow Brewery (Dalian) 1S$32,797,869 Manufacturing and distribution
Co., Ltd. of beer products
oo EREREE (L) GRAR AR264,400,0007C 100.0 - 1000 REMHEREER
RMB264,400,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o EREREE (BF) ARAF ARH45,000,0007 100.0 - 100.0 BENHEREER
China Resources Snow Breweries RMB45,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Fuyang) Co., Ltd. of beer products
o EEEREE (RF) GRARA ARH#69,440,00070 100.0 - 100.0 REAHEREER
China Resources Snow Breweries RMB69,440,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Tianmen) Co., Ltd. of beer products
o EREREE (BRT) BRAA 25,800,007 100.0 - 1000 RENHEREER
China Resources Snow Breweries US$25,800,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Heilongjiang) Co., Ltd. of beer products
oo EEERER (1) GRARA 114,000,000% T 100.0 - 100.0 BENHEREER
China Resources Snow Breweries US$114,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Jiangsu) Limited of beer products
o EEEREE (FR) GRAR 15,700,000% 7T 100.0 - 100.0 REAHEREER
China Resources Snow Breweries US$15,700,000 Manufacturing and distribution

(Fujian) Co., Ltd.

of beer products
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Principal Subsidiaries
RZF—RE+=-A=+—H At31 December 2016

NPl
Percentage of capital
BRTEERRA /EREL FEEEE  ARERE KWEAREE
HWEAR Issued ordinary share capital/ Attributable  Held by the Heldby FE£%
Subsidiaries registered capital to the Group Company  subsidiaries Principal activities
ReEIRERA T ()

Incorporated in Chinese Mainland (Continued)

150

*%

*k

*%

*%

**

*%

*%

*%

**

*%

**

*%

*%

FRZTEWE (M) BRAR

ERERRE (BR) BRAR
China Resources Snow Breweries
(Xingan) Co., Ltd.

ERETRE (BM) BRAR
China Resources Snow Breweries

(Wenzhou) Co., Ltd.

EHZEER (it) BRAF

EFZEWE (R() BRAR
China Resources Snowflake Brewery
(Tonghua) Co., Ltd.

ZHSERE (5HA) ARAR

ERERRE (BK) ARAR
China Resources Snow Breweries
(Loudi) Co., Ltd.

ZHSERE OFL) BRARAR

AE#161,000,00070
RMB161,000,000

14,000,000% 7T
US$14,000,000

55,800,000% 7T
US$55,800,000

58,020,000
US$58,020,000

88,710,000%7T
US$88,710,000

AR#850,000,0007
RMB850,000,000

12,600,000 T
US$12,600,000

AR%110,000,0007
RMB110,000,000

AR#180,000,0007
RMB180,000,000

24,000,000 7
US$24,000,000

AR#400,000,0007
RMB400,000,000

AR#135,500,0007
RMB135,500,000

AE#426,000,00070
RMB426,000,000

100.0 = 100.0
100.0 = 100.0
100.0 = 100.0
100.0 = 100.0
100.0 = 100.0
100.0 = 100.0
100.0 = 100.0
100.0 = 100.0
100.0 = 100.0
100.0 = 100.0
100.0 = 100.0
100.0 = 100.0
100.0 = 100.0

FEMEAE (#%) BMR 27 China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited

SHENEERAER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

SENEERBER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

BENHEEEER
Manufacturing and distribution of
beer products

SENEERRER
Manufacturing and distribution of
beer products

BENEERBER
Manufacturing and distribution of
beer products

BENHEEEER
Manufacturing and distribution of
beer products

SENEERRER
Manufacturing and distribution of
beer products

SRENEERBER
Manufacturing and distribution of
beer products

HENHEEEER
Manufacturing and distribution of
beer products

SENEERRER
Manufacturing and distribution of
beer products

SENEERBER
Manufacturing and distribution of
beer products

BENHEEBER
Manufacturing and distribution of
beer products

HENHERRER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products



£ 30y KA
Principal Subsidiaries
R=Z—R"E+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2016

REBAL
Percentage of capital
BRTEERRA /EREL FEEEE  ARERE KWEAREE
HWEAR Issued ordinary share capital/ Attributable  Held by the Heldby FE£%
Subsidiaries registered capital to the Group Company  subsidiaries Principal activities
RABEIREERA T ()
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland (Continued)
o EREREE (F1) ARAF ARE140,000,0007C 100.0 - 1000 REAHEWEER
RMB140,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o EREHEE (2B) BRAF 19,000,000%7T 100.0 - 1000 BEAHEWEER
China Resources Snow Breweries US$19,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Ningxia) Co., Ltd. of beer products
o ETBE (BZ) ERAA 17,000,000%7T 100.0 - 1000 SEAHEEREER
S$17,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o R (R%) BRARF 11,880,00057T 100.0 - 1000 REAPEWEER
US$11,880,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
+ SREE (RY) BRAR 48,000,000% 7 100.0 - 1000 BEAFEWEER
US$48,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o ETRE (R #) ERAA 33,500,000% 7 100.0 - 1000 SEAHEEREER
1S$33,500,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o RREBHESEEBERAT 30,000,000% 7 100.0 - 1000 REAHEWEER
Tianjin Binhai New Area Snow Breweries US$30,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
Co., Ltd of beer products
Bt 3
Notes:
— EERR 2EHFIIFMEMBARFBEEEREANIIE W ERESIHAEBEEEXEEASATE N ZMBRRFE -
1. The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of all subsidiaries will be of excessive length
and therefore the above list contains only the particulars of the subsidiaries which materially affect the results or
assets of the Group.
= BREBEFBAEN SARZEBEFEMEBERINENE M FrEhE o
2. Unless otherwise stated, the principal country of operation of each company is the same as its place of incorporation.
= EPBERMEMKZZ AR HEXEBEANES B 2 ETERR (WF) -
8. For companies incorporated in the Chinese Mainland, the English name is as shown in the Certificate of Approval of
each company (if any).
& aBEhE
* Equity Joint Venture
*x o SNEfRZE
**

Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise
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A BB R B R

Five-Year Financial Summary

—E—CF —E=f —T—NE —T—h4F —E-RE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
AREHETT ARBET ARBEERL ARKBET AR¥EER
RMB million ~ RMB million RMB million ~ RMB million ~ RMB million
(Z71) (&Z31) (Z7) (Z31)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
GBA%E Consolidated results
e Turnover 102,720 116,939 133,757 106,872 28,694
MR e e R/ (BH)  Profit/(loss) attributable to
shareholders 3,210 1,524 (128) (4,118) 629
SREARF]/(BE) Basicearnings/(losses) pershare  RMB1.23  RMB0.58  RMB(0.05) RMB(1.56)  RMB0.22
FEEE Dividend per share
A Interim HK$0.15 HK$0.13 HK$0.11 = -
(RMB0.12)  (RMBO0.10)  (RMBO0.09)
Sl Special - - - HK$12.30 -
(RMB10.08)
RH Final HK$0.15 HK$0.14 HK$0.16 - RMB0.08
(RMB0.12)  (RMBO.11)  (RMBO0.13)
HK$0.30 HK$0.27 HK$0.27  HK$12.30  RMB0.08
(RMB0.24)  (RMB0.21)  (RMB0.22) (RMB10.08)
GREESER Consolidated balance sheet
EEEE Fixed assets 46,195 54,342 69,468 21,389 20,900
B Goodwill 12,121 15,275 18,029 8,326 8,422
Hi A Other intangible assets 239 442 402 194 17
REIRE Long term investments 419 417 1,116 10 9
I Prepayments 1,831 688 801 158 89
ELEHEEE Deferred taxation assets 804 1,211 1,794 1,655 2,011
MEAEFE Net current liabilities (5,414) (8,219) (16,659) (7714) (9,777)
E5EH Employment of capital 56,195 64,156 74,951 24,018 21,825
N Share capital 2,407 2,409 15,691 5,941 14,090
EE1s Reserves 30,629 32,243 22,764 4,115 3,511
e Shareholders’ funds 33,036 34,652 38,455 10,056 17,601
I HIR R R Non-controlling interests 10,575 12,216 16,469 9,264 66
REER Long term loans 10,827 15,210 15,676 3,839 2,953
HRHAE Other non-current liabilities 542 638 2,580 601 934
EIERIEAE Deferred taxation liabilities 1,215 1,440 1,771 258 271
DERES Capital employed 56,195 64,156 74,951 24,018 21,825

EMEE (%) AR 2 F China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
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Chairman and Executive Director
FRRA Chen Lang

BHEHITERMITES

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
%%  Hou Xiaohai

(R=F—ANFH 7 HEZT)

(appointed on 15 April 2016)

AR Hong Jie

(RZF— NEFH+ 7 AE)

(resigned on 15 April 2016)

BERVBERNITES

Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director
REE Lai Po Sing, Tomakin
(R-ZFB—NFENH—HEZ(E)

(appointed on 1 June 2016)

BkuE  Lai NiHium, Frank
(R-FB—NFNHA—HIERIFHTEER
BEEFEMEE)

(re-designated as a Non-Executive Director and
resigned as the Chief Financial Officer on

1 June 2016)

BEXEERHTES

Vice Chairman and Executive Director

FE Wang Qun
(RZF—NFHATHAEZE IR =ZF—NF
+—HEHFHE)

(appointed on 15 April 2016 and resigned

on 7 November 2016)

2IAE  Liu Hongji

(R=F—NFAH 7 HE)

(resigned on 15 April 2016)

FHITES

Non-Executive Directors

PR Chen Rong

(R-ZF—NFH+ I HEZET)

(appointed on 15 April 2016)

RLuE Lai NiHium, Frank
(RZB—NENHA—HEERIHTESE)
(re-designated as a Non-Executive Director on
1 Jdune 2016)

2 6 & R

Corporate Information

MXE  DuWenmin
(RZFE—NFH A
(resigned on 15 April 2016)
s Wei Bin
(RZ=F— NELIH AT HEFE)
(resigned on 15 April 2016)
) Yan Biao
(R-ZF—NFH 7 A
(resigned on 15 April 2016)

PR IE Chen Ying
(RZFE— NELI A+ HEFE)
(resigned on 15 April 2016)
FE Wang Yan
(R-—FE—NFH A
(resigned on 15 April 2016)

BAFIITES

Independent Non-Executive Directors

=AZE  Houang Tai Ninh

ZRE  LiKaCheung, Eric
BIZE  Cheng Mo Chi, Moses
FREE  Bernard Charnwut Chan
#/MiE  Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon
NEWE

Company Secretary

RER  Lai Po Sing, Tomakin
(RZF—NENH—HEZ)
(appointed on 1 June 2016)
RLuE Lai NiHium, Frank
(R=F—NFENHA—HET)
(resigned on 1 June 2016)

B
Auditor
B ERKBERTAI SR AT

PricewaterhouseCoopers

EERLEEE YA ER I 30

Registered Office and

Principal Place of Business

BB EE 2697 A E 3918
39/F, China Resources Building

26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
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K& #HE R
Information for Investors

NHEFHEE

Announcement of Annual Results
201743 A21H

21 March 2017

BEARBRAMRSEN R 2 &R ERB
Last Day of Dealings in Shares with
Entitlement to Final Dividend
20174 5H26H

26 May 2017

EERERNBFETTFE
Closure of Register Period

EEBROERRBFAGYRNE LRZEZBERHND

201755 A22A % 2017454 25H
(EEMRBHEEA )

To determine the identity of members

who are entitled to attend and vote at the

annual general meeting:

22 May 2017 to 25 May 2017 (both days inclusive)

BERR =G ERIANPRE 2R :
201796 A1H

To ascertain the members' entitlement to
the proposed final dividend:

1 June 2017

REREAARE

Payment of Final Dividend
201746 A 16 B A&

On or about 16 June 2017

IR DB TR E

Share Registrar
BEERERRAT]
BBERANER1835

A L2218

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen's Road East
Hong Kong

REFXERE

Depositary

BNY Mellon Shareowner Services
P.0. Box 30170

College Station

Tx 77842-3170

(e

Stock Codes
EEBAR S - 00291
P18 291 HK

BEFEA  0291.HK
ADRHSE : CRHKY
CUSIP: 16940R109
Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 00291
Bloomberg: 291 HK
Reuters: 0291.HK

ADR symbol: CRHKY
CUSIP: 16940R109

REERR

Investor Relations
FEH : ir@cre.com.hk
Email: ir@cre.com.hk
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BB ET S 882650 A B398
E5E : 852-2827-1028 {EH : 852-2598-8453
484k : www.crbeer.com.hk EE : info@cre.com.hk

39/F, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel : 852-2827-1028 Fax : 852-2598-8453
Website : www.crbeer.com.hk Email : info@cre.com.hk
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